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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)
BERBERZMAERAFA(BMXMAI)GEMZEF&

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than
securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and
no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, makes no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or
in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Sau San Tong
Holdings Limited (the “Comypany”) collectively and individually accept full
responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange
(the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with
regard to the Company. The Directors of the Company, having made
all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge
and belief: (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive; and
(2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement herein or in this report misleading.
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CORPORATE PROFILE
ARFBN

Founded in July 2000, Sau San Tong Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) have established itself as one of the leading
beauty and slimming services providers in Hong Kong and Mainland
China over the past years through the introduction of a series of
innovative health and beauty treatment and products as well as the
provision of the most professional and superior beauty and slimming
solution to our customers. The Group was listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock Code: 8200) in November
2003 and is the first listed beauty and slimming company in Hong
Kong.

The Group currently has six beauty and slimming centres in Hong
Kong. These centers are under three brand names “Sau San Tong”
(original brand of the Group), “IPRO” (acquired in 2015) and “Mizu”
(established in April 2023). All these centers provide unique all-rounded
personalized beauty and slimming services, health management
and anti-ageing treatment programs etc.. Combining the effective
treatments and comprehensive follow up services, all programmes
enable customers to achieve their desired skin quality, weight and body
shape in the healthiest manner.

The Group has been widely recognized and highly praised for its
outstanding products and services, the Group was honoured to be the
“Caring Company” for 10 consecutive years.

To further diversify its businesses, the Group has acquired a distribution
business in Mainland China in 2005, which distributes P&G’s personal
care products in Shanghai, and cosmetic and skin care products with
famous brands like SK-II and Olay in the eastern and western part of
Mainland China. With years of development, the distribution network is
well developed and with the additions of international famous brands.
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CORPORATE PROFILE
AFBEN

With the existing beauty and slimming business, product distribution
business and franchise co-operation business, the Group is well-
equipped to provide the best-in-class services to our customers.

In order to fully utilise the idle funds of the Group, the Group has
expanded in several new business segments in recent years.

In March 2015, the Group commenced a new business segment of
investment in securities, with a view that such business will diversify the
income stream of the Group and broaden its revenue base. It may also
improve the capital usage efficiency and generate additional investment
returns on the idle funds of the Group.

In May 2016, the Group commenced another new business segment
of provision of money lending services. The Group provided both
secured and unsecured loans with terms ranging from several months
to 3 years. For unsecured loans, the Group’s targeted corporations
and individuals are small to medium sized corporations which include
both listed and non-listed corporations and businessmen in various
industries. The money lending business will diversify the income stream
of the Group and broaden its revenue base in order to enhance the
capital use of the Group as well as the overall interests of the Company
and its shareholders.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP

AEBYMBEAGE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue and other gains or
losses
Selling and distribution costs

General and administrative expenses

(Loss)/profit from operations

Finance costs

(Loss)/profit before taxation

Income tax expense

(Loss)/profit for the year

Non-current assets

Current assets

Current liabilities

Net current assets

Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

6
HEKAK

A
SR B A
s
S D AR
~BRAREX
S8 (58 %H
RARA
BB (BR),/ A
FiaBiR%
FR(ER),/ %A
FRBEE
hBEE
HBEE
hBaEFE
FRBAMR
aEFE
ERREH
BERFL AR
N i

R

BERE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—EC=H —E-CF B —EEF —E-NE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FEr T
1,231,548 1,561,356 1,793,826 1,359,223 2,423,176
(1,132,424)  (1424,185)  (1,649,340)  (1,252,818)  (2,296,714)
99,124 137,171 144,486 106,405 126,462
12,423 11,227 10,198 10,184 6,196
(45,634) (46,579) (53,908) (57,473) (84,979)
(72,242) (82,331) (106,279) (94,669) (116,980)
(6,329) 19,489 (5,509) (35,553) (69,300)
(426) (441) (893) (1,871) 2,712)
(6,755) 19,048 (6,396) (37,424) (72,012)
(7,913) (5,156) (10,189) (9,434) (13,700)
(14,668) 13,892 (16,585) (46,858) (85,712)
170,671 135,165 137,367 194,973 156,591
730,673 826,032 845,408 854,060 919,924
(125,404) (140,033) (168,192) (220,144) (196,873)
605,269 685,999 677,216 633,916 723,051
(234) (1,154) (6,299) (14,735) (3,888)
775,706 820,010 808,284 814,154 875,754
789,647 807,443 800,276 818,773 860,960
(13,941) 12,567 8,008 (4,619 14,794
775,706 820,010 808,284 814,154 875,754
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MANAGEMENT’S STATEMENT
EERE®RE

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | present the annual
report for the year ended 31 March 2023 (the “Year Under Review”) to
the shareholders of Sau San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”).

2023 continued to be a challenging year for the Group and the entire
retail and services industry in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic
China (the “PRC” or “China”). The retail industry was seriously disrupted
by the COVID-19 on a global scale in these years. Hong Kong and
China experienced several waves of COVID-19 pandemic in 2022. With
borders closed due to the outbreak of Omicron variant between Hong
Kong and China during the majority of Year Under Review, the local
retail sales for the year was primarily driven by local consumers. The
economic activities were also hampered due to the volatile COVID-19
situation.

Meanwhile, the global geopolitical tension between different nations
remained high. The trade war between China and US discouraged the
international trade. The Russo-Ukrainian War dramatically changed
the financial markets with significant disruptions in trade and food and
fuel, all of which are contributing to the high inflation and subsequent
tightening in global financing conditions. The capital flows were also
restricted due to the Russo-Ukrainian War.

The gross domestic production (the “GDP”) of China grew by 3% in
2022 compared to 8.1% in 2021. The GDP of Hong Kong fell by 3.5%
in 2022 compared to the growth of 7.2% in 2021.

Apart from carrying out its core business in the professional approach
consistently during the Year Under Review, the Group has also
proactively identified different opportunities of acquisitions and
development.
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MANAGEMENT’S STATEMENT
BEEEB®HRE

Founded in 2000, Sau San Tong has been established for 23 years.
Regardless of the changes in economic and business environment
over the years, the Group has long been upholding its founding
beliefs, dedicated to address customers’ needs in a sincere, caring,
professional and devoted manner, abiding by industrial ethics and
conduct. Along the way, Sau San Tong has been sharing ups and
downs and evolving side by side with its customers! Establishing the
market leading position is a hard-earned achievement. We will continue
to adhere to the Group’s principles, conduct and service attitude while
introducing new elements by launching innovative treatments and
products, leading Sau San Tong and its customers to continue the
legends of beauty. On top of expanding business, the management
team puts equal emphasis on corporate governance, risk management
and social services. These corporate social responsibilities are of
utmost importance to Sau San Tong'’s sustainable development in the
long run. In the effort to build a harmonious society and a prosperous
future, Sau San Tong always proactively demonstrates its care for the
community, supports various welfare activities and sets up a voluntary
team to participate in various voluntary services. For a number of
consecutive years, Sau San Tong has been awarded the “Caring
Company” logo, which exemplifies our continuous care and support to
the society.

In the year of 2023, the world is in a far better place that it was a year
ago in terms of COVID-19 pandemic. A series of mandatory quarantine
measures and strict travel restrictions were relaxed in the early 2023.
The economy is expected to recover. Looking ahead into the late 2023,
the Group will remain cautious to the incoming challenges and strive
to capture any business opportunities available. We will continue to
examine the situation carefully and adjust the Group’s development and
investment strategies in the effort of diversifying its business, which in
turn will enable us to respond to the ever-changing market environment
and maximise the interests of the Group and our shareholders as a
whole.
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MANAGEMENT’S STATEMENT
EERE®RE

Financial Review

In respect of the financial performance during the Year Under
Review, the Group’s overall revenue decreased from approximately
HK$1,561,356,000 in the previous year to approximately
HK$1,231,548,000 in the Year Under Review, representing a 21.1% of
decrease.

The gross profit for the Year Under Review was approximately
HK$99,124,000, with a decrease of approximately HK$38,047,000 as
compared with approximately HK$137,171,000 for the same period
last year. The decrease in overall revenue was due to the decrease in
revenue from the distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care products
and provision of beauty and slimming services and the net loss
resulting from the investment in securities. Revenue from distribution
sale of cosmetic and skin care products decreased from approximately
HK$1,476,008,000 to HK$1,172,999,000 of the Year Under Review.
Revenue from provision of beauty and slimming services decreased
from approximately HK$60,695,000 to HK$48,939,000 of the Year
Under Review. Net loss of HK$6,149,000 resulting from the investment
in securities compared to net gain of HK$14,882,000 last year.

The decrease in revenue is outweighed by the increase of revenue
from sales of healthy, beauty and related products and interest income
from money lending. The revenue from the sales of health, beauty
and related products increased from approximately HK$1,379,000
to HK$4,562,000 of the Year Under Review. The revenue of
interest income from money lending increased from approximately
HK$8,239,000 to HK$11,164,000 of the Year Under Review.

During the Year Under Review, general and administrative expenses
amounted to HK$72,242,000 representing a decrease of approximately
12.3% or HK$10,089,000 from approximately HK$82,331,000 for the
same period last year. The selling and distribution cost remains similar
to last year.

In view of less satisfactory revenue income, the loss attributable to the
owners of the Company is approximately HK$13,933,000 in the Year
Under Review compared to the profit of HK$8,952,000 last year.
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MANAGEMENT’S STATEMENT
EEERE

Appreciation

On behalf of the Company, | would like to express my sincere gratitude
to our shareholders, my fellow members in the Board and our
hardworking staff, as well as our loyal customers, business partners
and other stakeholders for their valuable contributions and strong
support for the Group. | would also like to take this opportunity to
welcome our new member Ms. Tsang Tsz Nok, Aleen, an independent
non-executive director of the Company joining us in the Year Under
Review. In addition, | would like to give my heartfelt appreciation to
our ex-independent non-executive director, Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy
who have resigned, in the Year Under Review, for her long-standing
support and contribution to the Group. We will continue to provide the
market with high quality service and adopt the most stringent controls
and adaptable strategies to drive the Group’s business development
in the long term. With our persistent dedication and relentless efforts,
| am confident that the Group is able to overcome any obstacle ahead
and adhere to its vision and mission to bring rewarding returns to all
shareholders.

Mui Wai Sum
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 27 June 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERBNWmR DN

Business Review

In 2022, the GDP growth in China and Hong Kong were 3.0% (2021:
8.1%) and -3.5% (2021: 7.2%) respectively, indicating the deterioration
of economic growth. Retail segment were one of the most affected.
The COVID-19 pandemic is still affecting the world in different extent,
though the COVID-19 becomes less urgent than at any time in the
past three years. Another wave of COVID-19 came in 2022 in Hong
Kong and certain areas of China. The business activities were inevitably
affected.

For the Year Under Review, the Group recorded a revenue of
approximately HK$1,231,548,000, representing a decrease of 21.1%
from approximately HK$1,561,356,000 of last year. This was mainly
attributable to (i) the decrease of revenue from distribution sales of
cosmetic and skin care products by approximately HK$303,009,000; (i)
the decrease of revenue from provision of beauty and slimming services
by approximately HK$11,756,000; and (i) Net loss of HK$6,149,000
resulting from the investment in securities compared to net gain of
HK$14,882,000 last year.

The business of distribution of sales of cosmetic and skin care products
of Shanghai Dong Fang Ri Hua Sales Co. Ltd. (“Dong Fang”) China
suffered from the COVID-19 outbreak and Shanghai implemented a
strict lockdown measures. The business activities were affected and
most operation in Shanghai was suspended. The sales generated by
Dong Fang dropped by HK$303,009,000.

The slowdown of retail industry affects the Group’s provision of beauty
and slimming services. The weak global demand and occasional
increases in COVID-19 cases causes a widened contraction of the
Hong Kong economy. The revenue from provision of beauty and
slimming services decreased by approximately HK$11,756,000.

The result of investment in securities was not satisfactory. The global
geopolitical tension and tightened financial conditions resulting from the
sharp interest rate hikes posed difficulties to the stock markets all over
the word. Net loss of HK$6,149,000 of investment in securities was
recorded in the Year Under Review.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE DN

The decrease of revenue was partially offset by the increase of revenue
from sales of healthy, beauty and related products and interest income
from money lending. During the Year Under Review, the Group
launched a new product called iPRO NMN Deluxe 3in1 (the “NMN
Deluxe”). NMN Deluxe is an anti-aging product which could activate
the body’s defenses against aging. The Group placed a great effort
to promote the NMN Deluxe through different marketing channels
and cooperated with well-established distributor for the customers to
access to our products. The revenue from sales of healthy, beauty and
related products were improved remarkably.

The interest income from money lending business increased
approximately from HK$8,239,000 to HK$11,164,000 of the Year
Under Review. The increase of interest income arose from the higher
amount of loans during the Year Under Review. In light of uncertain
market conditions, the Group remained prudent and cautiously
monitored the development of the Group’s money lending business.

Loss for the year was approximately HK$14,668,000 as compared
with profit for the year of approximately HK$13,892,000 of last year.
The reason for the loss is the decrease of overall revenue together
with the high inflation of the costs of sales and salaries. For the Year
Under Review, the Group recorded approximately HK$72,242,000
(2022:82,331,000) and HK$45,634,000 (2022: 46,578,000) of general
and administrative expenses and selling and distribution expenses
respectively.

As at 31 March 2023, cash and bank balances was approximately
HK$416,179,000 (2022: approximately HK$432,054,000), whereas
liquidity ratio (represented by a ratio of current assets over current
liabilities) was 5.83:1 (2022: 5.90:1), reflecting the adequacy of financial
resources.

Beauty, Slimming and Spa Centres

During the Year Under Review, Hong Kong experienced several waves
of COVID-19 pandemic. Though the COVID-19 became less urgent
than at any time in the past three years, the business activities were
affected in certain extent. Though the effect brought by COVID-19
pandemic was alleviated through the promotion of vaccination by Hong
Kong government and the consumption voucher scheme launched
by Hong Kong government, the local economy remained weak. The
revenue dropped by 19.4% compared to last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Group has a long history in the operation of beauty, slimming and
spa centres in Hong Kong. With extensive experience in the industry
and committed efforts for innovations, the Group has continuously
introduced sophisticated services and products of the highest quality
for its customers, winning the long-term favour of its customers for
its beauty and slimming products and services while successfully
establishing brand advantages and customer loyalty. To further fortify
its leading position in the industry, the Group has introduced a number
of new beauty, slimming and anti-ageing treatments and machineries
during the Year Under Review.

As the first listed beauty and slimming company in Hong Kong, the
Group has consistently uphold the principles of quality products,
professional services and honest operation. Backed by the strengths
of the brand, the Group has won numerous awards over the years
and enjoys sound reputation in Hong Kong. It was strongly trusted by
its customers. With increasingly intensive market competition, some
industry players have resorted to all possible means including dishonest
sales methods to secure their market shares. Coupled with various
beauty and slimming incidents during recent years and seriously weak
and outdated government supervision, customer confidence has
been impaired. This, however, has at the same time encouraged the
customer demand for quality beauty and slimming services. In view of
this, the Group will continue to provide quality products and services.
Maintaining the strategy of winning with quality, the Group will continue
to leverage on its professional and outstanding beauty and slimming
technologies, bring its brand visibility to the full play, and operate with
honest and honour, in order to win over the consumers’ trust, secure
a wider business coverage in the high-end market and thereby realise
sustainable growth and return.
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Distribution Business in the PRC

Product distribution in the PRC is another core business of the Group
and is carried out by the Group’s subsidiary, Dong Fang. Dong Fang
is one of the top three distributors of P&G in the greater China in
terms of average sales in the PRC, and is the top distributor in the
East China area. It is responsible for the overall distribution coverage
in the Shanghai region and provides supply and sales services to its
customers via various channels, including online platforms, electrical
appliances merchants, department stores channel, local modernised
retail malls, supermarkets, small-sized supermarkets, convenient
stores, maternity stores and cosmetic stores headquartered or
regionally headquartered in Shanghai. Products involved include
OLAY skincare, Head & Shoulders, Vidal Sassoon, Pantene, Rejoice,
Pampers, Crest, Safeguard, Whisper, Ariel, Oral-B and Gillette.
Moreover, the Company is responsible for the SK-II business in East
and West China areas, covering Shanghai city, Zhejiang Province,
Jiangsu Province, Anhui Province, Henan Province, Shanxi Province,
Sichuan Province and Chongqing city (8 provinces and cities in
total). In the Year Under Review, the business of distribution sales of
cosmetic and skin care products of Dong Fang recorded a revenue of
approximately HK$1,172,999,000, representing a decrease of 20.5%
from approximately HK$1,476,008,000 of last year. China suffered from
the COVID-19 outbreak and implemented a strict lockdown measures.
The business activities were affected and most operation in Shanghai
was suspended. The retail sales recorded in Dong Fang dropped
accordingly.

Health, Beauty and Related Products

The Group spares no efforts in keeping itself abreast of time and
marching at the forefront of the market. Through heavily investing in
the development and introduction of products embedding advanced
technologies and safe ingredients to enrich its portfolio of health and
beauty products, the Group targets to bring to its customers a wider
array of sophisticated product choices. This will in turn further enhance
the attraction of the brand name Sau San Tong and ensure the Group’s
leading market position.

During the Year Under Review, the NMN Deluxe, a newly launched
product, was marketed successfully. Going forward, the Group will
continue to launch different safe and effective products that meet the
different needs of its customers, helping them to achieve beauty in
a healthy way. We believe that the segment of distribution of health
and beauty products will continue to make a stable contribution to the
Group’s results in the time ahead.
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Franchise Co-operation Business in the PRC

Building on its successful business in Hong Kong and a strong brand
visibility, the Group started venturing into the enormous market in the
PRC back in early 2004. The Group established the unigueness of the
brand and identified ourselves as a leader in the slimming and beauty
industry. Since the efforts to developing the franchise cooperation
business in full sail since December 2010, we have entered into a
number of franchise co-operation contracts. The existing number of
franchise co-operation shops put our brand on the top position in the
beauty and slimming industry in China.

Securities Investments Business

As a move to expand its diversified business, the Group has
commenced the new segment of securities investments business in
March 2015 to put the idle funds of the Company into long- and short-
term investments in listed securities in Hong Kong and other recognised
securities markets in the overseas as well as wealth management
products purchased from banks and other financial institutions, with a
view to generate additional income outside its retail business, to widen
its revenue base and minimise the risks of the Group on the overall, in
order to enhance the capital use of the Company as well as the overall
interests of the Company and its shareholders. This new segment of
securities investments has good contribution to the revenue and profit
of the Group in the Year Under Review. During the Year Under Review,
the Group has recorded a net loss of approximately HK$6,149,000
from its investments in the Hong Kong stock market and unlisted equity
fund outside Hong Kong compared with net gain of approximately
HK$14,882,000 last year. The investment portfolio included investments
in a variety of industries including construction, real estates, internet
service, retailing, food and beverage, finance, industry and education,
with the objective of minimising the risks while maximising the return.
As at 31 March 2023, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
amounted to approximately HK$107,098,000 (2022: HK$97,218,000).
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Money Lending Business

In addition, the Group engaged in money lending in order to better
utilise the idle funds to generate additional returns. The Group is a
legitimate money lender licenced in Hong Kong under the provisions
of the Money Lenders Ordinance. The Group’s targeted corporations,
which are small to medium sized corporations including both listed and
non-listed corporations, and businessmen in various industries mainly
acquired through business referrals and introductions.

Loan applications are reviewed by the Group with a series of due
diligence work to assess the credit worthiness of applicants and their
financial ability for loan repayments. Due diligence performed by the
Group involves know your client (“KYC”) procedures including obtaining
information as to source and amount of income, proof of other net
assets, ID copy, address proof, etc. The loan terms would be arrived
at after considering a combination of factors including prevalent market
rates, the financial strength of the applicants, the collaterals offered and
past credit history of the applicants with the Group.

Monitoring of loan repayment and recovery are a continuing task of
the Group. The Group has regularly communicated with borrowers
regarding their financial condition and search through publicly available
information to ascertain whether the borrowers have any difficulty in
making repayment on time.

There was a total of 28 (2022: 39) borrowers for the loan receivables as
at 31 March 2023.

The Group provided both secured and unsecured loans with terms
ranging from several months to 3 years. The Group has recorded
revenue of approximately HK$11,164,000 (2022: HK$8,239,000) for
the Year Under Review. As at 31 March 2023, the loans and interest
receivables from money lending business amounted to approximately
HK$63,156,000 (2022: HK$101,421,000).

Credit Assessment System of the Group

In order to perform credit assessment on the loan applicants of the
Group, the Group conducts a series of due diligence work to assess (i)
the credit worthiness of applicants, and (i) their financial ability for loan
repayments.
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Due diligence performed by the Group involves know your client
(“KYC”) procedures, including but not limited to (i) obtaining information
as to source and amount of income, proof of other net assets, copy
of identity card, address proof, (ii) interviewing the applicants to
understand heir financial needs and repayment abilities, (i) inspecting
supporting documents to verify the information submitted by the
applicants, and (iv) performing background research and on-site visit.

Determination of Interest Rate

The interest rate charged on the loan portfolio by the Group was
subject to the macro-economic factors during the time of the loan
granted. The loan terms, including the interest rate, were arrived at after
considering a combination of factors including (i) the prevalent market
rates, (i) the financial strength of the applicants, (i) the collaterals
offered, and (iv) the past credit history of the applicants with the Group.

Determination of interest rate, or the range of interest rate, is assessed
on case-by-case and dynamic basis taking into account of totality of
the circumstances (rather than on a bright-line test basis) which could
be varied over time. Generally, the ranges of interest rate offered for the
loan receivables could be summarised as below. However, it does not
form a bright-line test basis for the Group to grant loan going forward
and all relevant factors should be considered on case-by-case basis
from time to time.

Interest rates ranged from 6% to 12%

In general, for those loan applicants who could demonstrate satisfactory
creditworthiness and financial ability to make loan repayment without
any material findings by the Group, the Group would offer interest rate
mainly ranging from 8% to 12%, except individual cases that the loan
applicant could demonstrate exceptionally promising creditworthiness
and strong financial ability, then the Group would offer a lower interest
of 6% when the general market offered very low interest rate.

For this group of loan applicants, satisfactory creditworthiness was
demonstrated by a combination of:

o good repayment record in the past;
° high consistency between the supporting documents provided

and the descriptions and representations made by the loan
applicant;
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° sustainable operating history and track record; and/or

o reputable character and/or renowned brand name in their
respective industry.

Further, the loan applicants were able to demonstrate that they
possess the financial ability to make loan repayment by a combination
of:

holding of good quality asset(s);
° relatively low debt to the income ratio of the loan applicant;

o relatively low gearing ratio and solid financial liquidity; and/or

° able to provide, if any, other personal guarantor or high value
collateral as additional proof of financial ability.

Interest rates ranging from 14% to 16%

During the course of conducting due diligence on the loan applicant by
the Group, if it comes to the attention of the Group that there are any
findings potentially raising additional concern to the Group, regardless
of such findings relate to the loan applicant’s credit worthiness or the
financial ability, appropriate following-up steps will be taken by the
Group.

If appropriate reasonable explanation could be provided by the loan
applicant, with the support of sufficient documents to justify the loan
applicant, that the Group could conclude the expectation of the
potential risk is still minimal, the Group would then tend to charge an
interest rate ranging from 14% to 16%, which is slightly higher than the
general range of 8% to 12%.
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Interest rates ranging from 24% to 30%

For all findings in the due diligence process, the Group would take
appropriate follow-up steps to assess the impact of such findings to
the loan applicant’s creditworthiness and financial ability. In the event
that the findings causing a potential risk exists but at an acceptable low
level, and the loan applicant’s capability to meet the financial obligation
is considered adequate in the event of adverse business or economic
conditions, the Group would then tend to charge a high interest rate
ranging from 24% to 30%, which is higher than the general range of 8%
to 12% and the range of 14 to 16%.

Interest rates ranging from 36 to 48%

In the event that, after conducting all reasonable steps to following
up the findings, the Group concludes the findings could potentially
elevated the vulnerability of the loan applicant, particularly in the
event of adverse change in business or economic conditions, but the
business or financial flexibility available to the loan applicant could still
support the serving of its financial commitment, the Group tends to
charge a premium high interest rate ranging from 36% to 48%, which is
notably higher than the other interest rate ranges.

Since the potential risk of this group of borrowers are in general higher
than the others, the loan term would generally shorten to two or three
months only. For this type of high risk borrowers, the Company would
put through additional effort to closely monitor the repayment progress
to ensure the collectability. In particular, the interest would typically be
charged and paid on monthly basis and the Company would closely
monitor the borrower’s interest repayment.

The Benchmark of Borrowers of the Group

The benchmarks that the customer should meet to become the
Company target/potential customers are mainly (i) satisfactory credit
worthiness, and (i) the financial ability to make loan repayment, having
taken into account of all relevant factors after performing the respective
due diligence by the Group. The followings are the key factors to
be considered in assessing whether the borrowers meet the above
benchmark and up to the satisfaction of the Group.
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Corporate Customers:

To avoid a high level of concentration risk, prospective borrowers are
not restricted to a particular industry and the existing borrowers are
also not from a particular industry.

° The prospective borrowers should have principal business
operation in Hong Kong which could facilitate the Group’s KYC
procedures.

° Minimum amount of revenue/profit in the last 12 months and
minimum amount of total assets/net assets as at a particular
date are to be considered collectively but not in an absolute
benchmark. The value of collateral and the financial position are
also one of the factors to be considered. However, when there is
no guarantee or collateral attached, ratio of loan amount to profit,
ratio of loan amount to revenue and ratio of loan amount to net
assets value are to be considered collectively.

o The cash flow information and loan applicant’s budgeting, if
available, are other financial benchmarks acceptable to the
Group. These could solidify the Group’s understandings on
the loan applicant and facilitate the Group to estimate the
recoverability of the loan.

° Length of operation history is considered but this is not the only
conclusive factor.

o Legal cases and/or public news of the corporation are also the
factors to be considered.

Individual Customers:

o No particular age group of prospective borrowers is targeted.

° No particular occupation of prospective borrowers is targeted.

o Minimum asset threshold are not set. However, other types of
asset proof and income proof are one of the key factors to be

considered to assess the financial solvency.

° Legal cases and/or public news of the individual are also the
factors to be considered.
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Overdue Loan and Actions Taken by the Group

The following table sets forth the distribution of the balances of the
Group’s outstanding loan exposure to borrowers by size as at 31

March 2023 and 31 March 2022:
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EXHR EXRH Efl= (%) FEBE FEOIENR 1ENLE 1EMR 2EMR 3ELR
Months % HK$'000  HK§000 HK$000  HK$1000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000
A % TEr  TAn T#r  TAr  TEr  FhEr  FEr TEn
Lessthanorequalto  HRSESH
HK$5 million 5000000 38 2t0 36 Tto48 55,586 (10,346 45,240 8,245 3207 26,345 4,481 2,902
over HKS5 milion but ~ #385,000,000
less than or equal BTESR
o HK$10 millon FER
100000008 1 24 10 8,000 (24 7,976 - - - 7,976 -
over HK$10milion ~ #83810,000,000
but ess than or BLEIR
equal to HK$15 FAER
milion 1500000087 1 36 8 9,886 (30) 9,856 - - - - 9,856
Total @t 73472 (10,400) 63,072 8,245 3207 26345 12457 12,758
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEESWmE DT

Overdue
for period Not yet due with maturity
(Gross) kRl HANEMIEEA
loans Netloans Over over
receivable receivable 1 year 2 years
Principal amount asat asat and and
when the REFHED Number  Tenureofthe  Interest rates 31 March Loss 31 March witin within within ithin
loan granted ReHE ofloan  loan per annum 2022 alowance 2022 1year 1year 2 years 3years
WoBoE WoEoE
=A=t-H ZA=t-A
HRIES HENER 183 L 2L
E¥EE ERE % (%) BlERlE 58 1A 1EHR 2E R SEMA
Months % HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
A % AL T TEL AL T T AL
Lessthanorequalto  HRFIASH
HKS5 miion 50000008 35 3037 61048 79,53 18,638 60,896 1755% 30,049 12870 31
over HK$5 milion but -~ 385,000,000 7
less than or equa EORFEER
o HK$10 milion 100000008 4 1012 12103 20,011 11,081 8,980 - 8980 - -
overHKS 15 milon 815,000,000
butless than or {EPRAEER
equal to HKS20 20,000,000%7
milion 2 12 8 30,700 li 30,629 - 30629 - -
Total e 130,245 29,740 100,505 17,59 69,658 12870 31
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Group has taken the following actions in recovering the overdue
loan amounts:

(i) issued demand letters to the borrowers;
(i) made calls to demand full repayment;
(iiy  enquired the borrowers the expected time to fully repay the loan;

(iv) considered and continued to evaluate the cost and benefits to
take legal actions against the borrowers (for those borrowers
who could demonstrate that they are fully aware of their overdue
obligation; easily reachable by our Group; committed to repay
as soon as possible and continue to make timely repayment of
interest after the maturity date, the Group may not take legal
actions immediately which could incur additional legal cost to us);
and

(v)  consulted external legal advisers and took legal actions against
the borrowers when necessary.

The Group applies general approach in measuring loss allowance for
expected credit loss (“ECL”) on loan receivable in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard (“HKFRS”) 9. Details of the
ECL model are disclosed in the notes of the consolidated financial
statements.

In assessing default risk of loan receivables, the following factors have
been taken into consideration:

- collateral ratio (if any);
- amount of actual shortfall;
- time of delay in payment;

- responsive to the Group’s request in repayment after maturity of
loan; and

- external market indicators that are expected to cause a significant
change in the borrower’s ability to meet its debt obligation.

In particular, based on the ECL assessment for the Year Under Review,
the Group has made provision for several borrowers, which are set out
in the following tables.

AW EERERRIR - AEEERRT THITE) ¢

0 FEEFRAZE K
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(i) RERAERRABBEES KO
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HEE  AEBREZHEABE  AEER
REFAUEDHAREENFEENE -
AIREBEAR MG IS REUVERTE (B RTT
RS AKEELRINARER))
54
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Name of
relevant Client

HBEFER

Relevant Client 1

BEEF1

Relevant Client 2

HEEF2

Note: The amount represents the outstanding principal balance with accrued
interest as at 31 March 2023

Relationship
with the Group

BAKEZBR
Independent

third party

BI%=F

Independent
third party

BU%=h

Means of
introduction
to the Group

EEZS .l
BN

By referral

Y

By referral

Date of
agreement

i LK

23/12/2021

“E--f&
TZA=t=H

14/1/2021

—E--F
~AtmA
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Terms of
the loan

EXER

12

12

Outstanding
amount
HK$'000  Interest rate
(Note)  per annum
KEESE
TiErx
(i) ER=E
249 12%
249 12%
1,991 10%
1,991 10%
Het . e
B

Due diligence performed
by the Group

FREET EREE

Full KYC procedures including
obtaining information as to
source and amount of income,
ID copy and address proof

TREFEH2RE  BREERE
BRARERSHER - 5HE
RIAR b BB

Full KYC procedures including
obtaining information as to
source and amount of income,
ID copy and address proof

THREFSH2NE  ARERA
BRARERSEER - 5HE
BIAR I BB

BER-_ZE-_=F=A=+—BZKE
SHEBRENMNEATRRE



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Outstanding

Name of relevant Client amount
HEEFER AEESHE
HK$°000

FE

Relevant Client 1 249
HEEF1 249
Relevant Client 2 1,991
HEEF2 1,991

Amount of
provision

during the

year ended

31 March 2023
BE-2-=f%
=ZA=+-H
LEEZRESE
HK$000

FET

249

249

1,991

1,991

Collateral
and/or
guarantee
obtained
Sz
ERRR/ 3
BiR

No

No

Event leading to impairments

EYREZEH

The loan receivable was reclassified from stage 1
to stage 3. The loan and the interest were past due.
Relevant Client 1 repaid certain amount of interest
and principal after negotiation. However, the Relevant
Client 1 stopped the repayment. The Group sent the
demand letter and initiated legal actions.

EHERCHEIRREN P BEHIKR - ERRIEX
HEEH - KBHE  HEEF1 CEEETAEREFE
SH AT AHEEFIFLER AEECREHES
5 YRBEETH -

The loan receivable was remained at stage 2. The
loan and the interest were past due. The Group
issued demand letters and made call to follow up.
The Relevant Client 2 repaid some interest payments
after the Group’s actions. The Group is negotiating
with the Relevant Client 2 for the prompt repayments.

ERERNENEMEER - ERRASIAT N - ARES R
A YHERE - AERFRFEBRETHRCHES
FRERA - AEBER RRER AR P28 -

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED £ & E#RER A T

Annual Report 2022/23 FERE



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Outlook

The Group’s performance was improved in the Year Under Review.
Yet, the Group will remain cautious to the volatile business environment
and the economy. The Group will continue to consistently maintain a
positive attitude to explore, research and develop more sophisticated
and effective health and beauty products and professional treatments,
in order to meet the pursuit and demand for beauty and health by the
ladies in Hong Kong and China and in turn achieve stable growth and
enhance the performance of the Group’s core business. Meanwhile, the
Group is also devoted to the training of its people, and has specifically
devised training courses targeted at the employees of the franchise
co-operation shops on the mainland market, with the aim to ensure
the consistence in the quality of operation and services of the beauty,
slimming and spa centres across different places.

In addition, parallel to its focus on the beauty and slimming business,
the Group will also utilise the abundant funds on hand to identify new
investment opportunities, including appropriate and timely investments
in securities, money lending and properties, with the objectives of
generating additional return, broadening its revenue base, enhance
the efficiency of capital use and further promote the performance of
the Group in different areas. The Group will meticulously select sound
investments with high return potentials. Moving forward, the Group will
concentrate on bringing its strengths, customer base, reputation and
other advantages into full play in order to actualise stable growth of its
core business. This will be complemented with careful investments in
the effort to bring along more rewarding returns to our investors.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Corporate Social Responsibility

As a leader in the beauty and slimming industry, the Group is dedicated
to leading the way in enhancing the safety level of the sector. We have
always attached great importance to the safety of our services and
products and exercises stringent quality control on its products. The
machines and materials used in our treatment services have passed
vigorous safety tests and attained international safety standards.
Beauty and slimming consultants and technicians of both the direct
operations and franchise co-operation businesses of the Group all
received professional training to ensure the provision of safe services of
high quality.

Awards

Widely recognised and highly praised for its outstanding products and
services, the Group was honoured to be the “Caring Company” for ten
consecutive years.

Charity

Since its establishment, the Group has been actively partaking in charity
affairs and has set up the “Sau San Tong Volunteer Team” in an effort
to support different charity initiatives. During the Year Under Review,
the Group continued to make regular charity donations in the pursuit
for inner beauty, alongside with its yearning for physical perfection.

EEMEEE

ERRBRBBRZEEE  AEERNNS|E
ERBEFAR2KFE - B —BEARB BRI IRS
RERZZE2E BREEEREE - A5EHZ
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial Resources

Cash and bank balances as at 31 March 2023 were approximately
HK$416,179,000 compared to approximately HK$432,054,000 as
at 31 March 2022. Gearing ratio of the Group was 0.2% (2022: 0%),
based on total of loans of HK$1,356,000 (2022: HK$Nil) and the
net assets of approximately HK$775,706,000 (2022: approximately
HK$820,010,000). As at 31 March 2023, liability of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$125,638,000 (2022: approximately
HK$141,187,000), including trade and other payables of approximately
HK$107,523,000 (2022: approximately HK$128,476,000) arising mainly
from the daily operations of our subsidiary, Dong Fang and contract
liabilities of approximately HK$10,385,000 (2022: approximately
HK$3,412,000). The decrease of trade and other payables was
consistent of decrease of revenue. The liability was intended to be
financed by internal resources of the Group. The liquidity ratio of the
Group represented by a ratio of current assets over current liabilities
was 5.83:1 (2022: 5.90:1), reflecting the adequacy of financial
resources.

Treasury Policy

The Group adopts a prudent approach towards its treasury policies.
The Group evaluates the financial condition of its customers regularly
to mitigate the credit risk. The average outstanding days of the Group’s
trade receivable was maintained at below 90 days. To manage the
liquidity risk, the Group closely monitors its liquidity position to ensure
the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and commitments
and to ensure the fulfillment of its funding requirements. The Group has
no investments in derivatives, bonds or structured financial products.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Since the assets, liabilities, revenue and payments of the Group are
mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and Renminbi, the Group
considers that there was no significant exposure to foreign exchange
fluctuations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEREN@WRDM

Use of Proceeds FrBRIBBRZE

The Group completed the Rights Issue on 3 March 2017 resulting in ~ AEBR T —+F= A= HKHK - EEFT
net proceeds of approximately HK$352,000,000. Details of the use of 15X IE H 58 49352,000,000/8 ¢ © FSRIA A&

proceeds is as follows: ZHEBOT
Actual
amount
Actual utilised Actual
The total amount during the amount Unutilised
allocation utilised up year ended utilised as balance as  Expected timeline for
of the net to 31 March 31 March at 31 March at 31 March  unutilised net proceeds
Use of net proceeds proceeds 2022 2023 2023 2023  as at 31 March 2023
Bz
EZ —EC=f i IS
-E-CE =A —E-=F —BC=E
=R =t+-R =R ZA R-BZZE
iiEEES S LEEZ =t+-A =+-B =H=1-H
BFEZ ZEBA 2EA ZEBAR ZiEA  ZHABRAMERE
FERERERR PERER EReH EReH BReH BRLH FEZRERER
Use of net proceeds
FETEERE
Acquisition of commercial, industrial 116 204 - 204 95.6 By 31 December 2024
and residential properties situated ZECEETZA=+—RA
in the PRC and Hong Kong
(‘Properties Acquisition”)
WBLRPEREENHE IXR
pEaIEI/EL )
Repayment of the outstanding amount 20 20 - 20 - -

due to Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan,
Shirley under the Convertible Note
ERTAREEE TEARIREL
LARERFE
Development of the Group’s money 78 78 - 78 - -
lending business
BRAEEHEEK
Renovation of offices and shops in 60 1.9 5 16.9 431 By 31 December 2024
the PRC and Hong Kong ZECMETZA=T—RA
BB REARLERER
Development of securities 30 30 - 30 - -
investment business
General working capital 48 48 - 48 - -
—REEES

Total 352 208.3 5 2133 138.7
Y
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE DN

In light of uncertain market conditions currently, the Board considers
that it will be essential for the Group to cautiously control the pace,
scale and scope of the Properties Acquisition given the uncertainties
casted by the global economic and financial markets.

Note:

The expected timelines for utilising the remaining net proceeds is based on the
best estimation of the present and future business market situations made by
the Group. It may be subject to further change based on the future development
of the market conditions.

Net Assets

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s net assets amounted to
approximately HK$775,706,000 compared to approximately
HK$820,010,000 as at 31 March 2022. No bank deposits have been
pledged for certain banking facilities of the Group as at 31 March 2023
and 2022. There are no other charges on the Group’s assets as at 31
March 2023 and 2022.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had 229 (2022: 225) employees.
During the year, the Group’ s total staff costs amounted to
approximately HK$57,976,000 (2022: approximately HK$57,660,000).

The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated on the basis of the
performance and experience of individual employee and are in line with
practices of local markets in which the Group operates. In addition
to salary, the Group also offers to its employees other fringe benefits
including share option, provident fund and medical benefits.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Share Option Scheme

The Group has a share option scheme whereby qualified participants
may be granted options to acquire shares of the Company, under the
terms and conditions stipulated therein, as incentives or rewards for
their contributions to the Group. During the year ended 31 March 2023,
the aggregate of 5,253,458 outstanding options allow the subscription
of 5,253,458 shares of the Company pursuant to the share option
scheme adopted on 24 February 2016.

Future Plans

It is in the view of the Group that with the changing of beauty and
slimming services and products into necessities, coupled with the
continued growth of the middle class, the demand for quality products
and services will remain on the upward momentum. As such, the Group
will continue to spare no efforts in the development and introduction
of different sophisticated and innovative treatment, products and
machines of supreme quality to nurture our portfolio of services
and products into one that is diversified, accommodated to market
demands and attractive to new customers. We will however adopt a
more careful approach under the uncertainties in the macroeconomy
and operating environment at present.

Seeing the increasing influence of the social media in Hong Kong, the
Group plans to increase its promotional efforts on different social media
platforms in order to increase the awareness of the younger generation
for our brands name Sau San Tong and IPRO, and thereby broaden
the Group’s customer base.

The Group will also increase the investment of the abundant funds on
hand into securities, money lending, properties and other opportunities.
Apart from the generation of additional investment return, it can also
open up new revenue bases and promote the efficiency of capital use,
and thereby procure more rewarding return to our shareholders.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EEREREEAERE

Directors
Executive Director

Mr. MUI Wai Sum (“Mr. Mui”), aged 35, is an Executive Director
and joined the Group in December 2014. He is also a member of the
Company’s nomination committee. He also holds directorships in
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Mui has extensive experience
in corporate finance, corporate restructuring and securities investment.

Mr. Mui is a Vice Chairperson of Yan Oi Tong, one of the largest
charity organizations in Hong Kong. Mr. Mui is a Fellow Certified Public
Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree in General
Finance and a Master of Arts degree in Philosophy from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong.

Mr. CHAN Ka Kin (“Mr. Chan”), aged 44, is an Executive Director
and joined the Group in September 2017. He is also the chairman
of nomination Committee. He also holds directorships in various
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chan graduated from the University
of Hong Kong with a degree in Bachelor of Arts in 2001 and has
obtained a Postgraduate Diploma in Education from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 2005. Mr. Chan has over 14 years of
experience in education and investment. Mr. Chan has the following
Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute certificates: Dealing in
Securities, Derivatives, Corporate Finance and Asset Management. Mr.
Chan is currently the Court Member of the University of Hong Kong and
a member of the Standing Committee of the University of Hong Kong
Convocation.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Takashi TOGO (“Mr. Togo”), aged 59, is a Non-executive
Director and joined the Group in March 2016, holds a bachelor degree
of Economics from Hitotsubashi University in Japan. He has over 16
years’ experience in foreign equities investment. He was the investment
manager of several investment funds in Japan including Yasuda Trust
& Banking Corporation Limited and Fuji Investment Management
Company Limited. He also specialises in merger and acquisitions and
his clients cover major reputable Japan corporations. Mr. Togo has
been serving as an Executive Director of a trading company in Tokyo
since 2019.
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Independent Non-executive Director

Ms. Tsang Tsz Nok, Aleen (“Ms. Tsang”), aged 35, joined the Group
in December 2022 as an Independent Non-executive Director, and also
a member of the audit committee and the nomination committee and
the chairman of remuneration committee of the Company. Ms. Tsang
is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ms. Tsang holds a bachelor degree of Business
Administration in Information Systems from The University of Hong
Kong. Ms. Tsang has over 10 years of working experience in auditing
and accounting profession.

Mr. LAU Wai Leung, Alfred (“Mr. Lau”), aged 43, is an Independent
Non-executive Director and joined the Group in December 2016. He
is the chairman of the audit committee, member of the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee of the Company. He has
over 20 years of working experience in accounting, corporate finance,
debt restructuring and private equity investment. Mr. Lau holds a
bachelor degree of business administration from City University of Hong
Kong. Mr. Lau is a member of American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and also is a Certified Public Accountant in Washington
State, USA.

Mr. Lau is the Company Secretary and the Executive Director of
Risecomm Group Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1679) and the Independent
Non-executive Director of Xinming China Holdings Limited (a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 2699).
Mr. Lau has also been an Independent Non-executive Director of
Jianzhi Education Technology Group Company Limited (a company
listed on NASDAQ, stock code: JZ).

Mr. Lau was an independent non-executive director of C&D Newin
Paper & Pulp Corporation Limited (a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 0731, formally named as Samson
Paper Holdings) from 17 July 2020 to 21 May 2021, and re-designated
as an Executive Director since 21 May 2021. On 26 January 2022, Mr.
Lau resigned as an executive director of such company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE
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Mr. AU Siu Lun (“Mr. Au”), aged 46, is an Independent Non-executive
Director and joined the Group in May 2020. He is the member of the
audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee.
He graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a degree in
Finance in 1998, Mr. Au has over 24 years of working experience in
finance, information technology and strategic planning for enterprises.
He is the Co-founder and Chairman of a FinTech company which is
the member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, located in
California, US.

Senior Management

Dr. KWAN Fei Ying (“Dr. Kwan”), aged 39, is the chief executive
officer of the Company. Dr. Kwan joined the Company in December
2015 and is responsible for the overall management, business strategy
and development of the Group. She is also involved in the formulation
of various aspects of the Group’s policies. Dr. Kwan holds an honorary
doctorate degree from the International American University, U.S.A.
and has more than 18 years of experience in the beauty and slimming
industry. Dr. Kwan has served as the management of a beauty and
slimming company in Hong Kong and is the vice president of Hong
Kong Beauty Industry Union.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRS

Introduction

The Board presents this Corporate Governance Report in this annual
report for the year ended 31 March 2023.

The Board assumes overall responsibility for the leadership and control
of the Group. It believes in good corporate governance practices
that strengthen investors’ confidence, facilitate the development
of the Group, and increase transparency in the operation of the
Group, ultimately striving for the long-term interest of the Group and
enhancement of shareholders’ value.

The Board has reviewed the Group’s corporate governance practices
and is satisfied that the Company has complied with the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM
Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 March 2023, except for the
following deviation:

Code provision C.2 and C.2.7

Code provision C.2 stipulates the role of the chairman of the Board.
The Company does not have the chairman of the Board and hence
does not compiled with code provision. The Company has two
executive directors who have performed part of the function of the
chairman of the Board.

Code provision C.2.7 stipulates that the chairman of the board of
directors should at least annually hold meetings with the non-executive
directors (including independent non-executive directors) without
the executive directors’ presence. The Company does not have the
chairman of the Board of directors. The management of the Company
considered that it was unnecessary as it would be more transparent
and efficient to let the Independent Non-executive Directors express
their views to all Executive Directors in the meetings of the Board.
Besides, the management of the Company always welcomes all
Independent Non-executive Directors to communicate with them
directly via email or phone to discuss any matters of the Company from
time to time.
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Code provision C.4.1

Code provision C.4.1 stipulates all the non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The term of
office for non-executive directors is subject to retirement from office by
rotation and is eligible for re-election in accordance with the provisions
of the Company’s bye-laws. At each annual general meeting, one-third
of the directors for the time being, (or if their number is not a multiple
of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation. As such, the Company considers that such
provisions are sufficient to meet the underlying objective of this code
provision.

Code provision C.6.7

Code provision C.6.7 stipulates that independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors, as equal board members,
should attend general meetings of the Company and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. Ms. Chin Kam
Hing, Kathy, Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred and Mr. Au Siu Lun being the
Independent Non-executive Directors, attended the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 23 September 2022.

Code provision D.1.2

Code provision D.1.2 stipulates that the management shall provide all
members of the board with monthly updates. Management considers
that quarterly updates and periodic instant updates when developments
arising out of the ordinary business instead of monthly updates are
sufficient for the Board to discharge its duties. Besides, during the Year
Under Review, the Executive Directors have provided, and will continue
to provide, to all Independent Non-executive Directors updates on
any material changes to the position and prospects of the Company,
which are considered to be sufficient to provide general updates of the
Company’s performance, position and prospects to the Board and
allow them to give a balanced and understandable assessment of the
same to serve the purpose required by the code provision D.1.2.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the required standard of
dealings and its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions throughout the year ended 31 March 2023.

CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY

The Board has set the following values to provide guidance on
employees’ conduct and behaviors as well as the business activities,
and to ensure they are embedded throughout the Company’s vision,
mission, policies and business strategies:

° Integrity: do the right things;

° Excellence: deliver our products and services excellence;

° Collaboration: work better together;

° Accountability: accountable for our commitments;

° Empathy: care about our stakeholders; and

° Sustainability: commit to a sustainable future

The Group will continuously review and adjust, if necessary, its
business strategies and keep track of the changing market conditions
to ensure prompt and proactive measures will be taken to respond to

the changes and meet the market needs to foster the sustainability of
the Group.
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Board of Directors
Composition

As at 31 March 2023, the Board comprised of six Directors, including
two Executive Directors, one Non-executive Director and three
Independent Non-executive Directors. The composition of the Board
during the year is set out as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Mui Wai Sum
Mr. Chan Ka Kin

Non-executive Director
Mr. Takashi Togo

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Tsang Tsz Nok, Aleen

Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred

Mr. Au Siu Lun

The composition of the Board reflects the balance of skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the Company’s business
and for the exercise of independent decisions. The Company has one
Non-executive Director and three Independent Non-executive Directors
which is more than half of the Board. They are professionals in different
areas and provide independent opinions based on their expertise.

Biographical details of the current Directors are set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management Profile” on pages 34 to 36.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined by the Board of
Directors on recommendation of the Remuneration Committee with
the reference to their respective duties and responsibility with the
Company, the Company’s performance and current market situation.
Details of emoluments of the Directors for the Year Under Review are
disclosed in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Functions, Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the Company,
undertaking the responsibility to lead and control and to promote the
success of the Company through providing direction and supervision.
All Directors are bound by their duties to make objective decisions in
the interests of the Company. The Board is responsible for the major
affairs of the Company, including the approval and supervision of all
major policies, overall strategies, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (particularly transactions involving
conflict of interest), financial information, appointment of Directors and
other material financial and operating matters. Major corporate matters
that are specifically delegated by the Board to the management include
the preparation of annual, interim and quarterly accounts for approval
by the Board before publication, execution of business strategies and
initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate internal
control systems and risk management procedures, and compliance
with relevant statutory requirements and rules and regulations.

The Directors have distinguished themselves in their field of expertise,
and have exhibited high standards of personal and professional
ethics and integrity. The Board is of reasonable size and composition
to provide checks and balances that safeguard the interests of the
shareholders and the Company as a whole. All Directors have given
sufficient time and attention to the Company’s affairs.

Independence

As at the date of this report, the Company has three Independent Non-
executive Directors, at least one of whom has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise
under Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company has received
from each of the Independent Non-executive Directors a confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. As at
the date of this report, the Company in its best knowledge considers all
of the Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.
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Each Independent Non-executive Director is required to inform the
Company as soon as practicable if there is any change that may affect
his/her independence.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship) among the members of the Board.

Board Meetings

The Board regularly meets in person or through other electronic means
of communication at least four times a year to, among other matters,
review past financial and operating performance and discuss the
Group’s direction and strategy. Appropriate notices of regular Board
meetings are given to all Directors, who are all given an opportunity
to attend and include matters in the agenda for discussion. Senior
Management provides to the Directors information on activities and
development of the business of the Group from time to time. The
Company Secretary takes detailed minutes of the meetings and keeps
records of matters discussed and decisions resolved at the meetings.
Both draft and final versions of the minutes are sent to all Directors for
their comments and records, and such minutes are open for inspection
with reasonable advance notice.

The Directors can seek independent professional advice in performing
their duties at the Company’s expense, if necessary. According to
the current Board’s practices, should a potential conflict of interest
involving a substantial shareholder or Director of the Company arise,
the matter is discussed in a Board meeting, as opposed to being dealt
with by written resolution. Independent Non-executive Directors with no
conflict of interest should be present at meetings dealing with conflict
issues. When the Board considers any proposal or transaction in which
a Director has a conflict of interest, the Director declares his/her interest
and abstains from voting.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has determined
to be material, the matter should be dealt with by a physical Board
meeting rather than a written resolution. Independent Non-executive
Directors who, and whose close associates, have no material interest in
the transaction should be present at that Board meeting.
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Five meetings of the Board were held during the year. The attendance &R B HBITANEGE - SEFHFES
of each Director at the meetings of the Board is set out below: eEHEIBEREAINNT

Number of meeting

attended/held Attendance rate

Name of Directors BEEHS HE A BITEERE HE =R
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Mui Wai Sum BEREE 5/5 100%
Mr. Chan Ka Kin PRER 25T 5/5 100%
Non-executive Director EHITES
Mr. Takashi Togo REELTRE 4/5 80%
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFEHTES
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy ii= herag L= A=

(resigned on 1 December 2022) +=-A—B&MT) 4/4 100%
Ms. Tsang Tsz Nok, Aleen BE#RLT(R=ZT==

(appointed on 1 December 2022) +—A—HEZMT) 11 100%
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred BlERTE 5/5 100%
Mr. Au Siu Lun EIkfmEE 5/5 100%
Appointment and Re-election of Directors ZRERERES

The Company uses a formal, considered and transparent procedure  ZNARIRALR KZEBEIWEEHEZIRFEE
for the appointment of new Directors. The proposed appointments ¥&%E - EEER AN ERELRIEEIRZEZES
will be considered and if thought fit, approved by the Board after due 2% @ $EEREIBI GBS TES -
deliberation and upon recommendation of the Nomination Committee.

All Directors (including the Independent Non-executive Directors) are 2 EER(BEBYIFNTES)RETTHES
appointed for a specific term and are subject to retirement by rotation T + W/BIRIE AR AL M A 2GR AR
and re-election at least once every three years at the annual general &I RBAFEARS((BREBAERE ) tHFEERR
meeting (“AGM”) of the Company in accordance with the provisions of — BEiEZE(T » 2 VG =F— X -

the Company’s Articles of Association.

Pursuant to the Code provision C.4.1 of the Code, the non-executive  1RIESFRI 2 SFAMEXC.4.1 » ISERITEE 2T
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. [EFIEFETE @ W ERSTHIR - IFTESE2Z
The Non-executive Director is not appointed for a specific term, but  EWEIEF(EH @ HRZEBERBEAQNT 2 A8 S
he is subject to re-election at the AGM of the Company in accordance  2AMBINARATIREBFEAE FHIRET -

with the Company’s Articles of Association.
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At the forthcoming AGM of the Company, Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred,
Mr. Takashi Togo and Mr. Au Siu Lun shall retire pursuant to the
Company’s Articles of Association. The above retiring Directors,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM of the Company. The Board and the Nomination Committee
recommended their reappointment. The Company’s circular, to be sent
to the Shareholders, contains detailed information of the above Director
as required by the GEM Listing Rules.

Continuing Professional Development

On appointment to the Board, each Director receives a comprehensive
induction package covering policy and procedures of the Company
as well as the general, statutory and regulatory obligations of
being a Director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/
her responsibilities under the GEM Listing Rules and other relevant
regulatory requirements. All Directors shall participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills.

The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or updates
on the relevant laws, rules and regulations to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Company
has been encouraging the Directors and officers to participate in a
wide range of professional development courses and seminars relating
to the GEM Listing Rules, applicable regulatory requirements and
corporate governance practices organised by professional bodies and/
or independent auditors to further improve their relevant knowledge
and skills.

All the Directors also understand the importance of continuous
professional development and are committed to participating any
suitable training or seminars and reading relevant materials to refresh
their knowledge and skills.

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS INSURANCE
Appropriate insurance covers on directors’ and officers’ liabilities have

been in force to protect the Directors and officers of the Group from
their risk exposure arising from the business of the Group.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Company does not have the Chairman of the Board, the two
Executive Directors have performed part of the function of the
Chairman of the Board.

The roles of the two Executive Directors and the Chief Executive Officer
are separated and performed by Mr. Mui Wai Sum, Mr. Chan Ka King
and Dr. Kwan Fei Ying, respectively to ensure a balance of power and
authority.

The two Executive Directors provide leadership and are responsible for
the effective functioning and leadership of the Board whereas the Chief
Executive Officer focuses on the Group’s business development and
daily management and operation generally.

Board Committees

The Board has maintained three Board Committees (the “Board
Committee”), namely the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee, throughout the year to oversee particular
aspects of the Group’s affairs. Each of these Committees has specific
written terms of reference, which deal clearly with their authorities and
duties.

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) was
established on 4 November 2003, with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rule 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules. The terms
of reference are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.

The Audit Committee comprises all Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred, Mr. Au Siu Lun and
Ms. Tsang Tsz Nok, Aleen. The Committee is chaired by Mr. Lau Wai
Leung, Alfred. No member of the Audit Committee is a member of the
former or existing auditor of the Company.
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, but are not limited
to, the following: (a) to independent review and supervise the financial
reporting process and internal control systems; (b) to ensure good
communications among Directors and the Company’s auditor; (c) to
recommend the appointment of external auditor on an annual basis
and approval of the audit fees; (d) to assist the Board in oversight of
the independence, qualifications, performance and compensation of
the independent accountant; (e) to review quarterly, interim and annual
results announcements as well as the financial statements prior to
their approval by the Board; and (f) to provide advice on audit report,
accounting policies and comments to all Directors.

The Audit Committee reviews the quarterly, interim and annual reports
before submission to the Board. Senior representatives of the external
auditor, Executive Directors and Senior Management are invited to
attend the meetings, if required.

During the year, the Audit Committee has approved the nature and
scope of the statutory audits, and reviewed the quarterly, interim
and annual financial statements of the Group, and was satisfied that
the accounting policies and standards of the Group complied with
the applicable accounting standards and requirements and that the
adequate disclosures have been made.

Five meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year. The
attendance of each member at the meetings of the Audit Committee is
set out below:
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Number of meetings

attended/held Attendance rate

Name of members REHH HE " BITEBRRE HER

Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred (Chairman) 2EREE(FE) 5/5 100%

Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy il i ¢ A= 4/4 100%
(resigned on 1 December 2022) +=-—A—HB&T)

Mr. Au Siu Lun = Iktm k& 5/5 100%

Ms. Tsang Tsz Nok, Aleen v nd A=~ 11 100%

(appointed on 1 December 2022) +=-—A—BEZME
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established on 23 June 2006, with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rules 5.34 to 5.36 of the GEM Listing
Rules and the requirements set out under Code Provision. The terms of
reference are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The Remuneration Committee comprises all Independent Non-
Executive Directors, Ms. Tsang Tsz Nok, Aleen, Mr. Lau Wai Leung,
Alfred and Mr. Au Siu Lun. The Committee is chaired by Ms. Tsang Tsz
Nok, Aleen.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include, but are
not limited to, the following: (a) to make recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policies and structure for all Directors’ and Senior
Management remuneration; (b) to make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors, Non-
executive Director and Senior Management; and (c) to ensure that no
Director or any of his/her associates is involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed the
remuneration packages of the Executive Directors, the Non-executive
Director and senior management of the Company.

Two meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held during
the year. The attendance of each member at the meeting of the
Remuneration Committee is set out below:
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Number of meeting

attended/held Attendance rate
Name of members REHA HEBITEBERE HE R
Ms. Tsang Tsz Nok, Aleen (Chairman) BIEFEZE (EE) 11 100%
(appointed on 1 December 2022) R=—Z=—_=
+=—A—BEZMT)
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy i heoag 2l ml @ == = 1/1 100%
(resigned on 1 December 2022) +=-—A—B&T)
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred BEREAE 2/2 100%
Mr. Au Siu Lun Bkt kS 2/2 100%
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Nomination Committee

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was established on 29 March 2012, and the Company
had adopted a terms of reference in compliance with the Code
Provision A.5. The terms of reference are available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee comprises, all Executive Directors, namely
Mr. Mui Wai Sum and Mr. Chan Ka Kin and all Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred, Mr. Au Siu Lun
and Ms. Tsang Tsz Nok, Aleen. The Committee is chaired by Mr. Au
Siu Lun.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include, but are not
limited to, the following: (a) to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board, and make
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes; and
(b) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.

During the year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the Board
composition, the appointment and re-appointment of Directors and
also succession planning for the Board, the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company.

Two meetings of the Nomination Committee was held during the year.
The attendance of each member at the meeting of the Nomination
Committee is set out below:
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Number of meeting

attended/held Attendance rate
Name of members REHA HEBITEBRE HER
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Mui Wai Sum 1§EZREE 2/2 100%
Mr. Chan Ka Kin BREK S E 2/2 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTEE
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy HeWzt(R=ZT== 1/1 100%

(resigned on 1 December 2022) +=A—H&HD)

Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred 2EREE 2/2 100%
Mr. Au Siu Lun Bkt k& 2/2

Ms. Tsang Tsz Nok, Aleen
(appointed on 1 December 2022)
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Corporate Governance Functions

No corporate governance committee of the Company has been
established and the Board as a whole is responsible for performing
the corporate governance duties including: (a) to develop and review
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance;
(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and Senior Management; (c) to review and
monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop, review and monitor
the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors; and (e) to review the Company’s compliance
with the Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance.

BOARD INDEPENDENCE EVALUATION
MECHANISM

The Company has adopted the board independence evaluation
mechanism. The details are as follows:

Objective

Continuing improvement and development of the Board and its
committee processes and procedures through Board independence
evaluation provides a powerful and valuable feedback mechanism for
improving Board effectiveness, maximising strengths, and identifying
the areas that need improvement or further development.

The evaluation process also clarifies what actions of the Company
need to be taken to maintain and improve the Board performance, for
instance, addressing individual training and development needs of each
Director.

This mechanism is designed to ensure a strong independent
element on the Board, which allows the Board to effectively exercise
independent judgment to better safeguard Shareholders’ interests.
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Mechanism

(@)

Nomination Committee is established with clear terms of
reference to identify suitable candidates, including independent
non-executive Directors, for appointment as Directors.

Nomination policy is in place with details of the process and
criteria of identifying, selecting, recommending, cultivating and
integrating new directorship.

For Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED(s)”):

(i) Every INED is required to confirm in writing to the Company
his/her independence upon his/her appointment as
Director with reference to such criteria as stipulated in the
nomination policy as well as the Listing Rules;

(i)  Each INED has to declare his/her past or present financial
or other interests in the Group’s business as soon
as practicable, or his/her connection with any of the
Company’s connected persons (as defined in the Listing
Rules), if any; and

@iy Each INED is required to inform the Company as soon as
practicable if there is any change in his/ her own personal
particulars that may affect his/her independence.

The Nomination Committee will assess annually the independence
of all INEDs and to affirm if each of them still satisfies the criteria
of independence as set out in the Listing Rules and is free from
any relationships and circumstances which are likely to affect,
or could appear to affect, their independent judgement. Every
Nomination Committee member should abstain from assessing
his/her own independence.

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as
an INED at the general meeting, it will set out in the circular to
Shareholders the reasons it believes he/she should be elected
and the reasons it considers him/her to be independent.

A mechanism is in place for Directors to seek independent
professional advice, if necessary, in performing their duties at the
Company’s expense.

Directors are encouraged to access and consult with the
Company’s senior management independently, if necessary.
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(h)  The Board Independence Evaluation may take in the form
of a questionnaire to all Directors individually and may be
supplemented by individual interview with each Director, if
necessary, and/or in any other manners which the Board
considers fit and necessary.

(i) The Board Independence Evaluation report will be presented to
the Board which will collectively discuss the results and the action
plan for improvement, if appropriate.

() The results of the Board Independence Evaluation or a summary
of the findings of the said evaluation will be disclosed in the
CG Report contained in the annual report of the Company or
on the Company’s website for accountability and transparency
purposes.

(k)  The aforesaid Board Independence Evaluation will be regarded
as an ongoing exercise of the Company while the Company may
seek assistance from external consultant if an external evaluation
on the same subject is needed.

During the year ended 31 March 2023 and as at the date of this report,
the Board Independence Evaluation had been conducted by way of
completing a questionnaire by all Directors. The results of the Board
Independence Evaluation are summarised as follows:

1.  The Board as a whole possessed the skills and range of
experience needed to adequately fulfill its fiduciary responsibilities,
more reliably hold management to account, and better safeguard
Shareholders’ interests.

2. Board meetings were conducted in a manner that allowed open
communication, meaningful participation (including in depth
discussion and resolutions of issues).

3. AIlINEDs brought independent judgement to bear on the Board’s
deliberations.

4. All INEDs have actively participated in all Board meetings and
Board Committees’ meetings; and raised governance and ethical
issues to the Board.
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DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company recognises and embraces the importance of having a
diverse Board, that increasing diversity at the Board level will support
the attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives and sustainable
development. Pursuant to the board diversity policy, the Company
seeks to achieve the Board diversity through the consideration of a
number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge, length of service and any other factors that the Board
may consider relevant and applicable from time to time. All Directors
appointment will be based on applicable merits and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board. The Nomination Committee shall review the
Board Diversity Policy and make recommendations to the Board on
amendments to the Board diversity policy (if any) as appropriate, which
will include an assessment of the implementation and effectiveness of
the Board diversity policy on an annual basis in accordance with code
provision B.1.3 of the CG Code. The Board Diversity Policy is available
on the website of the Company for public information.

The Board currently has one female Director. We will continue to strive
to enhance female representation and achieve an appropriate balance
of gender diversity with reference to the Shareholders’ expectation
and international and local recommended best practices. We will also
ensure that there is gender diversity when recruiting staff at mid to
senior level and we are committed to providing career development
opportunities for female staff so that we will have a pipeline of female
senior management and potential successors to our Board in near
future.

WHISTLE-BLOWING POLICY

In compliance with code provision D.2.6 of the CG Code, the Board
adopted a whistle-blowing policy. It provides employees and the
relevant third parties who deal with the Group (e.g. customers, and
suppliers) with guidance and reporting channels on reporting any
suspected improprieties in any matters related to the Group directly
addressed to the Audit Committee and designated person. An email
account (whistleblowing@sausantong.net) has been set up for this
purpose. All reported matters will be investigated independently and,
in the meantime, all information received from a whistle-blower and its
identity will be kept confidential. The Board and the Audit Committee
will regularly review the whistleblowing policy and mechanism to
improve its effectiveness.
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ANTI-FRAUD AND ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

In compliance with the new code provision D.2.7 of the CG Code,
the Board adopted an anti-fraud and anti-corruption policy. It outlines
guidelines and the minimum standards of conducts, all applicable laws
and regulations in relation to the anti-corruption and anti-bribery, the
responsibilities of employees to resist fraud, to help the Group defend
against corrupt practices and to report any reasonably suspected case
of fraud and corruption or any attempts thereof, to the management
or through an appropriate reporting channel. The Group would not
tolerate all forms of fraud and corruption among all employees and
those acting in an agency or fiduciary capacity on behalf of the Group,
and in its business dealing with third parties.

The Board and the Audit Committee will review the anti-fraud and
anti-corruption policy and mechanism periodically to ensure its
effectiveness and enforce the commitment of the Group to the
prevention, deterrence, detection and investigation of all forms of fraud
and corruption.

Accountability and Audit
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group that give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group. In preparing the financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2023, the accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong have been adopted and the requirements of
the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance have been complied with. The
Directors believe that they have complied all applicable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, made judgments and estimates
that are prudent and reasonable. The Directors also ensure the timely
publication of the financial statements of the Group. As at 31 March
2023, the Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties or
events which may have a significant impact on the Company’s ability to
operate as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared
the financial statements on a going concern basis, which contemplates
continuity of normal business activities and the realisation of assets and
settlement of liabilities in the ordinary course of business.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor, Baker
Tilly Hong Kong Limited, are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” in this annual report.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

The Company reviews the appointment of external auditor on an annual
basis including a review of the audit scope and approval of the audit
fee. During the year, the fee payable to the Company’s external auditor
for audit services amounted to HK$1,300,000 and fee for non-audit
related activities amounted to HK$216,000.

Company Secretary

The primary duties of the Company Secretary include, but are not
limited to, the following: (a) to ensure the Board procedures are
followed and that the activities of the Board are carried out efficiently
and effectively; (b) to assists the Chairman to prepare agendas and
Board papers for meetings and disseminates such documents to
the Directors and Board Committees in a timely manner; (c) to timely
dissemination of announcements and information relating to the Group
to the market; and (d) to maintain formal minutes of the Board meetings
and other Board Committee meetings.

Mr. Chan Hin Hang (“Mr. Chan”) has been appointed as the Company
Secretary in 2020. Mr. Chan is an employee of the Company and
confirmed that he has complied with all the qualifications, experience
and training requirements as required by the Listing Rules. Pursuant to
the Listing Rules and in the opinion of the Board, Mr. Chan possesses
the necessary qualification and experience, and is capable of
performing of the functions of the Company Secretary.

Mr. Chan has taken no less than 15 hours of the relevant professional
training during the Reporting Period.

Shareholders’ Rights
Right to convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”)

In accordance with Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary, to require an EGM to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &8 Z#REFR A 7
Annual Report 2022/23 FERE

o BT 2 A

RAR TR INEZEE 2 ZE - BIER
ECBERMEZEER - T8 BERBE &
SF R E S EN AR FIINER BT 2 BB D
A151,300,000/%8 7T % 216,000/ 7T °

NI

RAMEZEIZRBEEETRNTIEE ()
BREFEREFESETREFIEIBARER
BEamET OB ETERESARIEINE
FeXt WERRZIZREXMHTEERESFER
Bg: (EKAMSEERBEAREZ MEE
o RARFEEEEZLEMEETREEEH
ZIEX&FHRLH -

R-ZF-ZFF RITTEE(RELEDERZE
RRAWE - REEAANREREE - W AT
BEMRAFAREZMEER - KR LIFIIZE
Ko RBELETRAUMEEZTERAR  RELABE
sz BMMEsR  TAENBITRRWEZR

ok
Be °

REHRAR  RELSEZ T D5/ Z 185
BRI

B RER
BRRRSBIAR (RRISH AR ) 2HA

RBARBZABERZMAFE8K - EM—RK
ZEREZERAMFAETDRARBAHREA
(MERAKRRBRRAGRREN) + 02— 2K
ROENAREEBANESFERNAFAMERHER
2R BREZSARBKRRENAES  UREHR
FAESKA IR Z (EMEIR -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRS

Right to direct enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the Company Secretary by addressing them
to the principal place of business of Company in Hong Kong at: Room
2303, 23rd Floor, China Insurance Group Building, 141 Des Voeux
Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.

Right to put forward proposals at a general meeting

Shareholders are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to the
operations, strategy and/or management of the Group. Shareholders
are request to follow Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association
for including a resolution at an EGM. The requirement and procedures
are set out in paragraph headed “Right to convene an extraordinary
general meeting (‘EGM”)” above.

Communication with Shareholders

The Board is committed to maintaining an ongoing and transparent
communication with all shareholders. The Company has provided
clear and full performance information of the Group to shareholders
in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules and through various
communication channels, including AGM and EGM, quarterly,
interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars. Additional
information of the Group is also available to shareholders on the
Company’s website at http://www.sst-holding.com.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the AGM for which not less
than 21 clear days’ notice is given. The Chairman and Directors are
available to answer questions on the Group’s business at the meeting.

The Group values feedback from shareholders on its effort to promote
transparency and foster investor relationships. Comments and
suggestions are always welcomed.
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Constitutional Documents

On 23 September 2022, by way of poll, the memorandum and articles
of association of the Company was amended and restated for the
purposes of bringing them into line with the latest legal and regulatory
requirements, including the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands and
the amendments made to Appendix 3 to the GEM Listing Rules which
took effect on 1 January 2022.

Corporate Governance Enhancement

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying and
complying with the Corporate Governance Code of the Stock Exchange
but also about promoting and developing an ethical and healthy
corporate culture. We will continue to review and, where appropriate,
improve our current practices on the basis of our experience, regulatory
changes and developments. Any views and suggestions from our
Shareholders to promote and improve our transparency are also
welcome.

Risk Management and Internal Control

During the Year, the Board complied with the code provisions on risk
management and internal control as set out in the CG Code. The Board
has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the nature and
extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic
objectives, and maintaining appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems for the Group. The systems are designed
to manage the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The management of the Company has established a set of
comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in areas of
operational, financial and risk controls for safeguarding assets against
unauthorized use or disposition; for maintaining proper accounting
records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial information to
achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against the likelihood of the
occurrence of fraud and errors.
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The Board has overseen the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis. A year end review of the
effectiveness of the Company’s and its subsidiaries risk management
and internal control systems has been conducted annually and the
systems are considered to be effective and adequate. Self-assessment
and comprehensive risk assessment surveys have been conducted
during the review. The Company also has an internal audit function to
carry out the analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the systems, and has procedures in place to keep
information confidential and manage actual or potential conflicts of
interest. Stringent internal structures have been designed to prevent
the misuse of inside information and avoid conflicts of interest.

All Directors and those employees who could have access to, and
monitor, the information of the Group are responsible for making
appropriate precautions to prevent abuse or misuse of such
information. Employees of the Group are prohibited from using inside
information for their own benefit.

The Board is also vested with the responsibility to disseminate to
the Shareholders and the public any inside information in the form of
announcements and circulars, in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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The Directors submit herewith their annual report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Cayman Islands on 21 May 2002 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands and its shares have
been listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 19 November 2003.

Principal Activities and Business Review

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in note
35 of the financial statements.

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of beauty and
slimming services from slimming centres, distribution sales of cosmetic
and skin care products, sale of other health and beauty products,
investments in securities and money lending business. The slimming
centres, which are operated under the “Sau San Tong” and “IPRO*
brand names, provide services such as whole and partial body
slimming, weight management, body treatment services and facial
treatment services to its customers.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and
an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s business, can
be found in the Management’s Statement and Management Discussion
and Analysis set out on pages 8 to 33 of this annual report. This
discussion forms part of this directors’ report.

Financial Statements

The loss of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023, and the
state of the Group’s affairs as at that date, are set out in the financial
statements on pages 123 to 252.
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Dividends

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: Nil).

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years
is set out on page 6. The summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 11 of the financial statements on page 177.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 28(a) of the financial statements.

Share Option Scheme
Share option scheme adopted on 24 February 2016

On 24 February 2016, the Company has adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the Share
Option Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to eligible
participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries. Eligible
participants of the Share Option Scheme include full-time or part-time
employees, executives or officers (including executive, non-executive
directors and independent non-executive directors) of the Company
and/or any of its subsidiaries and any consultants, agents or advisers
who, in the sole opinion of the Board, have contributed to the Company
and/or such subsidiaries.
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Share options are granted to the eligible participants at a consideration
of HK$1. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share in the Company. The period during which an option may
be exercised will be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion,
save that no option may be exercised more than five years after it has
been granted. No option may be granted more than 10 years after the
date of approval of the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option plans of the Company at
any time shall not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option plans of the Company (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) to each eligible participant in any
12-month period up to the date of grant in excess of 1% of the number
of shares in issue as at the date of grant, are subject to the Company
issuing a circular and the approval from the Company’s shareholders in
a general meeting.

The exercise price for a share in respect of any particular option granted
under the Share Option Scheme (which shall be payable upon exercise
of the option) shall be such price as the Board in its absolute discretion
shall determine, save that such price will not be less than the highest of
(i) the official closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheets of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which must be a
business day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (i) the nominal value of a
share.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 6 & E#RERA T
Annual Report 2022/23 FERE

BREDZAEIETIETAER2EE - 80
BEREETHAEAENAIRE —KRARAER
B - BRER TR 2 HHEHETSE2RRTE -
HEBRENEEEBAFRIETE - BRERE
FHEIE B R EE T FRIB R BARE

RIBBBE S R AR REA A BB A st 813X
HBRITEZ B RETERBREETTER AL
BTzBROERSHE - REAFRETEBEEN
2 BT 230% °

B 31T MR RRE A B R AN R B b B Ak
R BRAEAER2BERL ZBRE(RED
17 - EEHERRETEZBEE) BITERA
BERTZRMNAE - WREBERL A IEER
T-EASFHBERHBEHEHTROHBE 2
1% @ AIARRZAZ BRI NBERAS LEUF
ARRBERELE -

RIBRERE S R 2 T4 E B K 2 B
ITEE(RETEERERHMEREFES
REORTE 2B - HEZERTRERORODREH
BN AREER)EBMIMMARRMR IR
WH(E : (BRORERRL A AEEERE
B P R ERR AT IR 2 P UTE ¢ M (i Bt EE
NwREERE) -



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

Details of the share options movements during the year ended 31 #®E_-_ZE-=F=A=+—HB |t FEEBRET

March 2023 under the Share Option Scheme are as follows: ST ZERESESFEOT
At At
Subscription 1 April Granted Cancelled 31 March
price per 2022 during during 2023
Date of grant Exercisable period share RZ-F-ZF the period the period RZZEZ=%
RitaH d ] BRIABE mA-H R HRiE® =B=t-A
HKS
BT
Directors €% 10 February 2021 10 February 2021 - 0.87 2,251,482 - - 2,251,482
9 February 2026
E--#-A+tR  ZE--4-ATA%
B EZANA
Chief Executive Officer 10 February 2021 10 February 2021 - 0.87 750,494 - - 750,494
e 9 February 2026
ZEC-5ZAtR ZE--4%CATHZE
“E-EZANA
Employees [EE 10 February 2021 10 February 2021 - 0.87 1,500,988 - - 1,500,938
9 February 2026
ZR-fZAtR  ZZ--4CZAtHE
“2-EZANA
Other participant 10 February 2021 10 February 2021 - 0.87 750,494 - - 750,494
Et2EE 9 February 2026
ZEZ-%ZA+tR ZZZ-%ZAfAH%
ZERZREZANR
5,253,453 - - 5,253,458
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.87 HK$0.87
MEFATERE 087AT 087
Weighted average of remaining contractual life 3.87 years 2.87 years
MEFERSRHES 387% 287F
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Equity-Linked Agreement

Save for the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed in
the section headed “Share Option Scheme” above, no equity linked
agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed during the Year.

Distributable Reserves

Pursuant to the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, share premium
and contributed surplus of the Company are distributable to the
shareholders. As at 31 March 2023, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$482,017,000 (2022: HK$477,448,000).

Segment Information

The segment information of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2023 is set out in note 10 of the consolidated financial statements.

Connected Transaction

The “Other related party transactions” as disclosed in the note 33(b)
to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2023 do not constitute a connected transaction or a continuing
connected transaction under the GEM Listing Rules.
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Directors

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Mui Wai Sum
Mr. Chan Ka Kin

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Takashi Togo
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy (resigned on 1 December 2022)
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred

Mr. Au Siu Lun

Ms. Tsang Tsz Nok, Aleen (appointed on 1 December 2022)

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Takashi Togo, Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred and Mr. Au Siu Lun will
retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred, Mr. Au Siu Lun and Ms. Tsang Tsz Nok,
Aleen as at the date of this annual report and therefore still considers
them to be independent.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group as at the date of this annual report are set
out on pages 34 to 36.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

The Executive Director is entitled to a basic salary and a discretionary
bonus provided that the aggregate amount of the bonuses payable to
all the Executive Directors for any financial year of the Company may
not exceed 10% of the audited consolidated net profit of the Group
(after taxation and non- controlling interests but before extraordinary
and exceptional items of the Group) in respect of the financial year.

Save for a total fee of HK$360,000 for all of them for the year ended 31
March 2023, the Independent Non-Executive Directors are not entitled
to any other remuneration.

None of the Directors (including those proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting) has a service contract which
is not determinable by the Group within 1 year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Emolument Policy

The emoluments of the Directors and Senior Management of the Group
are determined by the Remuneration Committee with reference to
their relevant qualifications, experience, competence and the prevailing
market conditions.

The Remuneration Committee was established on 23 June 2006,
and the Company had adopted a revised terms of reference as of 30
December 2022 in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules and the
requirements set out under Code Provision. Details of the role and work
performed by the committee are set out in “Corporate Governance
Report” in this annual report.
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Remuneration by Bands

The remuneration paid or payable to the Directors and senior
management during the year were fell within the following bands:

r BN 2

FR - ENRENEERSREEASNEHNE
RT3IEE :

Number of Number of senior

Directors management

EEHH EREEABRE

HKS$NIl to HK$1,000,000 =% 7521,000,000% 7T 6 -

HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001% 7T 22,000,000/8 7T - -

HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 7T £ 3,000,000/ 7T - -

HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 7T £4,000,000/5 7T - 1

HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,000,001 7T £5,000,000/% 7T - -
Directors’ Interests in Contracts BECENER

None of the Directors had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance subsisting during or at the end
of the financial year to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Group has taken out and maintained directors’ liability insurance
throughout the Year, which provides appropriate cover for legal actions
brought against the Directors. The level of the coverage is reviewed
annually.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares

As at 31 March 2023, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company or their respective associates
in shares and underlying shares (the “Shares”) of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which are required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO, including interests and/or short positions which
they are deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO,
or which will be required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:
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Long position in underlying shares of the Company:

Share Option Scheme

The interests in the underlying shares of the Company arise from
share options granted to the Directors and senior management of the
Company under the Company’s share option scheme, details of which

are as follows:

RERAEBRG 2R -
BRI E
ARm RO 2 R B R EA R R BB

BETALAEFREAEEARZERE - K
BT

Approximate

percentage
Aggregate interest in the
long position Company’s
in underlying issued share
shares of the capital
Name of director/ Subscription Company EARAT]
chief executive price RAAF] 2RITRA
B 'FE{THA  Dateof grant Exercisable period per share HERAZ EE BN
BHE FHEBAH 1TEH BRAEE HRBAE BOL
Mr. Mui Wai Sum 10 February 2021 10 February 2021 — HK$0.87 750,494 1.00%
WEBRLESE —ZET-—%-F+H 9 February 2026 0.87% 7T
e R =
—EXRFANA
Ms. Kwan Fei Ying 10 February 2021 10 February 2021 — HK$0.87 750,494 1.00%
RASER Lt —T-_—%-A+H 9 February 2026 0.87% T
—E-—F-A+HZE
—E-RFZHAHB
Mr. Chan Ka Kin 10 February 2021 10 February 2021 — HK$0.87 750,494 1.00%
PR =X {2 5 A —ZE-—%_A+H 9 February 2026 0.877 7T
B —5-A+HZE
—EZRFZANA
Mr. Takashi Togo 10 February 2021 10 February 2021 — HK$0.87 750,494 1.00%
RPE L L —EZ-—%—-A+H 9 February 2026 0.877% 7T
—E-—F-A+HZE
—E-XRFZANA
Note: Btat -

The above interest constitutes a long position of the Director and the Chief
Executive in a physically settled equity derivative for the purpose of the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, none of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company or their respective associates has
any personal, family, corporate or other interests or short positions in
the Shares of the Company or its associated (within the meaning of
Part XV of SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the minimum standard of dealings by
Directors of the Company as referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules, are required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares

As at 31 March 2023, so far was known to any Directors or chief
executive of the Company, the following interests of which would fall
to be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who
were deemed to be directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the
issued capital of the Company, or which were recorded in the register
of interests required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO or have
notified to the Company were as follows:

Long position in Shares:

BEXHABEEEN R-FE_=F=A=+—
B ARAIEF  TBTRABXEZBZH
ZEALTHERANR RS HEBBEE (E& R ES
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Number of shareholding

EREA
Substantial shareholder Capacity Share Percentage
FERR 54 [igv) e
Yau Chung Chung Beneficial owner 11,707,000 14.85%
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Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, no person, other
than the Directors of the Company and the chief executive of the
Group whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’ and
Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Position in Shares” above, has
registered an interest or short position in the share capital, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company that was required to be
recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in Shares” above, at no time during the
year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or
their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other
body corporate.

Competing Interests

None of the Directors or substantial shareholders of the Company or
their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) has
any interest in a business which compete or might compete with the
business of the Group.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed
Securities of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this report, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued share
as required under the GEM listing rules throughout the Year Under
Review and up to the date of this report.
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Corporate Governance

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report section set out on
pages 37 to 57.

Events after the Reporting Period

Save as disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group does not have significant events after the reporting period.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 99.9% (2022: 99.9%) of the total purchases for the year
and purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted
to 99.0% (2022: 98.7%). Sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 12.6% (2022: 12.8%) of the total sales for the year.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers.

Charitable Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
approximately HK$1,035,000 (2022: HK$2,679,000).

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against such rights
under the laws of the Cayman Islands.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 4 November 2003, and the
Company had adopted a revised terms of reference as of 31 March
2016 in accordance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules.
Details of the role and work performed by the committee are set out
in “Corporate Governance Report” in the annual report. The audit
committee has reviewed the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Code of Conduct Regarding Securities
Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Director on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company
confirmed that all Directors have complied with the required standard
of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Auditor

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited retire and, being eligible offer themselves
for reappointment. A resolution for re-appointment of Baker Tilly Hong
Kong Limited as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Mui Wai Sum
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 27 June 2023
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ABOUT THIS REPORT
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (hereafter, called
the “Group”, “we”, or “us”) is committed to promoting transparency
of the Group’s operations and the impact of its operations on the
environment and society in which it operates, as well as communication
with its stakeholders. The results of the Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) review shown in this report demonstrate the
importance of environmental protection we place on top of our
business development target, and explain how we seek to continually
improve our ESG strategy in line with the global standards. The report
also illustrates our focus of resources utilization for core operations in
order for the Company to become the leading professional slimming
and beauty service provider for creating a highly efficient and balanced
business profile.

Report Profile

This ESG report (“Report”) focuses on the Group’s main operations
in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), for the
financial year ended 31 March 2023 (“Reporting Period”). It describes
the Group’s progress on the way towards creating sustainable value
for its shareholders and other stakeholders. During the process of
preparing this Report, we have conducted a thorough review and
evaluation of the existing ESG practices of the Group with the aim of
achieving better performance results in the future.

Report Scope and Boundary

This Report contains information that is material for the stakeholders
to understand the Group’s ESG practices and performance in its daily
operations in Hong Kong and the PRC. Unless otherwise stated, this
Report focuses on the Group’s key operating units in Hong Kong and
Shanghai. There is no change in the reporting scope and boundary
covered in this Report from the previous year.

In addition to the internal factors such as our core values, strategy, and
competency that contribute to our sustainable development, we have
considered the ESG challenges as reported by other market players
and communicated with our stakeholders as for them to decide and
prioritize the material ESG issues in this Report.
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The material ESG issues are considered as they have or may have a
significant impact on:

o the various branches of the Group in Hong Kong and the PRC;
o the current and future environment and/or society;

o our financial and/or operational performance; and

° our stakeholders’ assessments, decisions and actions.

This Report is prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
as set out in Appendix 20 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”)
and complies with all provisions of “Mandatory Disclosure” and “Comply
or Explain”, as well as the principles of materiality, quantitative, balance
and consistency. In preparing the Report, the Group has adopted
the international standards and emission factors specified in the ESG
guidance materials issued by the Stock Exchange for computing
the relevant Key Performance Indicators (“‘KPIs”), there is no change
from previous year in the way the Report has been prepared. The
application of materiality is detailed in the subsection headed “Materiality
Assessment”.

The relevant sections of the ESG Reporting Guide of the Stock
Exchange are provided from pages 71 to 110 of this Report for cross-
referencing purpose.

Information and Feedback

For details in relation to our financial performance and corporate
governance practice during the financial year, please visit our website:
http://www.sst-holding.com and refer to our Annual Report. Your
feedback and comments are our greatest motivation to improve our
ESG performance. Please send us an email to enquiries@sausantong.
net, if you have any queries on this Report or the Group’s sustainability
policies.
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APPROACH

Our operations in Hong Kong are principally engaged in the provision of
beauty and slimming services, whereas our operations in the PRC are
mainly engaged in the distribution of skincare and cosmetic products.

As a responsible corporate citizen, we acknowledge that prudent
environmental and societal management is of great importance to
sustainable economic growth. We see the integration of sustainability
into our business strategy as well as daily operations as a must to
pursue our business model. To deal with the ESG issues effectively,
understanding of, and interaction with, our employees, customers and
other stakeholders are of the highest priority.

The Group believes that effective management of ESG issues is
important to our long-term success in a rapidly changing world. We
have established a governance structure to enhance its management
of ESG issues. The Board has an overall responsibility of overseeing
the Group’s ESG-related risks and opportunities, establishing and
adopting the ESG-related strategies and targets of the Group,
reviewing the Group’s performance annually against the targets, and
revising the strategies as appropriate if significant variance from the
target is identified. In order to exert governance over the ESG issues,
we have set up an ESG Working Group that comprises of members
from middle to senior management, and it serves as a supportive role
to the Board in implementing the ESG-related strategies and targets,
conducting materiality assessments of ESG issues and prioritize them,
reporting regularly to the Board about the relevant tasks carried out
for sustainable development, identifying the relevant issues that have
a significant impact on the operation of the Group and/or the interests
of other important stakeholders, and promote the implementation
of respective measures. Under the authority of the Board, the ESG
Working Group assists in collecting ESG data from respective functional
department, monitoring the implementation of the measures, and
investigating deviation from the targets and liaises with the respective
functional department to take prompt rectification actions.
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Governance Structure

Board
g

* The Board is responsible for the overall decision-making, oversees the formulation,

administration, and assessment of the ESG system.

s EERAARERE  HERE UEREAENMNGIE - BERTME -

ESG Working Group
BiE  HERERIE

* The ESG Working Group is responsible for assisting the Board in managing and

monitoring the ESG matters on a daily basis.

s R MENERIFEAARDESTEEREERERRE -

Functional Departme

R BEERPY

&§/3$E °

¢ Functional department is responsible for the execution of implemented measures to

achieve the set strategies and targets.
o BALHPIRBRMITE AR - UERMRENRIEEEER -

The Board will continue to review the progress based on the set
goals and targets to help building sustainable markets, with broader
benefits for the society. With a thorough understanding of the ESG
risks and opportunities, the Group will be better positioned in allocating
its resources to reduce and recycle different kinds of waste, and
responding to the increasing demand for higher standards of waste
treatment by regulators. In addition, we believe that our expertise,
capabilities, and ownership model can form part of the solutions to
some of the challenges that organizations around the world are already
facing. We are confident that as part of the business decision-making
process, by involving all relevant stakeholders in the ESG management
process, we will be able to better monitor the ESG issues, and the
long-term success of the Group will be assured.
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Our sustainability strategy in the following aspects applies to all the IR T & T E 2 Al BN R ERNRTA %
work streams:

1.

To promote environmental sustainability;
To attract, retain and support employees;
To engage with stakeholders;

To sustain local communities;

To strengthen community relations;

To grow suppliers’ commitment.

s

1. EERRAEENL

2. W5 BERIFIES
3. BRKMHEBE:

4. HEFEHITHR

5. EREEEERE:

6. IRERMtERAE

o
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AEERGSKEBEAKE ATHREERMZE
N EBE  BMRAURSZHMZERRRS - 3
REFNECERMIEBFERERYIMEEE
EZAE - TRYBABHZOFNERERRK
IR T -

OUR STAKEHOLDERS

The Group is actively looking for every opportunity to understand
and engage our stakeholders to ensure that improvement of our
products and services can be implemented. We strongly believe
that our stakeholders play a crucial role in sustaining the success of
our business. The following table provides an overview of the core
stakeholder groups identified and our engagement methods.

Stakeholders Probable points of concern

A REEEER

Communication and responses

BEREE

&

HKEX Compliance with GEM listing rules, timely and  Meetings, training, workshops, programs,

accurate announcements. website updates and announcements.

76

BB AT BFGEM EMAR R - A RERAE - B B ITED 58l MBEHRKLA
4 o

Government Compliance with laws and regulations, Interaction and visits, government inspections,
prevention of tax evasion, contribution to tax returns and other information.
social welfare.

BUF BPARNESR  BREERATRALER EBRRD  BNESLS  HRREMER -
MIEERL -

Suppliers Payment schedule, stable demand. Site visits.

34 TREEE - BERBK - S E -

Investors Corporate governance system, business Seminars, interviews, shareholders’ meetings,
strategies and performance, investment financial reports or operation reports for
returns. investors, media and analysts.

REH PEERHE FBEBEKRE - KEMQ AR HHK RRAE - MREE - FBR
e DITENIR I S BT -

Media & Public Corporate governance, environmental Newsletters on the Company’s website.
protection, human rights.

HER AR BEER RR - AR RR R 2 FE R

Customers Product quality, service delivery schedule, Site visits, after-sales services.
reasonable prices, service value, personal data
protection.

=R EnEE  RHBRBEREK  AEER R SH28  8&ERE%-

BEE - AAERMRE -

Employees Rights and benefits, employee compensation, Union activities, training, interviews with
training and development, work hours, working employees, internal memos, employees’
environment, labor protection and work safety. suggestion boxes.

=] M REN  EEWHE  BIIRERE T T&&8 - 71 BESEHK - AEEA -
B ITEIRIR - S TRERTIERZR - EEERM -

Community Community environment, employment and Community activities, employee voluntary
community development, social welfare. activities and community welfare subsidies

and donations.

HE MHERE  ERERTEER  HE8Q% - HERES EERTEBUARMERTER
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group has identified issues that may have an impact on, or that
may pose a risk, its business in short-, medium- or long-term. Issues
that are important to our stakeholders, including but not limited to, our
customers and employees, as well as non-governmental organizations
(“NGOs”), are also crucial to us. The Group has identified ESG issues
that have potential or actual impact on its sustainable development
from various sources, such as issues identified in the previous ESG
reports, internal policies, industry trends and the Sustainability
Accounting Standards Board’s Materiality Map'. The ESG issues have
been analyzed with reference to an array of factors, including the
Group’s overall strategy, development, goals and targets. We have
conducted a materiality assessment to rate the identified ESG issues
that are pertinent to its business and stakeholders, and their respective
level of impact. The assessment results are shown below:
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U Sustainability Accounting Standards Board ‘s Materiality Map,
https://materiality.sasb.org/
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Material Topics How we address them in corresponding sections
EERE A a0 {AT B 2R O PR B
1. GHG Emissions and Energy Consumption Emissions; Use of Resources
1, BERBEEM KR ERE R - BIRER
2. Packaging Material Packaging Materials
2. BEME BEME
3. Hazardous Waste Environmental
8 BEBEEY RIE
4. Non-hazardous Waste Environmental
4, BmEREREY) RIE
B Product Quality and safety Product Responsibility; Quality Assurance
B mEERLE EmAMR : HE2RE
6. Water Consumption Use of Resources
6. FEK BIREA
7. Changing consumer preferences Social
7. HEE R teE
8. Diversity and Equal Opportunity Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-discrimination
8. ZtRTERE FEKE M RRIKE
9. Climate Change Climate Change
9. RIRE RIRE(L
10. Talent, recruitment, and retention Employment; Welfare and Benefits
10. AT - HBER®R B% : BF KA
11. Health and Safety Health and Safety
1. HEREZRD RERZ 2
12. Development and Training Development and Training
12, FEREI R MR
13. Labour Standards Child Labour and Forced Labour
13. SBI#ER| BETREGST
14. Responsible Procurement Supply Chain Management
14, BEWRE HIEEER
15. Anti-corruption and Business Ethics Anti-Corruption
15. RERREFmE RES
16. Community Investment Community Investment
16. HERRE HRIRE
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ENVIRONMENTAL

Overview

During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with all relevant
environmental laws and regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC
that have a significant impact on us, including but not limited to, the
“Environmental Protection Law of the PRC”, “Law of Atmospheric
Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC”, “Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the PRC”, “Energy Conservation Law of
the PRC” and “Waste Disposal Ordinance ” in Hong Kong.

Emissions

The Group understands that a healthy environment is the foundation
of economic progress and well-being of the society. Thus, we prioritize
environmental protection as our key target and strive to mitigate any
undesirable impact on the environment.

The Group has generated air emissions and greenhouse gases through
our daily business operations, including direct vehicle emissions and
indirect emissions from the consumption of electricity.

As of 31 March 2023, the Group owns 23 motor vehicles for delivering
goods and transporting our management team members, guests, and
clients, one of which was purchased during the Reporting Period. To
enhance fuel consumption efficiency, the Group replaces vehicles that
are obsolete and optimize route plans for transportation and product
delivery.

7B 15
%

REmERE - AEBEETHRMEERTEZM
BEERPEBEBRREEIER - BEETR
PR EARAMBIRBREE)  (PEARH

MEIRRSREE) « (REAREMEKFE
Briais) - (hEARKMBES L BEIRE) REHE
ZBEMEREIGD) °

23587
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During the Reporting Period, details of the emissions are shown in the

following table (KPI A1.1 and KPI A1.2). A1.2) °

For the

Year ended

Emission Indicators Source 31 March 2023

BE-T=-=fF

=H=t+—H

HEIEE KRR LEE
KPI A1.1
KPI A1.1

Emission Data from Gaseous Fuel Consumption

RERFUERNFERBIE

Unit Units of LPG consumed 122,820.00 MJ
X iv2 BRFEEE 122,820.00JK £ F
Emission type (in kg) Nitrogen Oxides 491.28
PERER AT a8 A&ty 491.28
Sulphur Oxides 2.46
ey 2.46
Emission Data from Vehicles
RENHENEE
Unit Kilometers travelled 349,548.00 km
X2 BEITRAR 349,548.002 &
Emission type (in kg) Nitrogen Oxides 288.70
PERCER AT AT E) RAly 288.70
Particulate Matter 27.69
SERLY) 27.69
Sulphur Oxides 0.82
malty 0.82
Units of fuel consumed Diesel 30,706.08 L
B H R R Sem 30,706.08Ft
Petrol 22,258.57 L
) 22,258.57F

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED & & Z#=RAER AT
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RIMEHRE - BB EHR TRKPI A1.1&KP

For the
Year ended
31 March 2022

BE-—®—-

E—T——

=A=t+-H
I E

158,700.00 MJ
158,700.00JK £ H
634.80

634.80

3.17

3.17

421,391.19 km
421391192 8
318.17

318.17

30.45

30.45

1.01

1.01

34,800.30 L
34,800.307t
30,438.34 L
30,438.347t
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Emission Indicators

BERER

KPI A1.2
KPI A1.2

Total Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions

BERBALHE

Scope 1: Director Emissions or Removals from sources

EE1 : ERAEREHERIRER
Scope 1a — GHG emissions from stationary

combustion sources
#E1a - ETERBEREBHEIN

Emission type (in kg)
PEREE R AT 5T &)

Scope 1b — GHG emissions from mobile
combustion sources

#HED - RBRERARERBEBIENR

Emission type (in kg)
PERE R AT Rt &)
Scope 2 - Energy Indirect Emissions

EHE2: gREERERBHER

Emission type (in kg)
HERUR R CAF =5t 5)

Units of fuel consumed

B H R

LPG

R ERR

Carbon Dioxide

= 74

Units of fuel consumed

BB R
Diesel

B

Petrol

R

Carbon Dioxide
=V 74

Unit of Electricity Consumed
Carbon Dioxide
= 74

For the

Year ended

31 March 2023
BE—_ZE_—_=

=H=+-—H

IEFE

2,670.00 kg
2,670.00F 7%
8,055.54
8,055.54

30,706.08 L
30,706.087t
22,258.57 L
22,258.577t
142,318.80
142,318.80

148,320 KWh
148,320 F F B
92,367.17
92,367.17

For the

Year ended

31 March 2022
B8FE_—_F_—_—

S e e =

LFE

3,450.00 kg
3,450.00T %
10,408.84
10,408.84

34,800.30 L
34,800.307F
30,438.34 L
30,438.34FF
175,166.10
175,166.10

133,991 KWh
133,991 F FL B
85,972.16
85,972.16
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Emission Indicators

BERER

Scope 3 — Other Indirect Emissions

EES : HEEREREBHER

Paper waste disposed at landfills

BZE AR AR
Carbon Dioxide

—Ebhx

Emission type (in kg)
HEROERI ATt &)

For the

Year ended

31 March 2023
BE-Z=-=

=H=+-—H

LEFE

For the

Year ended

31 March 2022
BEE_—_F_—_—

=H=+—H

IEFE

Business air travel by employees

Total aircraft fuel burn/journey

12 B R AL TR h SN A = (E KR

Carbon Dioxide
a1 bhx

Emission type (in kg)
BERURRI CAF 5t 8)

Total Amount of Carbon Dioxide Produced during the Reporting Period (in kg):

RIREREMES 2 —abie s (TR) :

Carbon emission intensity (metric tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent/per

thousand revenue)
R EE (A _atiE e FTRA)

Despite the decrease in total amount of carbon dioxide produced by
the Group, the carbon emission intensity has slightly increased due to
the decrease in revenue during the Reporting Period. Nonetheless, the
Group has achieved the target for the Reporting Period of maintaining
the carbon emission intensity at/below 0.2 metric tonnes per thousand
revenue. To uphold the principles of sustainable development, the
Group is committed to reduce the impact of its operation on carbon
footprints, and aims to maintain or reduce the GHG emissions
intensity between 95% to 120% for the next reporting period, against
the baseline year ended 31 March 2022. To reduce the emissions
generated by the Group, we have adopted several measures for the
management of vehicles, including but not limited to, reasonable use of
vehicles, prohibition of private use and strict approval for long-distance
travel arrangements to reduce unnecessary travel. Mitigating measures
for reducing indirect emission from electricity consumption and paper
waste are detailed in the below subsection headed “Environmental —
Energy and Water Consumption” and “Hazardous and Non-hazardous
Wastes” respectively.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED {6 & E#RERA T
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431 kg 334 kg

431F 7 334F 52
2,066.64 1,604.41
2,066.64 1,604.41
155,127.90 69,401.50
155,127.90 69,401.50
1,935.60 724.60
1,935.60 724.60
246,743.75 273,876.11
246,743.75 273,876.11
0.20 0.18

0.20 0.18

BEAKEEEN _ARBEEMHD - BA
3R E B W AR D - B U B R PR R
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EEMEERFES TIRAO2AMEKIAT - &
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HAERBFREREBE_T_—_F=A=
T AU EEFE R RFEISHET120%HK A
T RO AREBESNYEN - HIPIRERZIAE
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RARBRELEERTRE WA THBER
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Hazardous and Non-hazardous Wastes

Due to the nature of operation, the Group does not generate hazardous
waste from its operations in the PRC. Hazardous wastes are generated
during our daily operations in Hong Kong, which are mainly clinical
wastes from the provision of beauty and slimming treatments, such as
syringes, needles and medical dressings. Non-hazardous wastes are
mainly office-use paper in the PRC and Hong Kong.

The Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on us, including but not limited to “Waste Disposal
Ordinance” in Hong Kong. The Group exercises special caution when
handling clinical wastes, which are segregated from municipal solid
wastes and other waste streams. Moreover, qualified third-party
waste recycling companies are engaged for clinical waste disposals.
Despite the fact that the generation of clinical waste is inevitable in our
ordinary course of business, we strive to mitigate the generation of it,
our employees are educated on proper clinical waste disposal and are
constantly reminded to avoid using excessive materials during daily
operations and treatments.

To minimize the adverse environmental impact caused by the disposal
of paper, the Group uses environmentally friendly paper and promotes
the use of double-sided printing. For any double-sided printing,
the relevant paper should be reused under the circumstances that
no confidential information was printed on one side of the paper.
Moreover, ink cartridges are recycled upon full usage to avoid the
generation of non-hazardous wastes. The Group aspires to move
towards paperless operations through the implementation of electronic
administrative platforms and communication channels. The wastes
produced during the Reporting Period are detailed in the following table
(KPI'A1.3 and KPI A1.4).

BERBERREY

HREGHE  ARERTEEETERELSR
TBERY - BERRYNBEFRHAELES
EL ITEREHEALEBEEMELZEE
BEY) - BIANESTES - STER M BB - MEREE
MEBZZHELBBRAEMAM -

AEECETHAEHRMBEEATE ZERAE
KA - BRETRREBZCEMREE KD -
AEERREEBEEYERRNNOEER XK
H BT B R R MR DR o ttoh - HAF
RRABRF=ZIBEEYWERATREERER
Y o BERMN B EXGBIET R0 E LS
BEZEY  BRMABNBLEELE - HERE
ERRIEREERY U THRERSENATEE
ERFERBRTERBREERME

ABREERREECTFREZERERE - &K
EEFEARRERREELEER - WE@E
EENRIR R ME AR ZER - RIEERE B
ik o b BERHMATC EETEW - LUl RE
EREEREY  c AEBEFEBREEETFITRFEER
BARE  AEBRERZE NREHHEEL
ZEBEEYR TRFY(KPIA1.3&KPIA1.4) °
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For the For the

Year ended Year ended

Waste Indicators 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

BE-Z-=F% BE-ZE——

=B=+—H =H=+—H

BEEYEEZ j LEFE FE
KPI A1.3
KPI A1.3

Total hazardous waste produced (in kg)

FELRERZYRE U TREAH)

Syringe 0.0600 0.0650
JEET 2R 0.0600 0.0650
Glass Tube 0.0750 0.0360
WHE 0.0750 0.0360
Contaminated Cotton 0.0400 0.0940
BI5RRIE 0.0400 0.0940
Gloves 0.5740 0.4830
FE 0.5740 0.4830

Hazardous wastes produced per treatment provided (in kg per treatment provided)

BRABREBRELECRERRYUABRKERTRAHE)

Syringe 0.0000 0.0000
JEET 2R 0.0000 0.0000
Glass Tube 0.0000 0.0000
WHE 0.0000 0.0000
Contaminated Cotton 0.0000 0.0000
BI5RRIE 0.0000 0.0000
Gloves 0.0001 0.0001
FE 0.0001 0.0001

KPI A1.4

KPI A1.4

Non-hazardous wastes produced per capita (in kg per capita)
AYFELEEEBREYUAYTRAH)
Paper 1.8967 1.5403
AR 1.8967 1.5403
Total non-hazardous wastes produced (in kg)

FESBRERZWAE(CLTRH)

Paper 430.55 334.00
#oR 430.55 334.00
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The Group is not aware of any material cases of non-compliance
with laws and regulations relating to generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes during the Reporting Period. The Group has
achieved the target of maintaining the intensity of hazardous wastes
and non-hazardous wastes produced below 0.001 kg per treatment
provided and 2.8 kg per capita respectively in the Reporting Period.
The Group will make continuous efforts in maintaining or reducing
the intensity of total hazardous and non-hazardous wastes produced
between 95% to 120% for the next reporting period, against the
baseline year ended 31 March 2022.

Use of Resources

The Group believes that environmental sustainability is the key to
its long-term development. The management of waste and water
resources are priorities under our strategy. We always aspire to
promote sustainability and strive to cease resources wastage.

Energy and Water Consumption

During the Reporting Period, 148,320.00 kWh (2021/22: 133,991.00
kWh) of electricity, 2,223 (2021/22: 2,511.00) cubic metres of water
and 122,820 MJ of LPG (2021/22: 158,700.00 MJ) were consumed.
The electricity, water and LPG consumption intensities are detailed in
the following table (KPI A2.1 and KPI A2.2).

Energy and Water Indicators

BER R KIEE

KPI A2.1 & 2.2

KPI A2.1 & 2.2

Consumption per capita

ANGHEE
Electricity
W)
Water
K
LPG
ZapE

REBEWTMEBEARSHEABEERNBEEELES
ERBEBEVCEERER ZCERTERSE
B -RREHRE AEECEREMEEEEE
BEYREEEEYEE D RIIZESI10.001 F 5 A
TRAH28TREATZERE - NEBBEE T
KET—EBREHANEMEEEEREZEEY
BERRE T _F=A=1+—HILEEFE
R RIFFEIS% E120% 3K AT ©

BERER

AEBHEGREAFRELEERDER 2@ -
ERMRET - HREEVNKERNEER
BRER - RAXRTHBAIKERR  XBHT
BRERR -

BER R KHFE

REREER - ©H148,320.00 T EE(ZE
——/ "% :133,991.00T REF)ESH -
2223(ZF=— /9% :2511.00) 2 K
KERK122,820kEF(ZFE=-— /=% :
158,700.00kEH) AR - HEE - FKER
AHREERE R TR KPI A2.1 &KPI A2.2) 5
| o

For the

Year ended

31 March 2022
B8Fx_—_F_—_—

=A=+-—H

LFE

For the

Year ended

31 March 2023
BE-Z=-=

=A=+-—H

IEFE

406.90 396.19

kWh per capita kWh per capita
406.90 AT ELE  396.19 A9 F FLEF
9.79 cubic 11.57 cubic

metres per capita metres per capita
979NN TR 1157 ALK
541.06 731.34

MJ per capita
541.06 A GIKEE

MJ per capita
73134 NI EE
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The electricity intensity of this year was slightly increased 3% caused
by a new warehouse was set up during the year. The water intensity
and LPG intensity decreased by 15% and 26% respectively, compared
with the year ended 31 March 2022. Due to the business nature of
the Group, the consumption of water, electricity and LPG is relatively
minimal. The Group will strive towards the target of maintaining or
reducing the electricity and LPG consumption intensity between 95%
to 120% for the next reporting period, against the baseline year ended
31 March 2022. The Group has implemented mitigating measures
to reduce its usage of energy, which include, but not limited to, the
following:

° Keep indoor temperature at 24 degrees Celsius or above;
° Switch off electrical appliances when they are not in use;
° Enable energy-saving mode of printers;

o Use energy-efficient light bulbs, such as LED lamps;

o Display eco-friendly reminders to raise employees’ awareness of
energy saving;

The Group does not have any issue in sourcing water, and the existing
supply of water meets our daily operational needs. Water consumption
of the Group mainly serves the purpose of cleaning and sanitation. In
addition, shower rooms are available at our beauty centres for clients
to take showers after body treatments. We offer showers instead of
baths, which significantly reduced water consumption. Moreover, water
conservation notices are displayed in prominent areas in the office and
the beauty centres. The Group has achieved its target of maintaining
the intensity of water consumption at/below 12 cubic metres per capita
in the Reporting Period. The Group strives to reduce water usage and
increase overall water usage efficiency. We will make continuous efforts
in working towards the target of maintaining or reducing the intensity of
total water consumption between 95% to 120% for the next reporting
period, against the baseline year ended 31 March 2022.
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Packaging Materials

Packaging materials consumed by the Group mainly included
polystyrene boxes, paper boxes, filler, straps and stretch film. During
the Reporting Period, 36.30 tonnes of (2021/22: 29.34 tonnes) of
polystyrene boxes and paper boxes, 0.19 tonnes (2021/22: 0.32
tonnes) of filler, 1.26 tonnes (2021/22: 1.43 tonnes) of straps and 3.36
tonnes (2021/22: 3.92 tonnes) of stretch film were consumed. The
intensities of the packaging materials used are as follows.

Packaging Material Indicators

BRYRER

KPI A2.5

KPI A2.5

Packaging material per unit produced

BEMEEZBEMHE

Polystyrene Box and Paper Box

TaBakfa
Filler

ERY)

Strap

e

Stretch Film
Bz

The Group will strive to source responsibly. We will continue to work
with our supplier to continually improve in seeking greener alternatives
and minimize the use of packaging, where practicable or suitable
options exist.

Climate Change

As a part of the Group’s ESG strategies formulation, the Board has
an overall responsibility for overseeing the Group’s climate- related
risks and opportunities. Our ESG Working Group regularly review and
identify climate-related issues that may pose risks to the Group in the
short, medium and long term. The Group has considered the potential
climate-related risks in respect of the recommendations of the Task
Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures. The potential physical
risks and transition risks from climate change, which may pose adverse
financial impacts on the Group’s businesses, and its corresponding
mitigation strategies are shown as follows.

aEME

$Elﬁ%za%ﬁﬂzgﬁ%%@@ﬁ~ﬁ
CERY  REREEE o RNREHE
%%H%sa SOME(—Z—— /4 E : 29.34f) %

BREMEE mgm_?_—/::iﬁ-
0.32WR)E 7 ~ 1.26W (= — T FE

1.430F) R % & 3. 36u¢ﬁ(_7_—/::¢r“ :
S.O2WR)EENR - EEABEEMBEEMNT -

For the

Year ended

31 March 2022
BE-—Z2-=

=H=+—H

LEE

For the

Year ended

31 March 2023
BE-E-=

=H=+-—H

IEFE

0.171 0.136
0.171 0.136
0.001 0.001
0.001 0.001
0.006 0.007
0.006 0.007
0.016 0.018
0.016 0.018

AEBERBH B ETHRE - RIS R
MERAESIE  TEXESREREROE M
VHAITHAENEREFENERLTEERDE

KOEMR -

RAREE

¢%$Elgﬁ~ﬁ@&§%%%ﬂim—%

EEEXHERERASEENRIEARERER
&%ﬁ BMEIRE - g RERITIFETHE
ERBRHTEEAEEBEXNES - FHRRER
BHREEESE - AEEDZRBRRIEMEEY %
ﬁ%lﬁb@mﬁf  BERBERGHBERR -
BEE AN B EBEA TR B ERN

ahﬂkﬂ BERR R EEBAERRBINT
%m°

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED £ & E#RER A T

Annual Report 2022/23 FE#{E

87



88

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL & GOVERNANCE REPORT
R -#HEREBRE

potential disruption to operations
caused by new climate-related
regulations, such as restriction on
electricity consumption level.
BRREE
HMEREEBERE A RAA
MEEZBHE  ORHAER
KF o

Short-term
Potential Financial Impact | (This Reporting | Medium-term Long-term
Risk Type Low Medium " High I Period) (1-3 years) (4-10 years) Mitigation Strategy
BrENBE BH H &
B Rl B HEEW (R ERHE) (1-3%) (4-10F) RIERM
Transition Risks Policy and Legal
BERR Increased compliance costs and Regularly monitor the regulatory

environment and strictly adhere to
the Group’s emission-reduction
measures to maintain a low
emission level.
ERERAEERFL IR ETA
SBEERHEE - DURFFHEHER
KE e

Technology

Transition costs to more energy-
efficient treatment machines

and technologies, which include
costs to adopt and deploy new
processes, capital investment,
research and development
expenditures and write-offs or
early retirement of existing assets.
M

BEE EE R AR IZ R R
MR - BRERARBENR
2 BXRE  MERIURR
A E M SR AT R B X
Ao

Continue to keep abreast of the
latest development in slimming
and beauty technologies and
energy-efficient equipment.
FEZM B RET R RETRE
REBORHER o

Physical Risks
ERAR

Acute

Extreme weather conditions such
as flooding and storms that lead to
supply chain disruption, disruption
to daily operation and loss of
property and revenue.

=i

mmARMA QKR ER) S
Bt - BREEREIN
REERRSHEX -

Chronic

Increased operating costs
related to increased need for
cooling and heating due to
changing temperatures.

i3y
HRFRECBHALRHEAT
KA - ARG

Maintain a large supplier base
and set up safety measures and
contingency plans in regards to
extreme climate events.
BREANEEREN Uit
mRGEEHRI TR BERESR
BER
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Strengthen the environmental
awareness of employees to
ensure that they strictly adhere to
the Group’s energy conservation
measures.
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It is expected that the transition and physical risks do not have any
material impact on the Group’s operations. Nevertheless, the Group will
continue to monitor the climate-related risks and implemented relevant
measures to minimise the potential transition and physical risks.

SOCIAL

Overview

The Group strongly believes that the key to our success is our strong
team of qualified and experienced talents. We focus on building a
pleasant working environment for all employees and providing various
training opportunities to our employees so as to attract, motivate and
retain talents.

Compliance and Grievance

As a responsible employer, the Group has complied with all relevant
employment laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
us, including but not limited to “Employment Ordinance” in Hong
Kong, “Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance” in Hong
Kong, “Minimum Wage Ordinance” in Hong Kong, “Sex Discrimination
Ordinance” in Hong Kong, “Employees’ Compensation Ordinance” in
Hong Kong, and the “Labour Law of the PRC”, the “Labour Contract
Law of the PRC”, the “Law of the PRC on Work Safety”, the “Social
Insurance Law of the PRC”, the “Law of the PRC on the Protection
of Rights and Interests of Women” and the “Law of the PRC on the
Protection of Disabled Persons”.

Employment

The Group has established internal policies in accordance with the
relevant labour laws and regulations related to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, holidays,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits
and welfare. Our internal policies are to be reviewed by the Human
Resources Department on a regular basis to ensure that they are kept
in line with the latest applicable laws and regulations.

To ensure that our key policies are clearly and consistently
communicated to our employees, the Group has established an
“Employees’ Handbook”, which details the rights of our employees,
such as working hours, leave entitlements and other benefits and
welfare. Each employee is provided with a copy of the “Employees’
Handbook” when he/she joins the Group.

BHBELERRERS TN HARKE N EEEK
EREATE - BEWY  AREBBEERR
fRIBREER - Y EEABEEASEREELE

ERERER -
e
i

AEERE  BRAZKIBERERHAERIE
BREEZATHKR ZBAEEK - HAIRIRN/E
BEERIMR THERE Y AEERETF
EAIE - ARSI - BB RIEE AT -

BRKEAF

FRABEZEE  AEEEETHRMEEK
TEZMARBRBEIZENER  BETRRE
BZCREERDD) - BAZCRHIERATE R B
) - FEBEZCARELEKRDD) - BB Z (HERI
BGEGD)  BRZ(BREBEGRDD) ARCPEA
RAMBESEZE) - (FEARKNBELEHAR
) C(PEARKNMBEZ24EEZE)  (PEA
REMBEM G REE) - (hEARKMBEG 2 #E
BIREE) AP EARLMBERR AREE) ©

&R
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Our Team

The Group believes that a team with diversified background and equal
opportunities is indispensable to the success of our business. We strive
to ensure that our recruitment process is fair and without any
discrimination. As of 31 March 2023, the Group had a total of 227
(2021/22: 220) employees?. The breakdowns of our workforce by
gender, age group, region and employment type are as follows.

Breakdown of Workforce

% T

By Gender
=R
Male

S
Female
2

By Age
RER
<25
<25BRIA T
25-29
30-39
40-49

>50
>505% A £
By Region
RibE
PRC

H

HK

B

By Employment Type
RERER
Full-time
T
Part-time

e

2 The scope of this ESG report only covers the operations of provision of
beauty and slimming services in Hong Kong and distribution of skincare
and cosmetic products in the PRC.
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NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES BY GENDER
IN 2022/2023
RIBZZ Z=5EE4REs 2EEHE

Female B Male
Z Btk

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES BY AGE GROUP
IN 2022/2023
R-B-Z —=FERFRANENI 2EEKE

Below 25 25-29 M 30-39 M 40-49 I Above 50
<26BRPAT 26-29 30-39  40-49  >50mRAAL

10%

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES BY REGION
IN 2022/2023
R-B-Z /—=FERMESS 2 EEHE

Hong Kong B PRC
o +

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES BY EMPLOYMENT
TYPE IN 2022/2023
R-B-— —=FEREREZIS 2EEHE

Full Time B Part Time
25 b3
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During the Reporting Period, 46 employees left the key operating units
of the Group in Hong Kong and Shanghai, with total employee turnover
rate of 20%. The breakdowns of employee turnover rate of the Group
by gender, age group and region are as follows.

Percentage of Employee Turnover Rate

BERKAE

By Gender
=B
Male

Bt
Female
Zi

By Age
RER
<25

<253 AN
25-29
30-39
40-49

>50

>B0BR A £
By Region
Rt &
PRC

A E

HK

B

Welfare and Benefits

The Group has established a fair and reasonable remuneration policy
with the principles of fairness, incentive and legality. For effective
personnel management, we offer rewards (e.g. promotion) and inflict
punishments (e.g. warning and dismissal) according to the employees’
performance and conduct.

Employees are entitled to all statutory holidays, leave and welfare as
stipulated in the national and local laws and regulations, including but
not limited to, paid maternity leave, marriage leave, compassionate
leave, compensation leave and annual leave. In addition, we offer staff
discount and medical insurance to our employees.
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Child Labour and Forced Labour

The Group does not tolerate the recruitment of child labour and the
use of forced labour, and ensures that the labour contracts signed with
its employees are on fair, equal, voluntary and mutually agreed basis.
Our recruitment is subject to a stringent internal review process that
includes verifying personal information of applicants. For instance, the
staff member who is responsible for recruitment collects the identity
proof from candidates to ensure that the age of candidates fulfils the
requirements as stipulated by the law. Any use of false document will
be deemed as fraudulent and any related signed labour contract will be
deemed invalid by the Group.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with relevant
employment laws and regulations, including but not limited to the
“Law of the Protection of Minors in the PRC”, the “Provisions on the
Prohibition of Using Child Labour” in the PRC. All our employees were
over the age 18, and had been properly employed in accordance with
the requirements of all applicable laws and regulations. The Group does
not use any unlawful or unfair means to restrict the employee benefits
and rights enjoyed by its employees. No non-compliance incidents or
grievances were noted by the Group during the Reporting Period.

Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-discrimination

The Group always endeavors to provide a fair and impartial working
environment where the employees are treated equally and paid due
respect. For the recruitment and promotion process, all employees and
candidates are assessed based on their competence, performance,
qualification and contribution irrespective of their nationality, race,
gender, age, religion, physical ability, sexual orientation, skin colour,
marital status or family status. The Group has enforced policies that
prohibit discrimination and harassment. The Group strives to create a
workplace free of bullying, belitting or sexual harassment.

Health and Safety

The Group is dedicated to providing a safe working environment for all
our employees. Occupational health and safety of our employees are
always our top priority and we make every effort to minimize potential
occupational hazards.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with the relevant
laws and regulations, including but not limited to, the “Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance” in Hong Kong and the “Law of the PRC
on the Prevention and Treatment of Occupational Diseases .

To protect our employees from all kinds of workplace hazards, a
comprehensive set of policies has been established in regard to
occupational health and safety management. Stringent control
measures are in place during our daily operations to ensure that a high
standard of hygiene is maintained throughout the treatment process.
For instance, cosmetologists are required to put on personal protective
equipment, such as surgical masks, protective goggles and gloves,
when performing medical and beauty treatments.

The Group committed to protecting the health of our stakeholders
has remained steadfast, so we adapted by effective mitigations and
implemented additional measures while the business was affected
by the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19”). The precautionary
measures include, but not limited to, more frequent cleaning and
sterilizing of the workplace, provision of hand sanitizers and surgical
masks and requiring employees to record their body temperature on
a daily basis. We have worked hard to keep the company and all with
whom we do business safe and healthy.

Moreover, the Group has established “Safety Management Guidelines”
for the use of special equipment and tools, such as needles, laser
machine, forklift and slimming machine. The Group ensures that its
employees are certified before assigning them to operate special
equipment. The certificates of the employees are properly retained
during the service period of the respective employees. The Human
Resources Department closely monitors the validity of these certificates.

In order to raise the awareness of health and safety at the workplace,
the Group provides regular safety training to employees who are
responsible for operating forklifts. In case of any work-related injuries,
the Group will take all necessary measures to make sure that proper
medical care is offered to the relevant employee. During the Reporting
Period, we have organized training sessions in respect of forklift
operations for all relevant employees, covering safety measures in
operations and maintenance of forklifts.
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Furthermore, the Group has developed an emergency plan in regard
to fire accidents. We have equipped our office and stores with
sufficient fire equipment, such as fire extinguishers and fire hydrants.
The equipment is under regular checks to confirm they are in good
condition. Fire and emergency drill are organized on a regular basis to
familiarize our employees with the protocols for emergency situations.

In the past three years including this Reporting Period, there were three
cases of work-related injuries, resulting in a total of 187 lost days as we
have pledged to provide sufficient days of sick leave for our employees
to compensate for their injuries. During the Reporting Period, there
were two case of work-related injury and resulted in 183 lost days was
reported. Due to the dedicated efforts was made, there has been zero
work related fatalities for the past three years.
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For the For the For the
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Occupational health and safety statistics 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
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Work-related fatalities 0 0 0

TYEEBRT R 0 0 0

Work-related injuries 2 cases 0 1 case

IE 2% 0 18

Lost days 183 days 0 4 days

TRE)REL 183K 0 4K
Development and Training BRERIE

The Group regards employees as our most valuable assets. Thus, we
place great emphasis on personal development of our employees. A
wide range of training programmes are provided to our employees
every year to enhance their knowledge and capabilities. Orientation
training sessions are provided to newly recruited employees by their
department supervisors. The orientation training covers an introduction
of our Group, corporate culture, code of conduct and safety
regulations.

Moreover, regular training on technical skills and customer services
are provided to our employees to make sure that all employees
have sufficient knowledge and skills to provide quality services to
our customers. Upon the completion of the aforementioned training,
our staff members are equipped with professional knowledge for
performing treatments and handling customers’ demands.
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In addition, employees are encouraged to attend external training  Itt4h » FFIERENE B 2 NS0 SPE2 I ERAR N s 8
courses and seminars that help them strengthen their knowledge MBI EIRA TIEMBRES - EEIEEHE
and expertise at work. Fees incurred for the courses or seminars are 1% * BEARRBSGHEREL 2 EA R AEBER -
sponsored by the Group upon management’s approval.

During the Reporting Period, 58.1% of our total employees have R #EHIM » HfIEEH ] 258.1% 2 TR IE
completed training. The Group has conducted 575 hours of training 3l - AEB B ETA HL575/\E 2| - MER
in total, while the average training hour completed per employee was 18 8 Il 2 FH 5 &152 53/ \6 - B SIS
2.53 hours. The breakdown of employees who took part in training 3| Z1& B M B4 E S 2 F19E 3 8UR B M &
and average number of training hours per employee by gender and  {E485EI5 Z BAARLN T -

employment category are as follows:

For the
Year ended
Average training hours completed per employee 31 March 2023
BE—_ZE_—_=
=A=+-—H
BEEETRZ I ZTFIGRFH LHEE
By Gender
=R
Male 1.86
HiE
Female 2.97
g
By Employment Category
REEER
Entry Level 2.65
LS
Middle Level 2.33
AR
Management Level 1.50
=S

Percentage of total employees trained

eESEIEER DL

By Gender

b gl

Male 29.5%
Bt

Female 70.5%
g

By Employment Category
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Entry Level 82.6%
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Middle Level 14.4%
AR

Management Level 3%
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Supply Chain Management

The Group recognizes the importance of supply chain management
on its sustainable development. We are committed to establishing
long-term and harmonious relationships with all our suppliers. Hence,
the Group cooperates and communicates with our suppliers closely
to maintain the high quality of products and services provided to our
customers.

The Group expects its suppliers to uphold the principles of integrity and
pragmatism, and provide products and services in strict compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations. During the selection of
potential suppliers, the Group conducts background screening to
understand the potential supplier’s scale, professional qualification,
speed of response, quality of products and services, as well as
reputation in the industry. The Group also considers environmental
protection, occupational health and safety, labour rights and
compliance with relevant laws and regulations when selecting potential
suppliers, with an aim of bringing positive impacts to the entire supply
chain. Only suppliers who have passed the background screening and
met our products and services quality requirements were added to our
list of qualified suppliers.

Approved suppliers of the Group are evaluated at least once annually
to ensure the quality of products and services acquired are up to
standard. The Group also continuously monitor and evaluate suppliers
for their record of handling environmental and social issues. Suppliers
who fail in our supplier assessment for a prolonged period of time are
to be disqualified by the Group.

During the Reporting Period, we had 9 suppliers in total, including
5 suppliers in Hong Kong, 2 in PRC and 2 in the United States. The
Group will continue to work closely with our suppliers and strive to
optimize our supply chain capabilities in order to fulfil our responsibilities
in social and environmental protection.
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Product Responsibility

The Group strictly complies with the relevant laws and regulations
relating to product responsibility that have a significant impact on us,
including but not limited to, the “PRC Product Quality Law”, “Law of the
PRC on Protection of the Rights and Interest of Consumers”, the “Tort
Law of the PRC”, the “Trade Descriptions” in Hong Kong and “Sale of
Goods Ordinance” in Hong Kong.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations related to health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to the products
and services provided by us.

Quality Assurance

The Group aspires to continuously improve our brand reputation by
ensuring the quality of our products and services.

Sound customer service is essential in maintaining long-term
relationship with our customers. Our management closely monitors the
quality of our services through feedback of our ‘mystery customers’.

To ensure that our staff members performing treatments possess
adequate knowledge and skills, they are required to hold relevant
certifications and qualifications. These certifications and qualifications
include, but not limited to, CICA diploma in International professional
beautician, International Therapy Examination Council (“ITEC”) Level 2
Diploma for Beauty Specialists, ITEC Level 3 Diploma in Facial Electrical
Treatments and ITEC Level 4 Diploma in Laser and Intense Pulsed
Light Treatments.

Moreover, standard operating procedures manuals are affixed to
the machines to ensure work consistency. Regular inspections and
maintenance work are performed to ensure that all our machines are
well-functioning. Shop managers are required to immediately report any
machinery malfunctions and defects to the head office for repair and
maintenance.
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The Group offers high quality products, and we strive to minimize our
product liability risk. Before launching any new products, we request
samples from the suppliers or factories and engage a third-party
professional to perform quality control inspections on the samples.
Products are only launched if they comply with Good Manufacturing
Practice (“GMP”) Guidelines. During the Reporting Period, no products
sold or shipped were subject to recalls for safety or health reasons.

Complaints Handling Procedures

Customers’ opinions and feedback help to drive our continuous
improvement and are vital to our pursuit of excellence. The Group has
established various communication channels (e.g. website, customer
service hotline and Customer Service Department), aiming to better
address customers’ concerns.

The Group makes every effort to promptly investigate and resolves
all disputes and complaints lodged by the customers. All complaints
received are referred to and handled by the Sales Team. Upon the
receipt of a compliant, the responsible personnel will investigate into
the matter and take appropriate action accordingly. If a reported
complaint on product quality is confirmed and is found to be caused
by the supplier/factory, the Group will terminate the agreement with the
relevant supplier or factory and may take appropriate legal actions, if
necessary.

To ensure customers’ satisfaction, we proactively seek feedback from
our customers. If our customers are not satisfied with a particular
package that they have purchased from us, we will reach the relevant
customer to offer an exchange of another package. In the last resort,
we may offer refund to our customers upon the approval of Department
Head of Sales and Operations.

During the Reporting Period, the Group received no material complaint
relating to product and service quality.
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Personal Data Privacy

During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with the “Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance” in Hong Kong, “Personal Information
Protection Law of the PRC” and the “Cybersecurity Law of the PRC”
in collecting, processing and using the customers’ personal data. In
order to build customer trust and loyalty, the Group has established
measures to reduce the risk of employees leaking confidential
information. Our customer information is properly stored in our secured
information technology system with access restrictions and in a locked
cabinet for those in hardcopy.

The Group strictly prohibits the use of customers’ private data for any
purposes other than what has been stated in the customer contracts.
Disciplinary action is to be taken against the employee who has been
discovered of misappropriating customers’ private data.

In order to raise employees’ awareness of customer data protection,
we conduct regular training to provide clear guidance on proper
handling of customers’ personal data.

Intellectual Property Rights

During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with laws and
regulations regarding intellectual property rights in Hong Kong and the
PRC that have a significant impact on us, including, but not limited to,
the “Copyright Ordinance” in Hong Kong, “Trademark Law of the PRC”,
“Civil Code of the PRC” and the “Copyright Law of the PRC”.

Currently, the Group has a number of trademarks registered in Hong
Kong and the PRC. A Trademark Register is maintained by the Chief
Operating Officer to monitor the validity of the Group’s intellectual
property concerned. The Trademark Register includes information such
as trademark logo, trademark number, registration date, validity period,
and registration status, etc.

Moreover, the Group acts proactively to enforce intellectual property
rights against third-party infringers. The Chief Operating Officer is
responsible for identifying any unauthorized use of the trademarks by
third-party. Legal actions are taken in due course upon identification of
any trademark infringements.
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Anti-Corruption

During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with all relevant
laws and regulations relating to prevention of bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering, including but not limited to, the “Prevention
of Bribery Ordinance” in Hong Kong, the “Criminal Law of the PRC”,
the “Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC” and the “Anti-Money
Laundering Law of the PRC”.

The Group prohibits any acts of corruption and bribery committed by
our employees. Our “Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy” clearly sets out
guidelines for the acceptance of gifts. Under the policy, all employees
are required to exercise caution and judgment when accepting gifts.
Gifts should not be accepted if they are in value higher than HK$200.

Moreover, our whistle-blowing policy clearly sets out the procedures
and channels for reporting corruption and fraud cases. As stipulated
in the policy, all employees should immediately report any suspected
corruptions or fraud cases to the Group. After a potential case has
been reported, investigation will be conducted with due care. For any
proven corruptions or fraud cases, management will take appropriate
action immediately.

In case of conflicts of interest, our employees must declare their
personal interests and report the matters to management of the Group.
Employees are strictly prohibited to abuse their power and/or take
advantage of their position for personal gain.

Since the Group’s business is not highly exposed to the risk of
corruption, no training of such area was held during the Reporting
Period. All directors received training on corporate governance prior
to the Group’s listing or at the time of joining the Group, so that they
are aware of their duties and responsibilities on integrity. The Group
is planning to provide and subsidize training of anti-corruption to its
employees and director in the next reporting year. During the Reporting
Period, the Group was not aware of any violations related to corruption,
bribery, extortion, fraud or money laundering.

R&E5
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Pz FERs R ES R | RS MR g 2 15
5l o REBEZBEK - 2REENZMNBERF VAR
BITERELHE - BETEEREEREIB200
BITTZ BB

BEAN - B2 BRI W B B R BT RIREF
BERZEFKRE - HWZBERAEIA - FiH
BE R ANAAREERE RIS HRE)THKGFE
= BRAEERE  RASFEETAZE - F
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2178 -
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AEBEREEREEER - RAIBREEREER
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CHERERRS

Community Investment

The Group understands the importance of giving back to the
society and our social responsibilities. The Group focuses its area
of contribution in education and health of the community. We are
committed to building a better community and encouraging our
employees to take part in community services so as to contribute to a
more sustainable and harmonious society.

The Group has established a Volunteer Team since 2005. Voluntary
services are organized by the Team on a regular basis, with an aim of
showing love and care for the community, as well as understanding
the needs of the community in which the Group operates. During the
Reporting Period, the Group was awarded “Caring Company” by the
Hong Kong Council of Social Service for over 15 consecutive years.

The Groups understands that financial support would greatly benefit
people in need. During the Reporting Period, the Group made
donations to various charitable organisations in Hong Kong and the
PRC to provide financial aid to people with financial difficulties.

Resources that we have contributed to the community during the
Reporting Period are detailed in the following table (KPI B8.2).

Community Indicators

HEER
KPI B8.2
KPI B8.2

AEBRARNELS I SEEZEEN - &K
EZ2EIEMBEBRERHEREE - BB

BB IE=§ZEJJ1EE%§@&I£HW% " A
BRAFEIMELE -

AEEE _TTRAFEXIETEK - ZEKE
HENETIRY  TREEEZZERMIE - WE
BASEREMELRZHE - RREHE - K
SECBEEE T AFREEELEMBEH SRR
[ SRR AR -

AEERBD  MBRXEBEERTEALAKRR
B RBENHE  AREBRTEELTEZH
REAR  RAMBRHEMNATRENEED -

R|mESH - BMRtRER 2 ERR TRFS
(KPI B8.2) °

For the
Year ended
31 March 2023

BE-—%=-=
=A=+-—H
IEFE

Resources contributed to education, environmental concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport

(Amount in HK$)
TE¥E B BIFK - @F-
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL & GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - #HEREBRE

GEM LISTING RULES - APPENDIX 20: GEM LR Bl - 8220 : I]RIE -
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE &Kk ER#i&iso]
REPORTING GUIDE

Part A: Environmental BRI RE
ESG Aspects Related Section Remarks
BiE HEREREE HHEER B
A1. Emissions
Al BERR

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and Environmental — Overview, Emissions,
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating Hazardous and Non-Hazardous Wastes,
to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and  Use of Resources

land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

BHAERMAERBHN - MKRLHNES  AEREEE RE-BE W FEREEEE
BEYNELESOBERETHRTAREAZENEMEEZLR W BREA

RO ER -

KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emission data. Emissions

BB SRR AT 1 BE IR SR AR BEPBUR - B

KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emission in total (in tonnes) and, where Emissions

appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per

facility).

BREIIEFAM R ERBAHNE CAEETE) R(ER)® i

EWNASESEN - BIERBE)

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Hazardous and Non-Hazardous Wastes
appropriate, Intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per

facility).

FREMEFAMINELEEEEVASECAAZ) R(E BAEREEEEY
REEWMAGESSN  BERBAE) -

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, Hazardous and Non-Hazardous Wastes
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,

per facility).

BRETIEEMAMEEEEEEYRE UHEAE) R(NE BEREZTEEYD
RAEEMANBESSN - BIERBE) °
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ESG Aspects Related Section Remarks

R -HEREREM HEAEE fast

KPI A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps take to ~ Emissions

achieve them.

BB DR IR AT SH IR R HE BB VIR b SR PR AS AR o 713,87

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous Hazardous and Non-Hazardous Wastes
wastes are handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set

and steps taken to achieve them.

BRGEVEFAIHMREEENEZEZYN L Ml AEREZTERY

FRETSZHYRRE B AR R AE B L B R AT SRy 2P 5 -

A2. Use of Resources

A2. ERERA

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water Energy and Water Consumption
and other raw materials.

BRUEAER(BIEIR KR EARMED B ECR BER R AKCHRE

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type. (e.g. Energy and Water Consumption
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ’000s) and intensity (e.g. per

unit of production volume, per facility).

BEETUERARBREI DM EER SHEZERWE - | RERKER

oM @REUTHEFTRSAZE) REE(ASGES B -

BERETHE) ©

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of Energy and Water Consumption
production volume, per facility).

FRETIEZA2BFKEREE(MAGESEN - BIERE RIIKERE

FTHE) -

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and Energy and Water Consumption
steps taken to achieve them.

BB DIERA2 SR FTR] LB RE AR R B R RAERE R RIKERE

L B AR PTEREXEY 255K o

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing Energy and Water Consumption
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and

steps taken to achieve them.

BB DR R A2 AHE ISR EVE R 7KR E Rl BERIFERE - AP B8R RIKERE

RN AR B RERAEIE LB EMRRA LR -

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in  Packaging Materials

tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

PR BESIERA2 SR AT A B EM R E (U E) R (0 BEME
BR)BEESMEE -
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ESG Aspects

R HERERED

A3. The Environmental and Natural Resources
AS. RIER RARER

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.
BRBEITABRRBERRRERENERZBHBE

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on
the environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.
FREMIEFAS IR EBEHHRBERRAERNERTE
RERMEBFHATENTE -

A4. Climate Change

Ad.RIRBL

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-
related issues which have impacted, and those which may
impact, the issuer.

BRI MEHER LA HETAEERENERRIRIEBE
BB -

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer,
and the actions taken to manage them.

BREMIERMABLER R gHETAEERENERX
RIREAEE REHITE -

Related Section Remarks

HEAE B

Emissions, Hazardous and Non-
Hazardous Wastes, Use of Resources
Y BEREBEZEERY - BREA
Emissions, Hazardous and Non-
Hazardous Wastes, Use of Resources

B - AEREEERY - BRER

Climate Change

TR,

Climate Change

TRE L
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Part B: Social o HE
ESG Aspects Related Section Remarks
BE - HEREREM HEREE B
B1. Employment
Bi. EfE
Information on the policies and compliance with relevant Compliance and Grievance

laws and regulations that have a significant impact

on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal,

recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,

equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and

other benefits and welfare.

ERATERE BEREA  LERS  BREY - FE#Ee - SHREF
Zrlt - RIER A REMFS RABF R BER M ETHETAR
BAXEBNERRROIBNEHR -

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, Our Team
age group and geographical region.

BRBE SRR R R - BERE - FieAR R DH B2 BB
EEHEE -

KPI B1.2 Employment turnover rate by gender, age Our Team
group and geographical region.

FASRAAMUIBIEB 20 MRl - FiAR RMEEI D HESRAL K< EX
B2. Health and Safety

B2.ZREZE

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant Health and Safety
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the

issuer relating to providing a safe working environment

and protecting employees from occupational hazards.
EARELZE2THERBLREBEEHEBEMEENBRLE RBREEZSR
STHETABEAZENEBEZZLROINER -

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities Health and Safety
occurred in each of the past three years including the

reporting year.

BARGEMIEEB2ABRE=F(EERFE)BFAITHNA ERELSE

b -

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and Safety
BSRERIEEB2 2R T BB TIFAE - REEZS

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety Health and Safety
measures adopted, how they are implemented and

monitored.

FARAE IR IRB2 MM AT R B X R R E L 2 - ARE REERZE
RHITRERT A -

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED {6 & E#RERA T

1
06 Annual Report 2022/23 FE#{ &



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL & GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - #HEREBRE

ESG Aspects Related Section Remarks

R -HEREREA HEAE et

B3. Development and training

B3. & K&

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills Development and Training
for discharging duties at work. Description of training

activities.

BRARTEE BT IEBE N MBS R RAHEE - wdiFdE  BEKF

g o

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender Development and Training
and employee category (e.g. senior management, middle

management).

BREBIEEBIARMANREERAN(WSRERE PREE FTREIEY
BE)ESHNXIEEBDL

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per Development and Training
employee by gender and employee category.

R EMIEEB3 R RIREEERED  BREETHTI BRERREI

FOREPLSS

B4. Labour standards

B4.% T %8|

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant Child Labour and Forced Labour
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on

the issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour.
BEAMIEETHREETHRRRETHRETABEAZEN EIR®RHSST
MR MR PIEER -

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment Child Labour and Forced Labour
practices to avoid child and forced labour.

R E S EBA R IR B AN EEABRE T RAS ZEIREHET

BT

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such Child Labour and Forced Labour
practices when discovered.

FRENIEEBI M EERER B AR ERBBABERAMERER EIRBHSET

B2 o
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ESG Aspects

BB HEREREE

B5. Supply chain management
B5. fit g E =

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of

the supply chain.

ERHEENRERTGRARBOR -

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.

BB A e IEBs R R Bl MR 2L E -

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging

suppliers, number of suppliers where the practices are

being implemented, how they are implemented and

monitored.

BB SR Bs. 2 B IE MR IEN  mERITEH
EOIMHEEEE - ARERAEOINRITRERTX -

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify

environmental and social risks along the supply chain,

and how they are implemented and monitored.

RAR A e 1EBs. S A AR R S ERSNRE TS
FERREMED] - ARMBEMITRERG X -

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and services when
selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

BA B2 4E 1R BE At L BRIE B R A (R (2 2 IR IR mn M AR
BEMED] - URAEBMITRERTE -
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ESG Aspects

Big - HERERER

B6. Product responsibility
B6. EmEE

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant

laws and regulations that have a significant impact on

the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising,

labelling and privacy matters relating to products and

services provided and method of redress.

BHMEMERNBRBNERELZ S  BS

LA R iR 7 R IR BB <F

RO ERL -

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped

subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.

R ENIEEB I D EHE EXEMmARP R L 2 HERIEH
[ EEGIER N

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service-related

complaints received and how they are dealt with.

RA B2 48 1R B6 25 S B 1O B o M BR TS RO AR SR BB A BT 75

E e

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing

and protecting intellectual property rights.

BAR B U 17 B6.3 it B 4 o RIS AR ERE B VB -

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and

recall procedures.

RARENUEIEBR6 4RI E ERTIBE NEMBWIERF -

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection

and privacy policies, how they are implemented and

monitored.

BB IR 12 B6.5 4 it

HITMEERFIE o

BREMBER
HETANBEAZENEREER

15 & EERMRERALEBBE - ARAH

Related Section Remarks

HEAE B

Product Responsibility

EmAE

Quality Assurance

BE8RE

Complaints Handling Procedures
KR ERIBIR T

Intellectual Property Rights

AHERE

Quality Assurance

BERHE
Personal Data Privacy

BEABERALE
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ESG Aspects Related Section Remarks
RE HERERED HEREE i

B7. Anti-corruption

B7. R&ES

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant Anti-Corruption

laws and regulations that have a significant impact on

the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money

laundering.

BRI - $1R - HEFROARBMEE RETHETARE RES
BEARFENHEBERRAPINER

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding Anti-Corruption
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its

employees during the reporting period and the outcomes

of the cases.

BRAEMIEFEBTINREHRHETASIRERREYEEFLE RES
MBESHRARGNE B RFABR -

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and Anti-Corruption
whistle-blowing procedures, how they are implemented

and monitored.

BB DR BT 2B S M R B - A RMEBERITR RES
BEEAE -

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided Anti-Corruption

to directors and staff.

ARG SEEBT M MEE R E TRENREFHF - R&S

B8. Community investment

B8.itERE

Policies on community engagement to understand the Community Investment

needs of the communities where the issuer operates and to

ensure that its activities take into consideration the

communities’ interests.

ERAUMEBER2HEHRTREEMCHAEBRTENBREAEZLIHE HRIEE
ZRM RN EEBR -

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, Community Investment
environmental concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).

FARENIEEBAE T ERERE(WHE  REFHE - HIF HERE

koo 2R Xk - BE) -

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus Community Investment

area.
AR A UIEIEBS.2E BT E R F IR IR i B IR (AN & S8 sk HEEE
) °
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BT R

@ pakertilly
R B (28] P

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Sau San Tong Holdings Limited

EEEZERBRAAE

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sau San
Tong Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set
out on pages 123 to 252, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2023, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2023 and of its consolidated financial performance and consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BEEEERERAFZERR
ZBM R HEN RS

(RESHESEME L HERLA])

=R

A BEN AT IR H ) B BXF 12825252
B EERAERATRENEB QR (5HE
(BB 2HEEMBERR  LEAVBHRERE
BER_ZE_=F=A=+t—HAZEEHBEKRR
X URBERALFEZREERR  HEH
ahEMEERRR SERREPHRNEER
EMEBRARGAVBHRERME  HEhERBE2
SRITBRRME -

BPRE  SAPBRRREZ LGOS
([BEGFERE)BEMZEBMEHRSER
(EFEMBRESENDEERA TR &S
BR-_Z_=F=A=+—RAZHEEHKNKR
UERBEZBULEFEZGEAMBRRAMGAES
mE YEBREBRAGI < HBEREZ AR
8 o

.
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Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &8 Z#REFR A 7
Annual Report 2022/23 FERE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BT R

The Key Audit Matter
EREREE

Key judgements relating to impairment testing of goodwill

BREERER 2 B

How the matter was addressed in our audit

RMELBNAERESEE

Refer to notes 2(e), 2(k)(i)) and 15 to the audited consolidated financial statements

BRI E G B RITFIRE M E2() ~ 2()(i) %15

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying amount of the Group’s
goodwill was mainly allocated to a cash-generating unit
(“CGU) in relation to the provision of beauty and slimming
business in Hong Kong amounting to HK$15,588,000.
MRZBEZ=F=ZA=+—R0 - EBE5EHEBZEEHEZTE
PRE—HEENREBREETIRMBEB  REELE
fL(ReEEER]) - 515,688,000 7T °

The assessment of the recoverable amount of goodwill
is based on the future business prospect and forecast
performance of the business. Due to its inherent uncertainty
involved in forecasting and discounting future cash flows,
which are the basis of the assessment of the recoverable
amount of this CGU, impairment review of goodwill is one of
the key judgemental areas that our audit focused on. There
is a risk that the key assumptions, estimates and judgements
on which the calculations are based upon are inappropriate
and that goodwill is overstated as a result.

FE AT E e ERBERREBI R REBRREAEL
FTG o BN ULIR & 2 A BB AL 2 PIE) & B AT Al P K 4R TR
REBRARBERERNE LS R TAMEAE - WEEZR
BERIRBEMEZMET AP —E@ARAGEHE - @Ak
ERFTEMERE 2 BRMER - A5t RAB AL NEE -
SIHEAREE -

Our audit procedures in this area included:
BN E 2 EZRFEE

evaluating and challenging the reasonableness on
the key assumptions and methodologies used by the
management with reference to relevant historical/
market information, in particular those relating to the
sales growth rate and the Group’s pre-tax discount
rate;

REZHEERESE,/TiHERE  TERERAERER
FRAZARBERFEZAEN  LHEEMIBEES
RER BEEBZHATRERX

assessing and challenging the cash flow projections
prepared by the management, including assessing
historical accuracy of management’s estimates and
comparing historic actual results to those budgeted to
assess the quality of management’s forecasting;
HMEREREREMRECIRERETAR - B
EEEBTMTZERNE  UERLRBABKRERR
B UGS EEBEAN EX
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The Key Audit Matter
EREEREBE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEMELRNAREESEE

Key judgements relating to impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

FEBERERR 2R (E)

Refer to notes 2(e), 2(k)(ii) and 15 to the audited consolidated financial statements (Continued)

ERHEE A A R AN E2(0) 2K 16 (&

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &8 Z#REFR A 7
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assessing the robustness of the forecasts to changes
in assumptions, including operation growth beyond
the 2024 detailed forecast, long-term growth rates
and discount rates used in the model to assess
appropriateness of the carrying amount of the goodwiill;
and

FHMETRRERREFSH BTN - BE T _MFFAH
RN IR - Eﬂﬁiﬁwﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ
o FHEEECREERGTHEE &

assessing the adequacy of the disclosures relating
to those assumptions to which the outcome of the
impairment test is the most sensitive, that is, those that
have the most significant effect on determination of the
recoverable amount of goodwill.
HEERRENRERE PR LZEREZIEEZ
BRE  MHETHEIRECHRENKREATEL
&



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BT R

The Key Audit Matter
EREREE

Valuation and existence of loans and interest receivables

EREF RN B Z HERFHE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

RMELBNAERESEE

Refer to notes 2(k)(i), 2(m), 19 and 29(a) to the audited consolidated financial statements

AR EIZ AR A B IR AN aE200)0) ~ 2(m) ~ 19 29(a)

The Group recognised loans and interest receivables initially
at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost in the
consolidated statement of financial position. As at 31 March
2023, the carrying amount (net of loss allowance) of the loans
receivable and interest receivables were HK$63,072,000 and
HK$84,000 respectively.
EXEBVSERATERRBKRERRIE  MEABRES
M MARREEKEAERRBEREAE - KT =
FZA=+—H  ERERREKFE 2 REENRER
&%) 9 511 /563,072,00074 7T % 84,000/ 7T

The measurement of expected credit losses (“ECL”) requires
the application of significant judgements which include the
identification of exposures with a significant deterioration in
credit quality, and assumptions used in the ECL model such
as the probabilities of default, loss given default, expected
future cash flows and forward-looking macroeconomic
factors.

BHEEER(RBEEFE) ZFAB8RELERAE - 8
BRRGEEERANRBEEZ AR - RAREEEBEEXMR
ERAZRE  WEQZAEIE BHBBEE - FEHRKER
EmERAIERBEERZE -

Due to the significance of loans and interest receivables
(representing approximately 7% of total assets) and inherent
uncertainty in such estimates, we considered this as a key
audit matter.
HRERERRFEBRR(UGEELTELNT%) RZF M
RAREFRETHERE  WEAMRZEELMERERSE
I8 o

Our audit procedures in this area included:
BN A EEZRFBE

° obtaining and reviewing the sample of loan agreements
(including supplemental agreements and loan extension
agreements, if any) and agreeing the principal amounts,
interest rates, maturity dates and other information to
the Group’s accounting records;
DEREHERBR I EN(BEMAHERERL
Hinz(wA))  YRAE BESfEgE#H A
B A ZIEE REMBE

° testing of controls designed and applied in the
process of approving and granting loans, subsequent
monitoring of repayment status and of any loan
extensions;

FHE R EFGBIE P ATt KB R 2 T8
A HBEREFIRAREMERTE

o assessing the effectiveness of key controls over
the application of the impairment methodology,
the governance for the ECL models, inputs and
assumptions used by the Group in calculating the ECL;
AEEAREE @RS RREEBERRAZE
B BXEERGEEREEEERMA B ARE
MR 2 BRI
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B & A HRE

The Key Audit Matter
EREEREBE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEMELRNAREESEE

Valuation and existence of loans and interest receivables (Continued)

FERERRFE 2 HERFE(E)

Refer to notes 2(k)(i), 2(m), 19 and 29(a) to the audited consolidated financial statements (Continued)

R RBHEE A A BTSRRI 2(k))-2im) 195 29(a) (42)

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &8 Z#REFR A 7
Annual Report 2022/23 FERE

assessing the reasonableness of the Group’s ECL
models and the Group’s criteria for assessing if there
has been a significant increase in credit risk, default or
credit-impaired, and so allowances for financial assets
should be measured on a lifetime ECL basis and the
qualitative assessment;

it EXEERBMEEEREERAK ESEFEREE
FEEERELN  BONEEEEERE  BE2
MEEREBESRIEKATEHEEBEELFERTE
MET AR IR

recalculation of loan interest income recognised on a
sample basis;
BT E MR ZERMBWA

obtaining direct confirmation of loan balances from the
borrowers on a sample basis; and

MBS IERA R ER G E BRER - &

reviewing subsequent settlement records and
corroborating enquiries with the management about
the reasons for not considering a provision against any
unsettled past-due balances.

EHHRERRS  YAERESHAZTETZ R
EAREEBRERELHRBEB ZRA -
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The Key Audit Matter
EREREE

Impairment of trade and other receivables

FREWE S REREMEYKREZRE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

RMELBNAERESEE

Refer to notes 2(k)(i), 2(n), 18 and 29(a) to the audited consolidated financial statements

AR EIZ AR A B IR RN iE200)0) ~ 2(n) ~ 18K 29(a)

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s trade and other
receivables (net of loss allowance) amounted to
HK$67,121,000 and HK$94,013,000 respectively.
RZZEZ=F=A=+—H X EBEEZEKESZHE
Ko Ho A e W 7B (F1 B IS 1B B 4) 5 51l /867,121,000 7T &
94,013,000/ 7T °

Loss allowance for trade and other receivables are based on
management’s estimate of the lifetime ECL and 12-month
ECL to be incurred respectively, which are estimated by
taking into account the credit loss experience, ageing of
overdue trade receivables, debtors’ repayment history and
debtors’ financial ability and an assessment of both the
current and forecast general economic conditions, all of
which involve a significant degree of management judgement.
EWE 5 RIB R EAM R IE BEBETIREERED A
HBESX 2 KATEHREEEBEERI2EAEREEEFE MG
SATCEREREEBRELR BAHEWESHIAL KKk - &
BABRE £ RES AR N EL AT R E a1 & Fa 8
BREERAAEL 2FH WEMERERAREIR
EIRE 2 A -

We identified assessing the recoverability of trade and other
receivables as a key audit matter because the assessment of
recoverability of trade and other receivables and recognition
of loss allowance are inherently subjective and requires
significant management judgement, which increases the risk
of error or potential management bias.

AR R (S FE U E 5508 N E b R IR 2 AT a1
—IEMREGFFEE - RE/N HEKE S HIE K H AR
FRBEZAKEEEEREEBHEFERANIEHMN - YA
EREFELERAG  AMEGNRELBEERERRZ
JEE

Our audit procedures in this area included:
BN A E EZRFBE

° evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness for key internal controls which govern
credit control, debt collection and estimate of expected
credit losses;

FHEEBEGIEE  WEBB KA EHREEREZ
BB NEE S 2 REH - BITREEE R

° assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in the
trade receivables ageing report were classified within
the appropriate ageing bracket by comparing individual
items in the ageing report with the relevant sales
invoices;
iR L BUE W E 5 ROA R E 2 (8 7 IE B B R 85
SRR WM ERRRECRARE RN REEE
FRECEE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B & A HRE

The Key Audit Matter
EREEREBE

Impairment of trade and other receivables (Continued)

FREKE SRR AtERRRZRIE(E)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEMELRNAREESEE

Refer to notes 2(k)(i), 2(n), 18 and 29(a) to the audited consolidated financial statements (Continued)

R RBHEE A A BTSRRI 2K))-2n) 18 29(a) (&)

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &8 Z#REFR A 7
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assessing the reasonableness of management’s loss
allowance estimates by examining the information
used by management to form such judgements,
including testing the accuracy of the historical default
data, evaluating whether the historical loss rates are
appropriately adjusted based on current economic
conditions and forward-looking information and
examining the actual losses recorded during the
current financial year and assessing whether there was
an indication of management bias when recognising
loss allowance; and
FPRESEREMMELZZHEAERZER (B
AFHBEHREIE 2 EENL  THBEBERXESRK
BRIGBEMRARAIREEERERAE - REENA
MIRFREHF[IERER AR ERERBERE
KREGAEERERAZOR)  AHEEEMECE
BREGLFZAEE K

reviewing subsequent settlement records and
challenging management regarding their reasons for
not considering a provision against any unsettled past-
due balances.

HHHEBREERSE  VRBEEBERAKRETERME
AIRERERERTIERE CRA -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B %D HR A

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of directors and those charged
with governance for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

HibE R

ESFHEMENAR - HWEHNBRFHRAH
ZER - BETBESRAMBERER LRI
ZIZERE R

BAESEEMBRECERLBRERLMER
BRI RS BER TR 2 EE G

RBEZEAMBEHRERME - RAIZEETAMEL
XFHERZHMER  tMEERMCEH S H
RAMBHRRARMANBZBRTEZ ZIBENE
BEAEE - R EBARERERML -

HHEMERC AT TEEHEEMER B ENHE
MR RIRPIARESFHEE - sl h|E - R
PIL BAAEMARE 2R ©

EERERERGEMBRMREAK
EBeEE

EFARARARBELESTM ISR M BB
BEEANRFEARGIIZEBEREREGEY
B#EK  WSHEAMBBRELAEMATZR
R WEBERSREGEVBRERAMLEZR
FAAEBESE - DAEAR A M B R T R BKGE
HFERMEBB EAHRRAL

RimEFEVBHRRE  EFAATE BE5E
FERE 2 YRNERBR TRERFEL
BEMZER  URERFELERSER
BRIFEEERER BEEEBRIIFILEE 35
BEEMERZBERNDR -

AEAREEE BESBEZMEHAMRBIE -
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &8 Z#REFR A 7
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- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concemn.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

- HEERARELZSHEREDEER
haswm - IR 2 BRRE  BERS
FEEREHRBRNBERZIERNTHRRA
EoRmARERY BEEEZHELE
BENBREAGRE - MEMBRERSETE
EXRTHARE - MARZBREDRE TR
2EEREEIFAMBRRZEBIE -
HWABEEETE  AERTER - HAIE
REEZBENRE A HILFREZERE
AR o R RIRE SRR AT #E
By EEETHRELYE -

- HMEGRAMBERR(BREBEER) BB

2HHR  BERAE  UREAMEE
REEUAT RIS RLIEMR S RF
f o

- B ERERERAXBEHZHBER

ERRREEZERERE  UNHESHK
BERERER - RMBERS  EEYH
TREEZ - RN ERERAELEE
Fo

PIERERBEITAE - REEREFR B
BERRELREREANEAETZER - 8K
REZ R PR 2 T M BB BT B ARG -
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Leung Yun Wa.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 27 June 2023

Leung Yun Wa
Practising certificate number PO8096
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

N2
mEBmRK
For the year ended 31 March 2023
BHE-ZT-_=F=-A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTZ25)

Revenue

— Distribution sale of cosmetic and skin
care products

— Provision of beauty and slimming
services

— Provision of franchise services

— Sale of health, beauty and related
products

— Results from investments in securities

— Interest income from money lending

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue

Other gains or losses

Selling and distribution costs
General and administrative expenses

(Loss)/profit from operations
Finance costs

(Loss)/profit before taxation
Income tax expense

(Loss)/profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

(Loss)/earnings per share
Basic

Diluted

The notes on pages 131 to 252 form part of the consolidated financial

statements.

Note
MaE

LE 3
~ DIHHE MR EEE M

— R RE R AR IR

— RN A RS
- HERRE XBERBHE®D

- ELSREFRE
- REZFBHA

SHERA

E7

H W ak
H il et sk iR 4
—RRITHFX

BN

RE(BE),RR
BERA 5(@)

BRBLAT (&5 18) A 5
FrS BRI 6

FRER),ER

BER
AN/NCIEZ 2= N
FFHEARRE RS

BR(EBE), &R 9
BN

BE

B o
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2023 2022
—E_-= —E=-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
1,172,999 1,476,008
48,939 60,695
33 153
4,562 1,379
(6,149) 14,882
11,164 8,239
1,231,548 1,561,356
(1,132,424) (1,424,185)
99,124 137,171
7,538 5,997
4,885 5,230
(45,634) (46,578)
(72,242) (82,331)
(6,329) 19,489
(426) (441)
(6,755) 19,048
(7,913) (5,156)
(14,668) 13,892
(13,933) 8,952
(735) 4,940
(14,668) 13,892
HK cents HK cents
L JEAL
(17.99) 11.93
(17.99) 11.57

FABIEF252A 2T BGE M BIREKZ —
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEREsREtEZERER

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BHE-_T-_—E-A-+—HLEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABT23)

2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-__F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BtaF FET FET
(Loss)/profit for the year ER(EE),HER (14,668) 13,892
Other comprehensive (loss)/income  FREMEE (EE) Uz -
for the year, net of nil tax EEEZFE
ltems that may be reclassified EgrgeEmnBEEay
subsequently to profit or loss: HE :
- Exchange difference on translation - BEBINETS 2 B Rk
of financial statements of foreign FrEAZERZR
operations (9,300) 5,158
— Cumulative exchange gain reclassified - — M B R R]LEEZEH
to profit or loss upon deregistration DEABRZBREIER
of a subsidiary U= 4 (423) (1,658)
ltem that will not be reclassified to profit or T @ EFH D IEEBZFH
loss: |H
- Surplus on revaluation of land and - RHEERA T REFNES
buildings held for own use upon REEREMER 2EMR
change of use to investment BER
property 11 - 3,574
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FREMZEH(ER) WH
for the year (9,723) 7,074
Total comprehensive (loss)/income  FREMEE(EE), WHEE
for the year (24,391) 20,966
Attributable to: BER
Owners of the Company ZAN/NETEZZE N (21,968) 14,260
Non-controlling interests IR (2,423) 6,706
(24,391) 20,966

The notes on pages 131 to 252 form part of the consolidated financial 5131 E 52528 Z M@k R A M HRER 2 —
statements. &5 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A
e BRI
As at 31 March 2023
R-ZT=—=F=A=+—8
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTZ25)

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investment property

Intangible asset

Goodwill

Loans and interest receivables

Current assets

Inventories

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Loans and interest receivables

Amount due from a related party

Current tax recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Contract liabilities

Trade payables

Other payables and accrued charges
Lease liabilities

Interest-bearing borrowings

Current tax payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

EHDEE
Wk - BRI
ERREE
L
B

B

R B 3B R

FBEE
i
BATEFABR SRAE

FEW E 5 58
BNHRIER - Ze REMER
IR

JRE W & R e ) B,

e — 2 BAE A LKA
A4 EE AR IR
RehBReFEY

RBAE

BHERE
eI E B 500R

Hib A SRR R E R
HEAE

MEEE

e E BT IA

RBEEFHE

BEAERABAME
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Note
BtaF

11
12
18
14
15
19

16

17
18

18

19

20
25(a)

21
22
22
23
24
25(a)

2023 2022
—EC-=F T F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
95,079 96,127
3,786 6,342
15,500 15,500
14,871 -
16,220 17,196
25,215 -
170,671 135,165
7,382 15,258
107,098 97,218
67,121 100,359
94,013 79,190
37,941 101,421
3 &)

936 529
416,179 432,054
730,673 826,032
10,385 3,412
898 1,502
106,625 126,974
3,851 5,439
1,356 -
2,289 2,706
125,404 140,033
605,269 685,999
775,940 821,164
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R B R R R R

As at 31 March 2023
R-E-_=F=ZA=+—8”
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AFBTT251)
2023 2022
—E-=F T F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
MtaF FET FET
Non-current liabilities FkREBAE
Lease liabilities HEAE 23 234 1,154
NET ASSETS BEEFH 775,706 820,010
Capital and reserves ERR#HE 28
Share capital f& A 788 750
Reserves & 788,859 806,693
Total equity attributable to owners of FEBRARQATEEARSHALE
the Company 789,647 807,443
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR R A (13,941) 12,567
TOTAL EQUITY R 775,706 820,010

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 EEE@R _Z_=F XA -+t A#EREET

June 2023, o
Chan Ka Kin Mui Wai Sum
R =X 2 EER
Director Director
EE =

The notes on pages 131 to 252 form part of the consolidated financial 131 E 52528 2 M@k R A BB HRER 2 —
hvi| /AN

vl

statements. #h o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

S A 4iE 3L 4
AN = | * ﬁ g Eb '13—%
For the year ended 31 March 2023
BHE-ZT-_=F=-A=+—HIFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

C8 2]

At 1 April 2021
Changes in equity for 2022

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
for the year

Total comprehensive income
for the year
Deregistration of a subsidiary
Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests

At 31 March 2022

At 1 April 2022
Changes in equity for 2023

Loss for the year
Qther comprehensive loss
for the year

Total comprehensive loss
for the year
Issue of shares (note 28(a)(i)
Dividends paid to non-controling
interests

At 31 March 2023

The notes on pages 131 to 252 form part of the consolidated financial

statements.

i
2
2

2

it
E

B

B

£
£

£

%
B

i

Z8--£pA-H

it 4 14

R
ARt T
MEEREER

H-AMEAR
BEGESvd)t)

—E-CE
ZR=t-A

ZE-CERA-R
SCEVEREE
REE
hEfZEEE
ME2ABRES

{7ty (K E28(a))
REGECTowd)ts)

“ECCE
ZA=t-A

Attributable to owners of the Company

BRRELTHRA

Share- The PRC

based statutory Non-
Share  Share Merger Exchange payment surplus Revalaton  Other Accumuiated controlling  Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  losses  Total interests  equity
Rkt wEEE FER

BE ROER A0RE EXRE SRBE BBRE ZRRG HURE EHER 0 &%  BR B4R
HKS000 HKS000 HK$000 HKSO00 HKS000 HKS000 HKSO00 HKS000 HKS000 HKSOOD HKS000 HK$000
ér FEr TEn TEr TAr FEr TEn TEn TEr AT FEr T
750 787,794 (3637) 3563 2224 24725 - 28005 (43198) 800276 8008 808284
- - - - - - - - 892 892 4940 138%2

- - -1 - - 3574 - - 538 1766 7,074

- - - 1T - - 3574 - 892 14260 6,706 20,966

- - - - - - - - (7093 (7,003 7,093 -

- - - - - - - - - - 9240 (9.240)

- - - 1T - - 3574 - 1869 7167 4559 11726
750 787,794 (3637) 5297 2224 24725 3574 28055 (41,339 807443 12567 820010
750 787,794  (3637) 5297 2224 24725 3574 28055 (41,339) 807,443 12,567 820,010
- - - - - - - - (13933) (13933  (735) (14,668)

- - - (8,089 - - - - - (8,085 (1,688 (9,723

- - - (8,039 - - - - (13933) (21,968) (2423) (24,391)
3B 414 - - - - - - - 41n - 41
- - - - - - - - - - (24,085 (24,085)
3B 414 - (8,03 - - - - (13,933 (17,796) (26,508) (44,304)
788 791,928  (3637) (27%8) 2224 24725 3574 28,055 (55,272) 789,647 (13,941) 775,706

P
37
A

B9 -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERETRER

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BHE-_T-_—E-A-+—HLEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABT23)

2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-__F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BtaF FET FEITL
Operating activities BEEE
(Loss)/profit before taxation BB AT (B 18), & A (6,755) 19,048
Adjustments for: AT FEE .
- Interest income from money lending - MEEB 2 F B A
business 3 (11,164) (8,239)
— Fair value gain on financial assets at fair — XA FEFABRZZ S REE
value through profit or loss, net 2R EREFEE (15,951) (12,638)
- Bank interest income — SRITALBUA 4 (2,261) (1,552)
- COVID-19-related rent concession - 2019 Rim S HREEE S
R 4 (586) -
- Cumulative exchange gain reclassified ~ — —REIM B A AL 518 B
from equity to profit or loss upon B EEERE 2 A5
deregistration of a subsidiary P& 5 Wz 4 (423) (1,658)
- Dividend income from listed equity - ERARES 2R BWA
securities 4 (375) (315)
= Fair value loss on an investment - —IHEEREMEZ AEER
property 4 - 1,793
— Gain on disposal of property, plantand - HIE ¥ « #2235 R &2 R
equipment, net FEE 4 (158) (129)
- Finance costs - BEKAE 5(a) 426 441
— Depreciation of property, plant and - - MBRRRETE
equipment 5(c) 8,892 11,680
~ Depreciation of right-of-use assets -EREEERINE 5(c) 7,336 10,775
— Impairment loss/(reversal of impairment  — fEUE 5 718 I H b fE W FA
loss) on trade and other receivables, ZREEE, (REEIE
net Bm) e 5(c) 4,048 (855)
— (Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment — FEI & 2 R F 2~ ORi{EE B
loss on loans and interest receivables, e,/ REEBEFRE
net 5(c) (5,384) 2,153
~ Impairment loss on goodwill - B REEE 5(c) 976 =
~ Impairment loss on intangible assets - B\ EE RERIE 5(c) 129 =
— Write-off of other receivables — 8 H At FE M SR IR 5(c) 496 857
— Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) -EREE ()55 615 (936)
Operating (loss)/profit before changes & E&E & @ E a2 K&
in working capital (&518), = F (20,139) 20,425
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERERER
For the year ended 31 March 2023
BHE-ZT-_=F=-A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTZ25)

Decrease/(increase) in inventories

Decrease/(increase) in financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Decrease in trade receivables

(Increase)/decrease in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

Decrease/(increase) in loans and interest
receivables

Increase in amount due from a related
party

Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities

(Decrease)/increase in trade payables

Decrease in other payables and accrued
charges

Cash generated from/(used in)
operations

PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid, net
Interest received

Dividend received

Net cash generated from/(used in)
operating activities

Investing activities

Payment for the purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Payment for the purchase of an intangible
asset

Net cash used in investing activities

2023 2022
—EC-=F T F
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
BtaF FET FAET
TERL, (5 6,798 (4,135)
BAFEFABTZZEMERE
B (3 hn) 6,071 (12,761)
FEW B 5 SRIE R 23,912 40,921
TBAFRIE ~ e REARUGK
B, (19,146) 21,370
FEWREZRRF R, (8
40,656 (42,336)
JE Wy — & B 38 A - 3R TE G N
- 1)
BAHEEEN (L) 7,003 (8,204)
FET B SFRECR ),/ (110) 66
EMEMRERETERRD
(11,082) (21,237)
KRB/ (AREEEB RS
33,963 (5,892)
BT ERER (7,714) (8,867)
B EBEHFE (886) (186)
=S 15,390 8,927
B AR B 375 315
KB, (AR)EEEFH
R&FHE 41,128 (5,703)
REERE
BEWE  HBSREEZAR
(3,032 (12,426)
HEWEE - WREREHZ
Fri5 k18 189 373
BEEMEE MR
(15,000) =
ARRETES 2 HREFE (17,843) (12,053)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERETRER

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BHE-_T-_—E-A-+—HLEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

GABT25)
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
MtaF FET FEITL
Financing activities SR E
Capital element of lease rentals paid BENHERE 2D 30 (6,688) (11,058)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BENEERS ZFEIT D 30 (399) (441)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests & 1~ JE4E A% £ 25 2 A% & 35 (24,085) (9,240)
Proceed from interest-bearing borrowings Mi B{& & Z FT18 18 30 1,329 =
Net cash used in financing activities FRBEEESH2HEFHE (29,843) (20,739)
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRESZEENRD FE
equivalents (6,558) (38,495)
Cash and cash equivalents at the REPDZBEERBESESEY
beginning of the year 432,054 466,139
Effect of foreign exchange rate Exgm g
change (9,317) 4,410
Cash and cash equivalents attheend RELKZHERBESEEY
of the year 416,179 432,054

Major non-cash transactions: FEHFERERG

Addition of investment property during the year ended 31 March REBZE-_ZE-_—F=-A=+—HILFEZEREY
2022 of HK$17,293,000 was transferred from land and buildings held %3 50117,293,000/%8 7T + JYA A& EREE LY
for own use under property, plant and equipment as a result of the % - ELREFEE TN 2HFEAR T REFZ A
Group’s decision in change of its use. BMmEE YR - KESERERE -

The notes on pages 131 to 252 form part of the consolidated financial 5131 E 52528 Z M i@k A BB HRER 2 —
statements. &5 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

Company information

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 21 May 2002 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law Cap. 22, (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands and its shares have been listed on GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since 19 November 2003.

The Company has its registered office and principal place of
business at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and Room 23083,
23/F., China Insurance Group Building, 141 Des Voeux Road
Central, Central, Hong Kong, respectively.

NEER

EHEZERBERAR(RAFT IR -_TT
FEA-T - HREHAESHEFE22E LA
E(AR—FE = - BEEERIETE
FEMHETMKIAEREERAR M
EEHBE —ZT=F+—ATLBERE
BBEXZMAERDE (B GEME
m o

ARRIZAMBEREREIELEE WIS
B Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands & &8 IREE B 14155
FIR&E B KE231£2303F °

Significant accounting policies FESTBE
(a) Statement of compliance (a) EpHIEeA

The consolidated financial statements for year ended 31
March 2023 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”).

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASSs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”). A summary of
the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is
set out below.

BHE-_ZT-_=F=ZA=+—HIFE
AV BRRBIEARTRENE
NEl (G AER]) -

ZERAMBRRECREMEER
EREYBHREEMN(EFEH B RS
Q] WG EEREE LA
((EE GRS BEMZPAA @5
EREEMHREER  FEGE
Al(EEEHER D RRE) BER
REARARBERRUEROIZHER
TR - ZFHEEVBRERITNT A M
RZFIGEMRE 7 E R A ([GEM LT AR
Q) ZBRWEIRI - REBATERM
ZERGFABERMEHIIMT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AN BRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group. Note 2(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current
accounting period reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 38).

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that the financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL”) and investment property are stated at their fair
value (see notes 2(f) and 2(h)).

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &8 Z#REFR A 7
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(a)

(b)
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2(c) R AR YIR B F % FRANEE
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SEEE VB RRARREAS
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Ez A ER kB (R KT
38) ©

REMBRRZEREE

REGAMERERBRAZTEREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 37.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to

HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting

period of the Group:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 “Reference to the conceptual
framework”

“Property, plant and
equipment — Proceeds
before intended use”

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37 “Onerous contracts — cost of
fulfilling a contract”

“Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Cycle”

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9, HKFRS 16 and
HKAS 41

None of these developments have had a material effect
on how the Group’s results and financial position for
the current or prior periods have been prepared or
presented. The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

2 FESTHEER®

(b)

()

GEMBBRRZEREEE)

Bt REEREEHERT - MEs
BEHERTE 28R - AIRMEETE
FTEIRIRER - KNI FT R BB R A
& EAR - BIFMEET 2 BAf & B 12 HA R
A

EEERNERYRAVEHREREEX
FEBEEVWBERELARIELZH
ARG TABEEZ T ERRER
B 5EQ7am AL o

B ERERED
BRI S EMNAEELRS

SRR E R A A T E SR H RS
RIS ETA

FEMBHRELEL BRER M
FEIRIEFTA
BB g ER MR - HEE R
F16TRIERT A ®E FRE
F& R 2 s
IR
B gL BIEMAH -
FEITHRIEFT A B KPR
EEVBHRE LN BEWHREE
15 BB Al -FE—-N\F
B Rs R 2 Al E-FTHF
EOW - BB BHZ FRN
FA R ¥R R #
F163NEE
SRTERIE 415
ERT AR

ZEREUAEEERALSENS
BEHM T RERIBHRR L TR
B A o 5 3 KRR A
A& 5 HART R A A B AT R A
= -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AN BRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB INEEASN

BB TT2S)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. When assessing whether the Group has power,
only substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties)
are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only
to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the owners of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the owners
of the Company.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &8 Z#REFR A 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(K)(ii)).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

()  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 2(k(ii)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

2 FESTHEER®

(d)

(e)

BYRE B R RIS (F)

R R S ) = N gt )
B EBEARISHERZARLZ

2N - FTE L2 WS SUB RN
PR -

EARRB ZHBEMRREK - RETE AT
ZRERK AR EREEENER
B 5 2(K) i)

[k
BEREATME ZE8

) MEERKEZAFE  REK
B cEAFERERSER
AEEBERREBETABAE
R N EHERE R

(i) WRBEHAEREERBER
WEBEEZ AFHE -

B ()RR - BIZERAFRER

THERSEERE 2 -

PR TR AR R TR E B 18R -
EBAHELEZABEIEESH
CESBEMNNIReEESEMMAR (FE
HEREMHZHRREPER) - I
ATFERERR (R EE2k)ii) °

RERNLERSELBENE - BAR
BREZENSERFELE 2185
BEREEA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AN BRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

U]

(9)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVPL are recognised/derecognised on
the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the investment
and are initially stated at fair value while transaction costs
are recognised directly in profit or loss. The explanation of
how the Group determines the fair value of financial assets
is set out in note 29(f).

Changes in the fair value of the financial assets at FVPL are
subsequently recognised in profit or loss if the investments
do not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income
(recycling).

Property, plant and equipment

ltems of property, plant and equipment (including interest
in leasehold land and buildings where the Group is the
registered owner of the property interest (see note 2())))
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2(Kk)(ii)).

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of
that item at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation
reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset,
the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to
accumulated losses.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives at the following annual rates:

Land and buildings Over the unexpired term of lease

Machinery 10.0% — 33.3%

Furniture and fixtures 10.0% — 33.3%

Office and computer equipment 10.0% — 33.3%

20.0% or over the
remaining terms of leases
(whichever is shorter)

Leasehold improvements

Motor vehicles 20.0% — 33.3%
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 2())) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated at fair value. Any gain
or loss arising from a change in fair value or from the
retirement or disposal of an investment property is
recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from investment
properties is accounted for as described in note 2(v)(vii).

2 FESTEER®

(9)

(h)

M - BBERREE)

WERYE B LRHEREE 2E5
AERFHRRERENATIIFERRE
EEH A RSKEE B BOREK A

s

= -

T AR %R EmiEE
S 10.0% - 33.3%
REREETEEE 10.0% — 33.3%

10.0% — 33.3%

paris
R

@ >
BB il
S

HEYEEE 20.0%38%,
BHTHER

(AR HE A%

RE 20.0% — 33.3%

% - W2z MRERE B 2/ E
REHTR - MEERAREHD 2
BREEREEDE - MEID B
FEE BEAEAFHRERER
BEMB)HEEFETERHN -

REWME

BRENMERBEHERE S (RHEE2()
BEIFANLIR HEF - AR
FERESMA R, HERTHE

BREMEARFEAR - HIREYE
AP EZHREANEEREYEM
EENEMEmERNEEmER -
REWMEMGSHE WAL FE2(v)(vi)
Pt ABR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AN BRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

U]

1)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives
are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful
life of an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually
to determine whether events and circumstances continue
to support the indefinite useful life assessment for that
asset. If do not, the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from
the date of change and in accordance with the policy for
amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that
use.

(i) Asalessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has separated
non-lease components and non-lease components
are accounted for by applying other applicable
standards.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of
a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on
a systematic basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

0

Leased assets (Continued)

@

As a lessee (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AN BRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(1)

Leased assets (Continued)

0]

As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for
a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract (“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability
is remeasured based on the revised lease payments
and lease term using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification. The only exceptions
are rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and met
the conditions set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS
16 “Leases”. In such cases, the Group has taken
advantage of the practical expedient not to assess
whether the rent concessions are lease modifications,
and recognised the change in consideration as
negative variable lease payments in profit or loss in
the period in which the event or condition that triggers
the rent concessions occurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2(k)
(i) except for the right-of-use assets that meet the
definition of investment property are carried at fair
value in accordance with note 2(h). Depreciation is
calculated to write off the cost of right-of-use assets
using the straight line method over the lease term or
where it was likely the Group would obtain ownership
of the assets, the life of the assets, as set out in note

2(9).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B BHNERSN - HABTTES)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(i) Leased assets (Continued)

(i) As alessor

Where the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at
lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease
or an operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance
lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to the ownership of an underlying
assets to the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease
is classified as an operating lease.

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

0]

Credit losses from financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs”) on the financial assets
measured at amortised cost (including trade and
other receivables, loans and interest receivables,
amount due from a related party and cash and cash
equivalents).

Financial assets measured at FVPL are not subject to
the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive), discounted at
the original effective interest rate, where the effect of
discounting is material.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AN BRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

0]

Credit losses from financial assets (Continueqd)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk. In measuring
ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable and
supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort. This includes information about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
which result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of these financial assets. ECLs on
these financial assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors and an assessment of both the current
and forecast general economic conditions at the end
of the reporting period.

For all other financial assets measured at amortised
cost, the Group recognises a loss allowance equal to
12-month ECLs unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk of the financial asset since
initial recognition, in which case the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. The
12-month ECLs are losses that are expected to result
from possible default events within the 12 months
after the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B BHNERSN - HABTTES)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

()

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)  Credit losses from financial assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of default occurring
on the financial asset assessed at the end of the
reporting period with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when (i)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
(i) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information

that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest

on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a financial asset’s external or internal credit

rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in

the operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s

ability to meet its obligation to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AN BRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

0]

Credit losses from financial assets (Continueqd)
Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial assets,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk is performed on either an individual basis or a
collective basis. When the assessment is performed
on a collective basis, the financial assets are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as
past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at the end of each reporting
period to reflect changes in the financial asset’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any change in the
ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss for all financial assets with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note
2(v)(iv) is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset is credit-impaired.
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
occurred.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &8 Z#REFR A 7

Annual Report 2022/23 FERE

2 FESHEER®

(k)

FEBEREEREGRE)
() EWMEEZFEEREGE

=B mBR A E S (&)

BIERMEEZHEME - 8
REERRE S KRS Nz
TR E R R EEETT -
RFBRARNEELETH £
REERAREER RS
B BIER Rk EERRR)E

TR -

EREEBEREZ2HRYMRE
HitE ARREBEEDT
PHALZEERRES - |
HEEBEBReBZEMEHRN
BRETPHEISMERSNE
B AEERAMETREE
ZREWRZENER  LEBE
BRERYEERREFLAE

B -
HEFIBUAZ 2%

R M FE2(v) (iv) BERR 2 F B
AR BMEEZREAER
B MEEEREZEREER
Sh - ERERT - FBBAR
SREE BN (AR E 42
EREEERE)E -

il

REZHHPR  AREFGES
MEESOHRAEERE -8
LeRMEEZHEFARKRER
EETHNEEZ -BRXZHES
FHRE - REERHIRE
ERE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B4 EBsh -

BB T2S)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

@

Credit losses from financial assets (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income (Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

- it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Group determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write-off. Subsequent
recoveries of an asset that was previously written off
are recognised as a reversal of impairment in profit or
loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer

exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;
- Intangible assets;

- right-of-use assets;

- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s

statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or

not there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-

generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

()

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of other non-current assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in
use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AN BRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB INEEASN

BB TT2S)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

U]

(m)

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the ordinary
course of business, or in the form of materials or supplies to
be consumed in the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out method and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised
as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Loans and interest receivables

Loans receivable are loans granted to customers in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of loans receivable
is expected in one year or less, they are classified as current
assets, or if not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Interest receivables are interests derived from loans granted
to borrowers in the ordinary course of business.

Loans and interest receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for credit
losses (see note 2(K)(i)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B BHNERSN - HABTTES)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount
is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component are initially measured at their transaction price
and are subsequently stated at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method and including an allowance for
credit losses (see note 2(k)(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
ECLs in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 2(K)(i).

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
non-refundable consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue (see note 2(v)). A contract liability
would also be recognised if the Group has unconditional
right to receive non-refundable consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see
note 2(n)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AN BRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(a)

(1)

(s)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at invoice amounts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair
value less transaction costs and are subsequently stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs, which are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred.

Employee benefits

(i)  Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme in Hong Kong and defined contribution
government pension schemes in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”).

Contributions to mandatory provident fund as
required under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B BHNERSN - HABTTES)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(s)

Employee benefits (Continued)

@

(i)

Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans
(Continued)

The employees in the PRC are members of the
retirement benefit scheme organised by the
government in the PRC. The Group is required to
contribute, based on a certain percentage of payroll,
to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme. Contributions to
this retirement benefit scheme are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss as incurred except to the
extent that they are included in the cost of inventories
sold at the end of the reporting period.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme under
which the Group receives services or goods from its
directors, employees and other eligible participants as
consideration for share options of the Company. The
fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in share-based payment reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date using
the Binomial Lattice model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled
to the options, the total estimated fair value of the
options is spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will vest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AN BRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B S5 EERSN - S5 B TTE D)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(s)

®

Employee benefits (Continued)

(i) Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share-based payment reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
payment reserve) except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to the
market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the share-based payment
reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is
transferred to the share capital and share premium
account) or the option expires (when it is released
directly to accumulated losses).

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts
of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B BHNERSN - HABTTES)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

®

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AN BRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

®

Income tax (Continued)

When investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(h),
the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets at
their carrying value at the end of the reporting period unless
the property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the property over time,
rather than through sale. In all other cases, the amount
of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously;
or
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e Bt

5 8 = MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B4 EBsh -

BB T2S)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

®

Income tax (Continued)

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they

(u)

relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AN BRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B S5 EERSN - S5 B TTE D)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(v)

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods and provision of services in the
ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or a
service is transferred to the customer at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected to
be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

M

(ii)

(iii)

Sale of goods

Revenue from distribution sale of cosmetic and skin
care products and the sale of health, beauty and
related products are recognised at a point in time
when the customer takes possession of and accepts
the products.

Provision of beauty and slimming services

Revenue from provision of beauty and slimming
services is recognised over time when the services
have been rendered to customers.

Prepaid beauty services not yet rendered, which
are non-refundable, are deferred and reported as
contract liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position. Customers who may not exercise all
the contractual rights of the prepaid packages upon
expiry of service period, and such unutilised portion
are fully recognised in profit or loss.

Franchise income

Initial franchise income is recognised over time upon
the grant of rights, completion of the designated
phases of the franchise set-up and transfer of know-
how to the franchisee in accordance with the terms
stated in the franchise agreement. Recurring franchise
income is recognised on a pre-determined amount in
accordance with the terms as stated in the franchise
agreements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B BHNERSN - HABTTES)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

v)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method using the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost or fair value
through other comprehensive income (recycling) that
are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For
credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the asset
(see note 2(k(i)).

Dividend income

Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position initially when there
is reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the
Group for expenses incurred are recognised as other
revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the
same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and consequently are effectively recognised in
profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of
reduced depreciation expense.

Rental income

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased
asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AN BRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(w)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the Group
initially recognises such non-monetary assets and liabilities.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value
was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items,
including goodwill arising on the acquisition of foreign
operations acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the exchange reserve. Goodwill arising on
consolidation of a foreign operation acquired before 1
January 2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate that
applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or
loss on disposal is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(x)

(y)

Asset acquisition

Group of assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
assessed to determine if they are business or asset
acquisitions. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the
Group chooses to apply a simplified assessment of whether
an acquired set of activities and assets is an asset rather
than business, when substantially all of the fair value of the
gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable
asset or group of similar identifiable assets.

Where a group of assets acquired and liabilities assumed
do not constitute a business, the overall acquisition cost is
allocated to the individual identifiable assets and liabilities
based on their relative fair values at the date of acquisition.
An exception is when the sum of the individual fair values of
the identifiable assets and liabilities differs from the overall
acquisition cost. In such case, any identifiable assets and
liabilities that are initially measured at an amount other than
cost in accordance with the Group’s policies are measured
accordingly, and the residual acquisition cost is allocated
to the remaining identifiable assets and liabilities based on
their relative fair values at the date of acquisition.

Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family,

is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.
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MREEWE - ARERSRKER
ERIER - B EREENAID
NFEHETFRE A HBEESL—
MR R BRI B ER - BFHM
WEN—ZRINEBHREESTBNE
EMIERMHEITRE RIS -

i FAT Ui 8 8 4L B B PR R BB AR
TRERER  AASEBEBUEK
A ERWE B RS2 FED R
Z@EBABREEREE - HEATH
AEENBOERNQFEZ MEERE
WEERAARR - AR » EULIER
T AEBEHTAREASBEBRR
FRARASNY & BRAETT ) PRt BRI A8
MEERBBEETHEE  LHF
ERUB R AN BN URE B IRV E
FESEZERHABNEERARE -

BEAL
@ HEALFTEATEE - Bl
ATHHERBBEANKER

R -

) HAEEEEEHIEEHK
(4% 1) 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB INEEASN

BB TT2S)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(y) Related parties (Continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

U

)

(V)

(viil)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(2)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of products and services, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

3 Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are the distribution sale
of cosmetic and skin care products, provision of beauty and
slimming services, provision of franchise services, sale of health,
beauty and related products, investments in securities and
provision of money lending business.

2 FESTHEER®

3

(2)

2RI &

REVBBREAMEBILEN T RE
MER ZRERERAAREE RS
MITHRERABRT B E R P E
RAE  ERAERBIEREAEETR
X RS I E R RFHERR -

W

AP EERBEME - ERIERELEDH
TeaMEE o MAERRLUL
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PTAEAREERBEE T EEL
AIRRAIN o 3 3F 18 Bl TR Z K% 7 &6
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B S5 EERSN - S5 B TTE D)

3 Revenue (Continued)

Revenue represents the invoiced value of goods supplied to
customers, net of discounts, returns, value added tax or other
sales taxes; service income from provision of beauty and slimming
services, net of discounts; franchise income; and interest income
earned from the money lending business. The amount of each
significant category of revenue recognised in revenue during the
year is as follows:

Y gz (8)

WaEREFPAMERERRET - &
B BERIEMEER CERE KA
REZEMEERS R E T RBEK
A NEAEERA - PARREZEBRE
ZHBIA - FR - RUAERZZETE
WesBRl e RBmT

B

2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEITL
Revenue within the scope of HKFRS ERMBREEAE155
15 “Revenue from Contracts with [BEEE#HWE EER W
Customers”
Distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care D # &L AL & #E B E
products 1,172,999 1,476,008
Provision of beauty and slimming services 24t E A K 452 iR 7% 48,939 60,695
Provision of franchise services REMNBE A ERE 33 153
Sale of health, beauty and related products ~ $4&R{E - =B MIEMEE R 4,562 1,379
1,226,533 1,638,235
Revenue from other sources Hh R W 2=
Interest income from money lending business & %15 2 F| 8 U A 11,164 8,239
Fair value gain on financial assets at FVPL, AT EFAEBHZE/MEEZ
net NF AW FE 17,031 12,638
Realised (loss)/gain on financial assets at BRATEFABRCERMEEZ
FVPL, net BEER(BH), W FHE (23,180) 2,244
5,015 23,121
1,231,548 1,561,356

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
121 of HKFRS 15 to its revenue contracts such that the above
information does not include information about revenue that
the Group will be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining
performance obligations under those revenue contracts that had
an original expected duration of one year or less.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by
the timing of revenue recognition and by geographic markets is
disclosed in notes 10(a) and 10(b) respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

subsidies from local government authorities for the Group’s development
and business activities. There are no unfulfilled conditions and other

contingencies attached to the receipts of those subsidies. I o

4 Other revenue and other gains or losses 4 HihhmkHEMKEIES
2023 2022
—g-= —E-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other revenue H i 2
Bank interest income RITHEHA 2,261 1,552
COVID-19-related rent concession 201978 KA S mEEE SRR 586 =
Government grants (Note) T 48 B (7 72) 3,661 3,954
Dividend income from listed equity securities IR AR B 5 2 A% 28U A 375 315
Rental income HEBA 280 175
Others HAmh 375 1
7,538 5,997
Other gains or losses Hit =R E1E
Cumulative exchange gain reclassified from s = it — R b BB A B8 ek 5
equity to profit or loss upon deregistration BN BEEBER RFER
of a subsidiary U %5 423 1,658
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets at AT EFABHRZEREE
FVPL ANTHE(ER), W (1,080) 1
Fair value loss on investment property KEMEZ AN ERE - (1,793)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and MEME - WESREEZ
equipment, net e 58 158 129
Net foreign exchange loss 0E 5 Eia 558 = (26)
Reversal of impairment loss on trade FEWE B IB R EBERE
receivables = 5,261
Reversal of impairment loss on loans and MW E SRR BRI EEERED
interest receivables 5,384 -
4,885 5,230
Note: Btet -
Included in the government grants received for both years were funds and REZMEFE T BTRERAEEZ ER K

EBERYRHEZES RAMFAD KBUFHA
YSHR 7% 5 170 B X S MY A RO AR IR I R LA SRR ==
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

5 (Loss)/profit before taxation

5 BRBLAT(ER), Al

(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived after charging/(crediting): BB AT (B R) R A BNk GEA) TF&
A
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET
(a) Finance costs: (a) AR :
Interest on lease liabilities HEABZFE 399 441
Interest on borrowings B2 HE 27 -
426 441
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ (b) EIXA (BIEESHMH
remuneration (note 7)): (Bta£7)) -
Salaries, allowances and other benefits e - EMEHMER 49,716 49,057
Contributions to defined contribution FOEMBURIRET B 2 X
retirement plans 8,260 8,603
57,976 57,660
(c) Other items: (c) Hfb1ER :
Cost of inventories sold and services BEEFERERERE 2
provided* PR AR 1,132,424 1,424,185
Auditors’ remuneration % SR B & 1,300 1,300
Depreciation of: e
- property, plant and equipment - HIBEREE 8,892 11,680
- right-of-use assets - (EREEE 7,336 10,775
Impairment losses/(reversal of impairment  SE{EEE,CREEEREE) :
losses) on:
- trade receivables - BWE S FIE 2,103 (5,261)
— other receivables - EfbpEli kI8 1,945 4,406
- loans and interest receivables, net - ERERRFIE F58 (5,384) 2,153
— goodwill - 976 =
- intangible assets -EBEE 129 =
Write-off of other receivables 1 85 EL i B W SR TE 496 857
Expenses relating to short-term leases ERAEHHEEZRAY 3,103 1,481
* Cost of inventories sold and services provided includes * EEFERERERE 2K ABER BT
HK$138,000 (2022: HK$222,000) relating to depreciation, which £ .2138,000% L (=T = =4 : 222,000
amount is also included in the respective total amounts disclosed BIL) e BT A LB R 2

separately above.

RA#EER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

6

Income tax in the consolidated statementof 6 #I&
profit or loss

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or (a)

loss

Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax

Provision for the year (note 25(a))

(Over)/under provision in respect of prior
years

Current tax = PRC Enterprise
Income Tax

Provision for the year (nhote 25(a))

Deferred tax (note 25(b))

Origination and reversal of temporary
differences

Income tax expense

(i) Hong Kong Profits Tax

EHHE - FRNEH

FREHE25()

BEFE(BERE),
BETE

EHBE - FESEREHR

FRE R E25()

SRR (1 :725(0)
B EEMNEL RED

PSR

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year
ended 31 March 2023 and 2022 was calculated
at 8.25% of the first HK$2,000,000 estimated
assessable profit and 16.5% of the remaining
estimated assessable profit for the relevant years.

BmRAZAMEHR

RERBRAZHEA
2023 2022
—Eg-= M —
HK$’000 HK$000
TET TAET
188 461
(20) 28
7,745 8,709
- (4,042)
7,913 5,156
i) EEBREH

B/\%Zi_;__iﬁ_? A —
FZAZT—RALEE  FE
MEHBEREEFERNY
2,000,000/ T 2 {1 FE R Bl
F28.25% K #4 T 7T FE SR B %
M2 16.5%:TE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

6

Income tax in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss (Continueq)

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

PRC Enterprise Income Tax

The subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC are subject
to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate of 25% (2022:
25%) for the year.

Under the PRC tax law, profits of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC (the “PRC subsidiaries”)
derived since 1 January 2008 is subject to
withholding income tax at rates of 5% or 10% upon
the distribution of such profits to foreign investors
or companies incorporated in Hong Kong or for
other foreign investors, respectively. Pursuant to the
grandfathering arrangements of the PRC tax law,
dividends receivable by the Group from the PRC
subsidiaries in respect of the undistributed profits
derived prior to 31 December 2007 are exempt from
the withholding income tax.

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, no deferred tax
liabilities have been recognised in respect of tax that
would be payable on the unremitted profits of the
PRC subsidiaries derived since 1 January 2008 as the
directors of the Company is in a position to control
the dividend policies of the PRC subsidiaries and no
distribution of such profits is expected to be declared
from the PRC subsidiaries in the foreseeable future.

Income tax from other tax jurisdictions

Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged at the

appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in relevant
countries.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

6

Income tax in the consolidated statementof 6 #Z&
profit or loss (Continued)

(b)

Reconciliation between income tax expense and (b)
accounting (loss)/profit at applicable tax rates

(Loss)/profit before taxation

Notional tax on (loss)/profit before
taxation, calculated at Hong Kong
Profits Tax rates of 16.5% (2022:
16.5%)

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable income

Tax effect of temporary differences not
recognised

Tax effect of unused tax losses not
recognised

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses
previously not recognised

Tax effect of different tax rates of
subsidiaries in other jurisdictions

(Over)/under provision in respect of prior
years

Tax concession

Others

Income tax expense

BB (B51R), SR A

BEAT(B1B), MMz &
IR - BB BFEBHE
16.5%(ZF ==
FTE

TAHBRREZ BT E
BARBMBAZHBTE

REREREZE RS E

AERKRBARIBEBEZ
MG e

FABTRERNIEEIE
Mg

RE D RLEREE KB A R
TRBE 2 B 52

BEFE(RERE),BE

T~ 2

HsER

HAh

PSR

BaRAZFABEHG

guH

FEdAXREEAR RS E 2

:16.5%)

(E518), B F 2 YR

2023 2022

_ S —— —_=F=_—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
(6,755) 19,048
(1,115) 3,143
4,284 4,493
(5,666) (5,115)
732 1,193
7,187 4,173
(1,439) (1,269)
4,007 (2,287)
(20) 28
(12) (165)
(45) 962
7,913 5,156
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AN BRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

7

Directors’ and chief executive’s
remunerations

(@

(b)

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Part 2 of
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation and the GEM Listing Rules are as
follows:

7

Salaries, allowances
Directors’ fees  and benefits in kind

ESne  Ho MREUME

2023 2022 2023

2022

“BCZE "T--F “BCSE CE-C

EERFETHAERZHMH

REBEEBRAEAIEI83(1)E - 2
AHBEEENEER ROIE28 K%
GEMEMMRABEZESTHHOT

Discretionary Retirement scheme

bonuses contributions Total
BiERA BARGHEME @zt
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
ZB-CF CFC-F CBCCE CRCCF CBCZE CE-CF

HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS000 HK$000 HKSO00 HKS000 HKSO00 HK$000 HKS000
fEr TEr TAn FEr TAn TFEr TAn FEr FAn  TEx
Executive directors YiTES
Mr. Mui Wai Sum BERLA - - 360 360 - - 18 18 378 378
Mr. Chan Ka Kin BRERE - - 360 360 - - 18 18 378 378
Non-executive director ~ F#H1TES
Mr. Takashi Togo RAZETEE 240 240 = - = - - - 240 240
Independent non- BUFHTES
executive directors
Ms. Tsang Tsz Nok, Aleen B4+
(appointed on R-F--%
1 December 2022) +=A-A
BEfF) 40 = = = = = = = 40 =
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alred ~ ZIE# 54 120 120 = = = = = = 120 120
Mr. Au Siu Lun Bkt 120 120 = - = - = - 120 120
Ms. ChiuKam Hing, Kathy ~ #4804+
(resigned on (R-F==
1 December 2022) TZA-A#E & 120 = = = = = = 80 120
60 60 70 70 - - % % 136 13
During the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, no REEZE-_=FR-_T-__F=A
directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments. No = t—HIFEAR BEESFHEK
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors and EEREEAWNE - XEBEWHEMAE
chief operating decision maker as an inducement to join ERFELBEBRRAINEAME -
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of TER A IN A A& B I 2 2EE) ok
office. BEEL RIS -
The remuneration of the chief executive officer, Ms. Kwan (o) EBITHRABBEIER LT 2 HIRHKL

Fei Ying, is disclosed in note 33(a).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

8 Individuals with highest emoluments 8 EmE¥AL

TEEBHFATT  BEAAALABHS
HERHE7QEBRNES (B ==
®) o  RAEL(CB-—F TR A2

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, none of
the five highest emoluments are directors (2022: none) whose
emolument is disclosed in note 7(a). The aggregate of the

emoluments in respect of these five (2022: five) individuals are as SHEEENT
follows:
2023 2022
—==-= —E-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries and other emoluments Fre LEMBE 7,573 7,621
Retirement scheme contributions BRIRGTEIH R 226 206
7,799 7,827
The emoluments of the five (2022: five) individuals with the RAEH(ZEZ—F: ARG AL
highest emoluments are within the following bands: BN THIEE
2023 2022
—E-=F T F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AZ AZ
HKS$Nil — HK$1,000,000 =702 1,000,0007 7T 2 2
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001;8 7T £ 1,500,000/ 7T 2 2
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,0018 7T £2,000,000/8 7T = -
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T £2,500,0007% 7T - -
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T & 3,000,000/ 7T = -
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T £3,500,0007 7T - -
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7T £ 4,000,000/ 7T 1 1
5 5

REBEEZT_=FRZFT_ZF=A=+
—BLEFERN AEEREIAME TA
SEESHFMAL  ERBEMARENA
REE 2 SR o BB A (B o

During the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the individuals with
highest emoluments of the Group as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B S5 EERSN - S5 B TTE D)

9 (Loss)/earnings per share 9 #BR(ER), BF
(a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share (@ EBREXREE),BF

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based
on the loss attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$13,933,000 (2022: profit attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$8,952,000) and the weighted average of
77,470,000 ordinary shares (2022: 75,049,000 ordinary
shares) in issue during the year, calculated as follows:

Issued ordinary shares at the beginning of R 317 & @A%
the year
Issue of shares (note 28(a)(ii)

BITRD (BT aE28(a)(i)

Weighted average number of ordinary T RAR ANAE B
shares
(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share (b)

The calculation of diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the
year is based on the loss attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$13,933,000 (2022: profit attributable
to owners of the Company of HK$8,952,000) and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 77,470,000
ordinary shares (2022: 77,363,000 ordinary shares),
calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary R=ZA=+—HBzE@Ek
shares at 31 March hn#EF98
Effect of share options exercised (note 27) TDATIERERIE 2 2 (Ht:127)

R=ZA=t—BzEAK
(HH) T 8

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares (diluted) at 31 March

The assumed exercise of the outstanding share options for
the year ended 31 March 2023 have anti-dilutive effect and
have therefore been excluded from the above calculation.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &8 Z#REFR A 7
Annual Report 2022/23 FERE

BREAR(EER), BFERFAREBR
KAFIHAE AEE13,933,000%8 7T
ZEZZF  BEBRARFEBA
s 718,952,000/ 1) & B 817 & i A%
NAEFE 8 77,470,0000% L 3@EAL (=
T~ —4F : 75,049,0000% L& 3@EAL) 5+
CR N

2023 2022

—_E_= —E-—F

‘000 '000

FrR FhE

75,049 75,049
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77,470 75,049
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2023 2022
—E-=F —E-=

‘000 '000

FR FAR

77,470 75,049

- 2,314

77,470 77,363
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

10 Segment reporting

Management has determined the operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the directors that are used to make
strategic decisions. The directors review the Group’s financial
information mainly from business lines prospective. Accordingly,
the Group’s operating segments are:

(i) Distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care products

(i) Provision of beauty and slimming services

(i) Franchise operations (including sale of health, beauty and
related products to franchised shops)

(iv)  Sale of health, beauty and related products
(v)  Investments in securities
(vi)  Money lending

The directors assess the performance of the operating segments
based on a measure of reportable segment results. This
measurement basis excludes certain other revenue, other gains
or losses, finance costs and unallocated expenses.

Segment assets mainly exclude certain property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, investment property, current
tax recoverable and other assets that are managed on a central
basis. Segment liabilities mainly exclude current tax payable,
deferred tax liabilities and other liabilities that are managed on a
central basis.

10

7B

EEECRBEERMMUELRREMER
EZLBEEERENH - EFTEUEH
RAREERNARB ZMEER - Fit - &
SEZRENES

i)  DEHE AL EREEM

(i) IREEDRBEBRS

iy MBEIEXBK(BRERAMBAIEEH
HERE EARMBBEER)

vy SHERRE EBAKEBEESD
V) FEEHRE
i)  HE

EFZRAERDMEAEETRLED
ZRE - FEEETBRETHMKE -
Hi et sk B8 - MERARRDER
i o

DHEETEZTERETYE  #EBRR
B ERREE KREDE  EHAKD
MAREMERERECEE - DHMAEE
RTEEERNERNE BETHBRARR
Hit&RPEREZAIE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AN BRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B S5 EERSN - S5 B TTE D)

10 Segment reporting (Continued)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (a) HHEE BEERESRE
2023
Distribution
sale of  Provision Sale of
cosmetic  of beauty health,
and skin and beauty and  Investments
care  slimming Franchise related in Money
products  services operations products securities lending Total
AEHE HERRE
etk  REXA  nNBEEE £5R
ERER RABRE % HEER RHRE W& @t
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TéEr TET TET TEr TEx TET FET
Disaggregated by timing of %R W HEHE S
revenue recognition
A point in time RE— R 1,172,999 - - 4,562 (23,180) - 1,154,381
Over time REE - 48939 33 - 17,03 11,164 77,167
Reportable segment revenue A 2R A EUE 1,172,999 48,939 33 4,562 (6,149) 11,164 1,231,548
Reportable segment results A2 HHHEE 19129  (22,280) (26) 521 (6,329 10,926 1,941
Unallocated corporate expenses & B A 7HX (8,270)
Loss from operations mEEE (6,329)
Finance costs BERE (426)
Loss before taxation BHAEE (6,755)
Income tax expense FrEREx 191y
Loss for the year FRER (14,668)
Impairment losses/(reversal of  JERE,/
impairment losses) on: (REEBEER) .
- trade receivables -EWE5FE 1,981 60 - 62 - - 2,103
- other recelvables - Bt R - 1,945 S = = = 1,945
~loans and interest -EREFR
recelvables, net B FE = - - - - (5,384) (5,384)
- Intangible assets -BVEE = 129 = = = = 129
= goodwil -HE = 976 = = = = 976
Depreciation of; wE:
~ property, plant and -0% - BERRE
equipment 1,572 3,853 - - 30 44 5,499
- right-of-use assets -PREEE 1,824 5,512 = = = = 7,336
Interest on lease liabilties HEAREZHE 88 311 = = = = 399
Interest on borrowings EEZFIB = = = = 27 = 21
Bank interest income FAFIBHA (1,002) (26) - - (652) (581) (2,261)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

10 Segment reporting (Continued) 10 78RS @

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) (a) PHEE BEEREEAE)
2022
Distribution
saleof  Provision Sale of
cosmetic  of beauty health,
and skin and beauty and  Investments
care  slmming  Franchise related in Money
products services  operations  products  securities lending Total
PHEE HERRE
ek REERR  MBAE e
EEERD  HERE % BEER  BHRE & Fe
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
FEr FiEr T FiEr FEr T FiEr
Disaggregated by timing of ~ HERKHEFHHES
revenue recognition
Apoint in time RE—EHE 1,476,008 - - 1,379 2,244 - 1,479,631
Over time s - 60,695 153 - 12,638 8,239 81,725
Reportable segment revenue AT 22 B 1,476,008 60,695 153 1,379 14,882 8239  1561,356
Reportable segment results A2 HHHEE 26,296 6,777 (783) 500 10,512 2,493 45,795
Unallocated corporate expenses k2B A AR % (26,306)
Profit from operations B EH 19,489
Finance costs BANK (441)
Profit before taxation BRHATER 19,048
Income tax expense FIEREY (5,156)
Profit for the year FREA 13,892
I
(Reversal of impairment losses)/  (RlE/EEEE),/
impairment losses on: HEEE:
- trade receivables -ERESHE (4,799) (462) = = = = (5,261)
- other receivables - Hth MR = 4,406 = = = = 4,406
~loans and interest - BREH LA EFE
receivables, net - - - - - 2,163 2,158
Depreciation of: e
- property, plant and -ME - URRLE
squipment 2,344 5,135 1 - 855 36 8,371
~ right-of-Use assets -RARLE 1,935 5,947 - - 2,893 - 10,775
Interest on lease liabiliies HEaRZHE 140 246 = = 55 = 441
Bank interest income FATMEHA (1532) (10) = = ) (1) (1552)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

10 Segment reporting (Continued)

(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Segment assets
= Property, plant and
equipment
- Right-of-use assets
- Intangible asset
- Other assets
Unallocated corporate assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Total liabilities

Additions to segment non-
current assets

NEEE
-0E  BERRE

-EREEE

-BEE

-EEE
ADRRAEE

PEFRBEERE

10 7 #HEEF @
(a) 2WEE BEEREEHE)
2023
“B-=F
Distribution
sale of  Provision Sale of
cosmetic  of beauty health,
and skin and beauty and Investments
care  slimming Franchise related in Money
products  services operations products securities lending Total
PHEE HERR
etk  REXE  nES Y
ENER RARRE % HBER  B5RE W& b
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
FiéErx TET TET FéEr TEr Thr FEr
3,070 6,935 - - 5 - 10,010
- 3,786 - - - - 3,786
- 14,871 - - - - 14,871
181,126 100,167 1,781 3,140 306,288 173,654 766,156
106,521
901,344
(88,916) (19,881) (12,786) (14) (1,917) (414)  (123,928)
(1,710)
(125,638)
165 16,272 - - - 44 16,481

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 6 & E#RERA T

174
Annual Report 2022/23 FERE




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RS HMEAASN - UGB TTZS)

10 Segment reporting (Continued) 10 ZE|E @
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) (a) 2HEE BEREBEHE)
2022
Distribution
sadeof  Provision Sale of
cosmetic  of beauty health,
and skin and beauty and  Investments
care  slmming  Franchise related in Money

products services  operations  products  securities lending Total
PEHE HERRE

ik REXE  ME&fE  XBR
EEER RUEBRS % BEER  E5RE i it
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$'000
AT FAT  FEr  TET  TET  TAT  FAX

Segment assets PHEE

- Property, plant and -%E - BERRE

equipment 4,865 9,654 - - 35 - 14,554

- Right-of-use assets -RRREEE 1,967 4,375 = = = = 6,342

- Other assets -EEE 244274 140,487 2,043 168 207,440 163160 847,572
Unallocated corporate assets ~ AAELRAIAE 92,729
Total assets BESRE 961,197
Segment liabilties AHEE (108817) (13,856  (13,808) (1) (34) @ (136,520)
Unallocated corporate liabiities A AEA IR & (4,667)
Total liabilities REEE (141,187)
Additions o segment non- AHFRBEERE

current assets 3,245 4,713 - - - - 7,958
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B S5 EERSN - S5 B TTE D)

10 Segment reporting (Continued)
(b) Geographical information
The Group’s revenue from external customers and

information regarding non-current assets by geographical
locations are as follows:

10 7

ok

B & (@)
(b) &R

AEEINBEFPZRERBRIERD
BEZERZMEME ST

2023
—Eg-=
The PRC Hong Kong Total
R B st
HK$7000 HK$7000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET
Revenue from external INERE P 2 Wam
customers 1,173,032 58,516 1,231,548
Non-current assets ERBEE 3,070 142,386 145,456
2022
g
The PRC Hong Kong Total
HEY B #st
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEIT FHEIT FE&T
Revenue from external MR P 2 e
customers 1,476,162 85,194 1,561,356
Non-current assets FEMBEE 6,832 128,333 135,165
(¢) Major customers (c) XEEFE

During the year ended 31 March 2023, none of (2022: Nil)
customer with whom transactions exceeded 10% of the
Group’s revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

11 Property, plant and equipment 11 Y% WBERRE
Office and
Land and Furniture ~ computer  Leasehold Motor
buildings  Machinery and fixtures equipment improvements vehicles Total
BRR  BAER BE

1HRET #E BETkE SRRE UXkE e st
HK$000  HKSUOOD  HKSUOD  HKSUOO  HKSUOD  HKSUOD  HKSUOD
TET TRT TRT TAT TAT TET TET

Cost K&
At 1 April 2021 RZE-_—FWA—H 110,053 16,189 3,603 6,687 24,946 16,136 177,614
Exchange adjustments RS - - 3 43 167 353 566
Surplus on revaluation BihR% 3,574 = = = = = 3,574
Transfer to investment property ~ EAZRENE
(note 13) (WE’IS) (19,386) = = = = = (19,386)
Additions NE 4,436 3,993 22 97 683 3,19 12,426
Disposals e - - - (399) (12 (1483 (1.889)
At 31 March 2022 RZZ__%F
=R=t+-H 98,677 20,182 3,628 6,434 25,784 18,201 172,906
At 1 April 2022 RZZE--FMA-AH 98,677 20,182 3,628 6,434 25,784 18,201 172,906
Exchange adjustments ER HE - - ©) 63) (307) (756) (1,132)
Additions NE - 1,019 8 98 1,774 133 3,082
Additions through asset BREENERE
acquisition (note 36) (H£36) 5,200 = = = = = 5,200
Disposals e - 93) (3,027) (4,641) - (162) (7,923)
At 31 March 2023 RZZ-=F
=R=t+-H 103,877 21,108 603 1,828 27,251 17,416 172,083

Accumulated depreciation Rt E

At 1 April 2021 R-E--FNA—AH 16,154 9,940 3,338 6,187 19,968 12,860 068,447
Exchange adjustments ERW@ \ - = 2 35 144 208 389
Transfer o investment property ~ ERERENX 2,093) = = = = = (2,093)
Charge for the year FRTE 3,252 2,740 154 212 3,439 1,883 11,680
Written back on disposals HERED = = = (342) (11) (1,291) (1,644)
At 31 March 2022 i —a

ZA=t-H 17,313 12,680 3,494 6,092 23,540 13,660 76,779
At 1 April 2022 W-E--®#mA—AH 17,313 12,680 3,494 6,092 23,540 13,660 76,779
Exchange adjustments I 5 R - = ©) (50) (295) (424) (775)
Charge for the year ERFE 3,192 2,887 90 125 1,205 1373 8,892
Written back on disposals LERED - 93) (3,027) (4,638) - (134) (7,892)
At 31 March 2023 RZZ_=F

=R=+-H 20,505 15,474 551 1,529 24,470 14,475 77,004
Carrying amount REE
At 31 March 2023 3

SliSr— 83,372 5,634 52 299 2,781 2,941 95,079
At 31 March 2022 i —a

ZA=1+-H 81,364 7,502 134 342 2,244 4,541 96,127
The land and buildings are situated in Hong Kong under medium- T REFUREBLRIEF AL
term leases. A o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

12 Right-of-use assets

Cost

At 1 April 2021
Exchange adjustments
Additions

Disposals

At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022

Exchange adjustments
Disposals
Lease modification

At 31 March 2023

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 April 2021

Exchange adjustments
Charge for the year
Written back on disposals

At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022

Exchange adjustments
Charge for the year
Written back on disposals

At 31 March 2023

Carrying amount
At 31 March 2023

At 31 March 2022
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A

RZE-_—FWOA—H
b H R

NE

e

RZZE-_—_F=A=+—HK
—E-_FWMA—H

b H SR

e

HEEBNK

RZZE-_=F=A=+—H

RITTE

RZE-_—FWNOA—H
PE 5 58
FRIFE
e B

RZTEZZF=A=+—HK
—E-_FWMHA—H

b

FRITE

&SR

RZZE_=F=A=+—AH

ARTEE
RZZE_=F=A=+—H

RZE-_—F=F=+—H

Leased
properties
HEWE
HK$'000
T

23,715
312
5,089
(12,098)

17,918
(576)
(176)

4,923

22,089

12,711

188
10,775
(12,008)

11,576
(433)
7,336
(176)

18,303

3,786

6,342




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

12

13

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

The Group has obtained the right to use certain leased properties
as its factory complex and office premises through tenancy
agreements. The leases run for a period of 2 to 4 years, at the
end of which period all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases
includes variable lease payments.

Amounts included in the consolidated statement of cash flows
comprise of cash outflows for leases of HK$3,103,000 and
HK$7,087,000 (2022: HK$1,481,000 and HK$11,499,000) in
operating and financing activities respectively.

Investment property

At 1 April 2021

Transfer from property, plant and equipment
(note 11)

Fair value loss NTEEE

At 31 March 2022, 1 April 2022 and
31 March 2023

The investment property is situated in Hong Kong and are held
under a medium-term lease.

The fair value of the Group’s investment property is measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into Level 2 fair value measurement within the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”.

RZE-_—FMWA—H
R AYE - BRNRE WL

12 ERABEEE®

AEECEBRZREERERSERAET
HENEREIBMEAERERBAE
X - 2FHERB2EAF - FIAKRINA
RBREFHE  RFHELTEEAE
HERRK -

RIZEREREREVNZHBERELER
MEEH 2 HERE ML S F3,103,000
BT N7,087,0008 L (ZFE ==
1,481,000/ 7T % 11,499,000/ 7T) °

13 REWX

HK$’000
FET

17,293
(1,793)

R-ZB-_—_F=A=+—H —T-—F
MA—BR-—ZE-—=%#=A=+—H

15,500

BREMEURNETLE  YREBEFHEES
5o

REBREMEZ AFERZSHBREL
FUEEHE UYOBEEBREVBHREE
AIF13R A FEAEBIMREZ=ZALF
BEERANZE _RRFEFE -
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13 Investment property (Continued)

Level 2 fair value measurement is those derived from inputs other
than quoted prices within Level 1, or significant unobservable
inputs within Level 3. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available. The fair value of the Group’s
investment property as at 31 March 2023 and 2022 has been
arrived at on the basis of valuation by CHFT Advisory And
Appraisal Ltd., an independent qualified professional valuer
not connected with the Group, and its fair value is determined
using the market approach by reference to recent sales price of
comparable properties on a price per square foot basis using
market data which is publicly available.

The Group leases out a property under operating leases. The
leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 2 years, with an
option to renew the lease after that date at which time all terms
are renegotiated. None of the leases includes variable lease
payments.

Minimum undiscounted lease payments under operating leases
in place as at 31 March 2023 and 2022 will be receivable by the
Group in future periods as follows:

Within 1 year 15K
After 1 year but within 2 years 1% {B2ER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AN BRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

REWME#)

FRAFEFERBASBGE-—RAZ
HMEEBRINKEZRAZ BRI EREG A
BIEAEE - TAEREG ABE AT ED
BEBIE2EZHASE - AEBREY
¥R B =FRZIF_F=ZA=+—
BAFEEREBEEASEVEBE B
VEAERBEGEMESHZATEERD
RIFTEZ (HETE MEQAFENESE
WA A SIS EIEIG AEF HRER
BEEZ B ETREEERERAT
BIAETE °

AEBERELLHEELHE —BYE - 1%
HOBELS—EMF  FIOAEROER
ZBRAERENEY  ERESEFBE
EGK FREERERSIEHEN

E
NI

RIE-_=ZFR-_E-__F=ZA=+—H
AIVKREEREE T Z&ERTEREN
RS AT R A £ B pA SR SR HA A AR D

2023 2022
—_E_= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

- 420
- 245

- 665




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

14 Intangible asset

Cost

At 1 April 2021, 31 March 2022 and
1 April 2022

Additions

At 31 March 2023

Accumulated impairment

At 1 April 2021, 31 March 2022 and
1 April 2022

Impairment loss

At 31 March 2023

Carrying amount
At 31 March 2023

At 31 March 2022

14 B EE

[2%:S
RZE-_—FNHYA—H - ZF=—
=A=t+—BARkR=-E-_—_FMWA—A
NE

R-ZE-_=F=A=+—H

Z:HEE
R-ZZE-_—FWA—H - —_T=_—
—A=+—HFkZ=ZZE=-_—_FWA—H
SRIEEE

RZE-_=ZF=ZA=+—H

BREE
RZE-_=F=A=+—H

RZE-_—_F=A=+—H

Club
membership
=g
HK$'000
FET

15,000

15,000

129

129

14,871

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the management
carried out an assessment of the recoverable amount of the
club membership. Based on their review, impairment loss of
HK$129,000 was recognised during the year.

In assessing the useful life of club membership, the management
considered the Group has the contractual right to control over the
asset and legal rights with indefinite period and therefore, the club
membership has been assessed as having an indefinite useful life.

The recoverable amount of the club membership is estimated by
reference to the current open market value less cost of disposal
as of the end of the reporting period. The fair value measurement
is categorised in level 2 fair value hierarchy.

HE_Z-_=F=A=+—RItEE " &
BEHGENATKE SEETEG R
BEEBEEMNTGE REANERRESE
129,000/ 7T ©

EFERBARE SRR F M -
ERERR/AEERBEFZEENED
R R ERADEEREN - Bt - RBRIR
CERETRSBEEERAEAEN -

SRAHeeRNAIREERIELER
BEHRNRIT AT HEERDEXE
HESH AENRFEAESRRLRT
EERFE A -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

15 Goodwill 15 BHE
Goodwill is accounted for in accordance with the Group’s EEL W T2e)TEH 2 N EB TR A
accounting policies as set out in note 2(e). For the purposes of BRogtBEARME  BHEDRBEBK
impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to the Group’s EMOREREB v EBEReELSM
cash-generating units (CGUs) identified according to country of GREELESBMN)  SEBIEWOT -

operations and business segment as follows:

2023 2022
—EB-=F —F-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEx
Provision of beauty and slimming services — 2= M A A2 RS -
Hong Kong (“Unit A”) H5([BERIAD 15,588 16,564
Provision of beauty and slimming services = 121t E 7 K 452 AR 7% —
the PRC (“Unit B") B ([EB)) - -
Money lending business — Hong Kong B - BB (EMC))
(“Unit C”) 595 595
Multiple units without significant goodwill mEARBzZEEM(EM])
(“Others”) 37 37
16,220 17,196
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

15 Goodwill continued) 15 BE®
Unit A Unit B Unit C Others Total
BfA BB BfuC Hit st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$E'000
FAEIT FHEITL FHEIT FAET FHEIT
Cost: R
At 1 April 2021 R-ZE-—FMAB—H 16,564 8,834 595 332 26,325
Exchange adjustments VE R % - 49 - - 49
At 31 March 2022 and N-E=——
1 April 2022 =A=+—H8K
—E-__FWMA—H 16,564 8,883 595 332 26,374
Exchange adjustments TE W - (650) - = (650)
At 31 March 2023 MZE—=%
=A=+—H 16,564 8,233 595 332 25,724
Accumulated impairment:  Z:HEE :
At 1 April 2021 R-ZZE-_—FWNOA—H - 8,834 - 295 9,129
Exchange adjustments b H AR - 49 = = 49
At 31 March 2022 and NZE——
1 April 2022 —A=+—HkK
—E-_4FWMA—H - 8,883 - 295 9,178
Exchange adjustments b H FR R = (650) = = (650)
Impairment loss JEETE 976 = — — 976
At 31 March 2023 RZTE_=%
=A=+—H 976 8,233 - 295 9,504
Carrying amount: BREE :
At 31 March 2023 MWZE_=%
=A=+—H 15,588 - 595 37 16,220
At 31 March 2022 i
=A=+—H 16,564 - 595 37 17,196

EFCREBEFEGHERFICRIEER
BE|EHBEREE -

The directors have reviewed the carrying amount of goodwill in
accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B S5 EERSN - S5 B TTE D)

15

16

Goodwill (Continued)
Unit A

The recoverable amount of Unit A is determined based on value-
in-use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering
a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using an estimated weighted average growth rate
of 2.0% (2022: 3.0%). This growth rate does not exceed the
long-term average growth rates for the market in which Unit A
operates. The cash flows are discounted using a discount rate
of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%). The discount rate used is pre-tax and
reflects specific risks relating to Unit A. Other key assumption
for the value-in-use calculation relates to the estimation of
cash inflows/outflows which included budgeted sales and
gross margin, such estimation is based on the Unit A’s past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development including the fluctuation in beauty and slimming
service business in the current economic environment in Hong
Kong.

The impairment testing resulted in an impairment of HK$976,000
(2022: HK$NIl) recognised in consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year ended 31 March 20283. The impairment arose in
view of the deterioration in revenue level and operating results of
the CGU in the current year.

Inventories

(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial
position comprise:

LR AR

Merchandise

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &8 Z#REFR A 7
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BREWNHBABEMAZEMS 2 REFEH
BRER IBEREN165%( T - —
16.5%) BhIR R BLIR - ATERAALIR E A0k
R XM EREMNAZ HERK - BE
EREZEMTEREEAVEENEE
MEMEAZESRAREETERS -
BB ERENABEEEREEEEM
BERRBETCESRBEERENERR
HEERSES RS 2 TEH -

BRI B E 976,000 TT(Z T - —F :
ZET)REEREBEE_ZS_=F=A=+
—BUEFEZEERARTER - BET
HAFEReESEM MK TFREER
ERE -

'Y
Y

1z

(a) SEUBMRARAZFEERE

\

2023 2022
—_E_= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
7,382 15,258




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

16 Inventories (Continued)

(b)

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense and included in profit or loss:

Merchandise 2K

17 Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong (note a) R& B 2 F i RAE % (K :Fa)

(
V=1

ERAR/FAXAFTARSZFEESH
#r

b
2023 2022
—EC_=F —E-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET
1,111,985 1,398,973

17 BAFVEFABRZEHEE

Unlisted convertible bonds in Hong Kong REBZIELTARRES
(note b) (Htztb)
Unlisted equity fund in Hong Kong REBZIELTRAES

(a)

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had financial assets at
FVPL representing equity securities listed in HK$97,504,000
(2022: HK$87,299,000). The fair values of listed equity
securities are determined based on the quoted market
closing price available on the Main Board and GEM of the
Stock Exchange at the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had pledged certain listed
equity securities in Hong Kong with carrying amount of
HK$10,656,000 (2022: HK$NIl) to secure credit facilities
granted to the Group (note 24).

(a)

2023 2022
- E —_= ="
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
97,504 87,299
5,679 4,924
3,915 4,995
107,098 97,218
REBZETRAFZS

R-ZTBE-_=F=A=+—08  A&£H
BEATEFABEZIEHEE 18
FHRARES97,504,0008 T (= F

— 4 87,299,000/ 7T) ° AR
AEBEHSZANFEDRBITERKL
CGEMRAZ2RBRMMz KM EET °

RZEBE-_=F=A=+—H ' K&H
EsE TRMmME10,656,0008 (=
T —F  BET)ZEBLETRA
BAERE  UMEARTFTAEEEFEE
mﬂéSZ?fé‘{%(Mm%)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B S5 EERSN - S5 B TTE D)

17 Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (Continued)

17 BRAFEFABSZEHEE

(a) Listed equity securities in Hong Kong (Continued) (@) REBZLWRAEARSZE)
Details of significant investments are as follows: BERAREFEAT :
2023
ZBCCE
Percentage
of total
issued Fair value
share atthe Percentage
capital end of tothe Fair value Dividend
Number ~ owned the  Group’s gain/(loss) Gain/  received
ofshares  hythe reporting total  forthe (lossjon forthe
Stock code  Name of investee company  Principal activities held  Group Cost  period  assets year  disposal year
158
REEET R EEER FAATE £
KERGY RARE 2R BEEE k& HEKE/ EUW
RRE  BRELFER IEER HE] ] R ZAVE gh R (BB RE
‘000 %  HK$000  HK$000 %  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Fi Er  FEn FEr  TEn  TEx
1082 Bradaverse Education Provision of private educational services, 18,392 3.08% 18,684 32,186 3.59% 2,464 943 -
(Int'l) Investments Group ~ investment in securities, property (note) (note)
Limited (Formerly known  investments and money lending. () (W)
as Hong Kong Education
(Int'l) Investments Limited)
RSB ERRERE REAALERE RER% NERER
ARAR(AIBERAE HiE-
(ERREEEERAT)
1715 Miji Intenational Holdings  Engaged in the design, development and 74000  443% 4810 10656  1.19% 5,846 - -
Limited manufacture of hobs and stoves.
REERERERAR fERit BRRREEL -
1143 Link-Asia International Engaged in the electronic manufacturing 1,990 1.15% 3,384 4200  047% 816 (439) -
MedTech Group Limited services.
REEREENGEERR HBETHERE-
G|
8112 Cornerstone Financial Engaged in the advertising and media 10,512 4.58% 3,995 4,152 0.46% 157 - -
Holdings Limited businesses.
ERERERARAT RERERERER
8081 Hang Tai Yue Group Provision of enterprise software applications 38,000  0.71% 3,465 3724 042% @ - -
Holdings Limited and platform, as well as mobile internet (note) (note)
applications and platform development () Wz

outsourcing services, mainframe
downsizing, application localisation and
system.

EEREEERERAT  RUCERHERRYAR BBREEARM
TARBRS  ARHORL  AHERES
ER-
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e MR AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RS HMEAASN - UGB TTZS)

17 Financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss (Continued)

17 BRAFEFTAERZEREE

()

(a) Listed equity securities in Hong Kong (Continued) (@) MEBZLWRARSZE)
2022
ot St
Percentage
of fotal
issued Fair value
share atthe  Percentage
capital end of tothe  Fair value Dividend
Number ~ owned the  Group’s  gain/{oss) received
of shares by the reporting total forthe  Ganon for the
Stockcode ~ Name of investee company ~ Principal activities held Group Cost period assets year  disposal year
A58
RERES R EREE FRATE £
RERG R IR AEEE  Us/ HEKE/  BIW
BORE  BREARELR TEEH (! ] BA ZATE i (BB (BB )
000 % HKSOO0  HKSOOO % HKSO00  HK$000  HK$000
& TEr  TEr fEr  TEr  FEn
1082 Bradaverse Education (nt'l) ~ Provision of private educational services, investment 19,920 334% 20286 31274 3.24% 2,988 - -
Investments Group Limited in securties, property investments and money (notg) (notg)
[Formerty known as lending. i) W)
Hong Kong Education (Int')
Investments Limited)
FFEAEERRESE  RELAHERE REE5F DERER
BRARGIRERHE M o
(ERREEERRAR)
1943 Silver Tide Holdings Limited ~ Provision of formwork works sevices to both the 752 0.75% 4,151 6,321 0.65% 2,334 39 -
public and private sectors in Hong Kong. (note) (note)
i3} ()
RERRERAA AERNERILERAIRRBER TR RS -
0330 Esprit Holdings Limited Engaged in retaling, wholesales, distribution and 5000  0.18% 3,89 4450  0.46% 554 - -
licensing of garment and non-apparel products
under the brands Esprit and edc
BRERARERAR =EsprtRedomBAREFREERNEE -
HE HURRELEEH -
8101 EJE (Hong Kong) Holdings Manufacture of custom-made fumiture, the 2173 63% 17738 4346 045% (3,636) - -
Limited design, manufacture and sale of mattress and (note) (note)
soft bed products, property investment, securities 53] (W)
investment and money lending.
SFEMERARERAR EETHFA  Fi - LERBERBALR
EmNERE ESRERHE.
0164 China Baoli Technologies Engaged in the mobile technologies business, 12000  2.04% 4,800 3960  0.41% (840) - -

Holdings Limited

HEEHRERARAT

securities trading and investment business

EBBRIEE BFEERRARE
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e R M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

17 Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (Continued)

(@) Listed equity securities in Hong Kong (Continued)

Note: Investment costs in these investee companies represented
the initial acquisition cost for the investee companies. The
investments in these investee companies were made by
the Group in prior years. For that part of investments in
these investee companies which were made in prior years,
it was subject to fair value gain/(loss) and recognised at the
financial year end of the respective years. The fair value gain/
(loss) of these investee companies for the years ended 31
March 2023 and 2022 excluded fair value gain/(loss) being
recognised in prior years.

(b) Unlisted convertible bonds in Hong Kong

On 20 December 2021, the Group subscribed two-year
maturity 15% coupon convertible bonds with a principal
amount of HK$4,700,000 from a private company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “Issuer”).

The Group, as a holder of the convertible bonds had:

i) an option to request the Issuer to redeem the
convertible bonds by the Group at its principal
amount outstanding together with all accrued and
unpaid interest at the date of redemption on 14
December 2023 or the occurrence of other conditions
as provided for under the definitive subscription
agreement; and

ii) an option to convert the convertible bonds into
ordinary shares of the subsidiary of the Issuer at the
conversion price based on certain conditions on the
date of conversion as provided for under the definitive
subscription agreement.

The convertible bonds, together with abovementioned
options, were classified as a financial asset at FVPL and
recognised at fair value.
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(a)

(b)

REBZ LHTRAES(E)

Wit Rz EWIRE AR 2R EKAIEY]
IRRBZERRERRZEA » &
EENBEFERZERKERA
ELIRE - BRBEFEMZER
BERRMEL 2D REME -
EZBRRAFERZE,(FiE) I
REFEVRFELEBER - 8
BT -FRITE_F=R=
+—BHLEFE ZERRERRZ
RNEEWRE (BRI BEBREF
ERRzAFERE (BB -

REBZF LT ABRES

RZE-_—F+=-_A=+H &&
Em—HEEBELXESEFMKT
WFAARBI([E1T AL RIE ™R F H
EB15% 2 A BRES AeBA
4,700,000/ 7T °

AEBEWERTTRRESFAEAE
5

) AEEERBITAR-ZE=_Z=
F+_A+tHBERHAETL
RBEWMER T ZEME L
B BRIABRBESFASEN
MATERA RARER B Zi%E
R

i) RERZRERBEHEARTE
BIRE TR - REBA BN
BHRESIRRESEBRAE
TAMBRAR EBRZEE
e

AMERES K AR RSB RER
FEFABGZEREE YRAF
BfER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

18 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables EWE 558
Less: loss allowance W R
Deposits b
Prepayments TETRIA
Other receivables H b fE U FRIE
Less: loss allowance W EIERE

Included in the Group’s other receivables, prepayments and
deposits were rental, utilities and other deposits amounting to
HK$9,214,000 (2022: HK$8,891,000), which are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expenses after more than one year.
All of the other trade and other receivables are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expenses within one year.

Included in the Group’s other receivables were amounts due from
slimming business partners and consultants of HK$51,781,000
(2022: HK$49,557,000) and advances to staff of HK183,000
(2022: HK$277,000).

18 BWE 5 RE R H it BUFIR

2023 2022
- g —_= —_=__
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
76,526 108,240
(9,405) (7,881)
67,121 100,359
16,882 15,042
17,543 3,182
67,316 71,230
(7,728) (10,264)
94,013 79,190

TAAEBZ HMEWERTE - FEARIE
s AMEE AARMEREMZS
9,214,000 L (=T = =4 : 8,891,000/8
L) BHRBBE—FRKREKER AR
X oo FTEH AL EURE 5 FB K H b UG
BEHR—FRKE S ERERE -

T AR B 2 H fth FE U R IE A FE Uk 4 58 2
R R EM 2 FIE51,781,0008 L (=2
— % 1 49,557,000/ ) KM B T8RN
FKIE183,0008 7 (=& = — 4 : 277,000/
JT) °

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &8 R ER A 7

Annual Report 2022/23 FE#{E

189



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

18 Trade and other receivables (Continued) 18 EWESZREREMERIRIE
(&)
(a) Ageing analysis (a) BRERDHT
As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of REHRBR - FURESHFBERBEEAH
trade receivables, based on the invoice date and net of loss Ak EERER) 2RROTWOT

allowance, is as follows:

2023 2022
—EB-=HF =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETL
Less than 1 month LR1EA 53,730 93,770
1 to 2 months 122 A 10,497 5,951
More than 2 months but less than 4 Z 2 fE A1E LR 41E A
months 2,567 605
More than 4 months but less than 12 ZafE AR 121E A
months 255 33
More than 12 months 1218 A A E 72 =
67,121 100,359
Trade receivables are usually due within 30 to 90 days from JEUE 5518 — A A3 E A HI#E R 30290
the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s credit HEH - AEEEEBSR 2E—FFEH
policy are set out in note 29(a). T EE29(a) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

19 Loans and interest receivables

The Group’s loans and interest receivables arise from the money
lending business of providing loans in Hong Kong by a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding loans and interest receivables to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by

management.

Secured loans by mortgage  1RIREHEHE K
Personal guaranteed loans A AERER
Unsecured loans EHRRER

Less: loss allowance W EEEE

=

Less: current portion included & : BNERZES &t A
under current assets MEEE

Amounts due after 1 year 1ERF S B
included under non-current  3ERENEE
assets

19 BRERKEFE

AEBRKERENEBNEBREER
FTARRZEMBRARZBMERBEL
AEBBNBEREEFEREEREER R
MBAZERIEE

e

[SIESS

BB EAAE AR o

SRk - BRETHE

2023 2022

—E-=& —T--F

Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
ER®s ANERD B/t BEREs AEES 5
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FET FHET FHET TET
1,926 - 1,926 30,700 - 30,700
26,186 - 26,186 35,600 657 36,257
45,360 766 46,126 63,945 2,759 66,704
73,472 766 74,238 130,245 3,416 133,661
(10,400) (682) (11,082) (29,740) (2,500) (32,240)
63,072 84 63,156 100,505 916 101,421
(37,857) (84) (37,941) (100,505) (916) (101,421)
25,215 - 25,215 - - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

19 Loans and interest receivables (Continued) 19 EREREFE @
The exposure of the Group’s loans and interest receivables to AEEBEFRRRKES L EH B EKF S
their contractual maturity dates are as follows: wm
2023 2022
—EZ=E —E--
Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
Exfta AERD #/it  ExEs  MEHH st

HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEx TET FET F&T T FET

Within 1 year 15X 37,857 84 37,941 100,505 916 101,421
More than 1 year but LM ER2ER

within 2 years 12,457 - 12,457 - - -
More than 2 years but LR2FB5FR

within 5 years 12,758 - 12,758 - - -

63,072 84 63,156 100,505 916 101,421

Loans receivable are interest-bearing at rates ranging from 7% FEREFAFERNENF7TEZ48E(ZZT =
to 48% (2022: 5% to 48%) per annum and repayable on maturity ZH BEZE48E)FE C BAREED
under the terms of contractual agreements or on demand in HEGEROD AN AEBERERKE
writing by the Group. R e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

19 Loans and interest receivables (Continueaq)

19 BRERKFE

/2=

(425 )
V=V

(a) Ageing analysis (a) HERERSDHT
Ageing analysis is prepared based on contractual due EREHIHBE ZRESTAT
dates:
2023 2022
—E-= TR
Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
EXEs RFEHD @  EBEyEs  MEHS st
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000  HK$000
FET FET FET FHET FHET FHET
Current BIER 51,853 23 51,876 83,100 552 83,652
Less than 1 month past due  #1 i >R#11E A 499 17 516 370 37 407
1 to 3 months past due BEEEA 100 = 100 3,826 183 4,009
3 to 6 months past due b RENGEYE 11,023 45 11,068 15,395 1,193 16,588
6to 12 months past due A HI6Z 121 A = = = 2,091 114 2,205
More than 12 months past ~ #1EfA:E 1218 A
due 9,997 681 10,678 25,463 1,337 26,800
Less: Loss allowance B EBEEE (10,400) (682)  (11,082)  (29,740) 2,500)  (32,240)
63,072 84 63156 100,505 916 101,421

The credit quality of loans and interest receivables has
been assessed by reference to historical information about
counterparty default rates. Further details on the Group’s

credit policy are set out in note 29(a).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AN BRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B S5 EERSN - S5 B TTE D)

19 Loans and interest receivables (Continued) 19 EWERKRFE @
(b) Analysed by credit quality b) REEBEZSWUT
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-CF
Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
EXEos  RAMEHD @y BR#s  fEHs st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEx TEx TEx FET FET FET

Loans receivables that ~ &®HBEEEREN

are not credit-impaired ~ EWRER

Current AN 51,853 23 51,876 83,100 552 83,652
Less than 1 month past due %152 1{E A 499 17 516 370 37 407
1 to 3 months past due BH1E3(EA 100 = 100 3,826 183 4,009
3 to 6 months past due HHISEG(E A 11,023 45 11,068 15,395 1,193 16,588
6to 12 months pastdue  #E6Z12(A A = = = 2,091 114 2,205

More than 12 months past B Ei#A:8121E A
due = = = = = =
Less: Loss allowance o BERE (403) 1) (404) 4,277) (1,163) (5,440)
63,072 84 63,156 100,505 916 101,421

Loans receivables that HBEEEREN
are credit-impaired EWE R
Current BN H - - - - - -
Less than 1 month past due #E34 A 118 A - - - - - -
1 to 3 months past due BWEEEA - - - - - -
3 to 6 months past due HHISE6(E A - - - - - -
6to 12 months pastdue  #BEI6Z12{H A - - - - - -
More than 12 months past & E & 121E A

due 9,997 681 10,678 25,463 1,337 26,800
Less: Loss allowance B R (9,997) (681)  (10,678) (25,463 (1,337)  (26,800)
63,072 84 63,156 100,505 916 101,421
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

20 Amount due from a related party

21

20 EWR—EBREALFE

Amount due from a holder of non-controlling  f& Ut — & FEFE fe i 25 35 A 78

interest

The amount due from a related party is unsecured, interest free
and repayable on demand.

2023 2022
—Eg-= =

HK$’000 HK$000

TET THET

3 3

RN —R2BEEALTHRAREER 28R
IBIMBESRIERE -

Contract liabilities 21 SHEE
2023 2022
—E-=F -
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT F&T
Receipts from sales of prepaid beauty REHEBNERTEZNRA
packages 10,385 3,412

When the Group receives a deposit before the service
commences, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of
a contract until the revenue recognised when services rendered
exceeds the amount of the deposits. The Group typically receives
a certain deposit, which is negotiated on case by case basis with
customers, on acceptance of slimming service contracts.

AEBRREABATEIRER - & 10H
N AEHNaBESE S RH RS AT
RO EEEEENEE/L - AKEB
FURB—EBENEE - HIIEEF D
BRERHERE SRS ORHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

21 Contract liabilities (Continueq) 21 EHNEE®
The movements in contract liabilities are summarised as follows: EHEEZEFBMNT
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEITL
At the beginning of the year REY] 3,412 11,601
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result FARBRBEMEEZEL
of recognising revenue during the year that ~ BEZ B TIREFEFTAEL
was included in the contract liabilities at afE
the beginning of the year (3,382) (11,204)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of ~ HEBNEREEZMELZA X
sales of prepaid beauty packages BEE M 55,942 52,643
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of FRRAERWEMELE Z AL
recognising revenue during the year that BEZRDTIEFAFERNETLZ
was included in new contract liabilities MeEXBaE
entered during the year (45,557) (49,644)
Exchange adjustments b H SRR (30) 16
At the end of the year RER 10,385 3,412
22 Trade and other payables 22 EREZRERAEMENSRIE
2023 2022
—B-=F —EFq-—
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade payables BB 558 898 1,502
Other payables and accrued charges HEMERFRIERERER 106,625 126,974
107,523 128,476
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled Ffr 8 FE N 88 5 5k 38 T2 HL A & 1~ 3R IR T8 AR %
within one year or are repayable on demand. R—FABERBIRERKERER -
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e MR AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

22

23

24

Trade and other payables (Continued)

Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors with the
following ageing analysis, based on the invoice date, as of the
end of the reporting period:

Within 1 month 1@ AR

Lease liabilities

As at 31 March 2023, the lease liabilities were repayable as
follows:

Within 1 year 15K
After 1 year but within 2 years 118 B2F A

Interest-bearing borrowings

o

0]

30|

Margin financing REEEME

2

As at 31 March 20283, margin financing bear interest at fixed rates
of 11.9% per annum, repayable on demand and is secured by
certain equity securities held in a margin securities account as set
out in note 17.

22

23

24

BNE S RIEREMEARE

(42)
(A= /

AT Bt AR B 5 5008 Kt JE A 3R IR
ZENESFAEEREZEAH N 2HE
KRR

2023 2022
—E== -
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TET
898 1,502
HEESE

W-F-=#=A=+-0 BRAHA
BT AR EE ¢

2023 2022

- E -_= ="
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
3,851 5,439
234 1,154
4,085 6,593

i B8 E

2023 2022

—E=-= ===
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
1,356 -

RZZE_=ZF=A=+—H RELH
EMBBEEFNER11.9%  RiREXRE
B BARERMEITRRES B SR
B2 ETHRAZBSEEM -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

25
financial position

(a)

financial position represents:

Hong Kong Profits Tax
— Provision for the year (note 6(a))
— Provisional tax paid
— Balance of profit tax provision relating
to prior years, net

PRC Enterprise Income Tax
— Provision for the year (note 6(a))
— Tax paid
— Exchange realignment

Represented by:
Current tax recoverable
— Hong Kong Profits Tax

Current tax payable
— Hong Kong Profits Tax
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax

Income tax in the consolidated statement of

Current taxation in the consolidated statement of

25 HREMBRARAZFER

(a) REEHMBRRERAZEHRHIERS

2023 2022
—E-=F —ET-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
BREFEH
- FNEBAE (W E6@) (188) (461)
- BEAE AR 595 132
- BRABEFENSREE
EeR R 2 20
409 (309)
PR EAMSH
- F N (M E6(a) (7,745) (8,709)
- BfFIE 5,980 6,969
-[ERAE 3 (128)
(1,762) (1,868)
(1,353) 2,177)
LARBIBEE R :
A Y O] BN EARL 18
- BEFEH 936 529
FEA BDEARS 18
- BAEMNEH (527) (838)
- PR EMEH (1,762) (1,868)
(2,289) (2,706)
(1,353) 2,177)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

25 Income tax in the consolidated statement of 25 FESHMERRRAZFTER &

financial position (Continuead)

(b) Deferred tax (b) EZEHIE
(i)  Deferred tax liabilities recognised: () EERZEEZHELE
The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised NG M BRARERCEL
in the consolidated statement of financial position and HEEEROIRRFEANZEE
the movements during the year are as follows: wm

Depreciation

Other

temporary
differences Total

H B R
=8 st
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHEIT FAET
3,029 3,946
(8,103) (4,042)
74 96

in excess
of the
related
depreciation
allowances
E#E
HEATERE
HK$°000
FAET
Deferred tax arising from: L TREFRELZ
ELERIR
At 1 April 2021 WZE-_—FmMHA—H 917
Credited to profit or loss S AB (W it6)

(note 6) (939)
Exchange adjustments PE 5 22
At 31 March 2022 and R-F—_—

1 April 2022 and 31 March =A=+—8"

2023 B FNMYA—HK

—E-=fF
=A=+—H -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

25 Income tax in the consolidated statement of
financial position (Continuead)

(b) Deferred tax (Continued)
(i) Deferred tax assets/liabilities not recognised:

As at 31 March 2023, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses
of HK$294,512,000 (2022: HK$329,122,000) and
deductible temporary differences of HK$66,135,000
(2022: HK$63,288,000) as it is not probable that
future taxable profits, against which the assets can be
utilised, will be available in any relevant tax jurisdiction
or entity. Of the total tax losses, HK$18,196,000
(2022: HK$66,027,000) will expire within 5 years and
the remaining tax losses of HK$276,316,000 (2022:
HK$263,095,000) have no expiry date under the
current tax legislation. Other temporary differences
are not material.

26 Defined contribution retirement plans

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance
(the “Ordinance”). The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under
the MPF Scheme, certain subsidiaries of the Group and the
eligible employees are each required to make monthly mandatory
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the scheme vest immediately, there is no
forfeited contribution that may be used by the Group to reduce
the existing level of contribution.
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25 HREMBRARAZFER @

(b) EEEBIE(E)
(i) FREZELHEELE BEEF:

R _=F=Z/H=+—
H + B R 7 (F ] 48 B8 & 7% A
AR ERETKRAIES X
RERB A EHEE
WMAEBETERRFTHES
18294,512,000 T(ZZE ==
& : 329,122,000/ T) R AT A
T E By = %066,135,000/8 7T (=
T~ — 4 : 63,288,000 L) i
RECHBEE - HIAKBBR
¥ - 18,196,000 T (=&
— % : 66,027,000/ T) 8
RAFAEM M THRES
18276,316,0008 L (ZE ==
F : 263,095,000/ 7T) R IE IR
ARETEERA - R4 EE
EZBWFAEK -

26 SFEMHRFRAKETE

AEERBRERHMEAES S ERE S
RIBEERBIED ([ZIED ) RDEEEER
RzEERIBHERTERFE([RER
i)  BEEFEAHBUREAEE
ZEBREFRMAREE - REBEBESE
AEBETHEARRAEREESAA
HEEBEBARZ5% A EIFL & A R
HEHER - BT 2BBMEHERLERASEAE
B3 A30,00078 7T ° [A1&T &I 1F i 2 kAl
BB - IR R HRATHAKER
R D BB EFKF o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

26 Defined contribution retirement plans

27

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, certain employees of the Group
had completed the required number of years of service under
the Ordinance and are eligible for long service payments on
termination of their employment. The Group is only liable to
make such payments when the termination meets the required
circumstances specified in the Ordinance and the employees’
entitlement is not covered by the aforesaid MPF scheme. As at
31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group’s contributions to the MPF
scheme and the accrued interest thereon exceeded the potential
liabilities should the required circumstances specified in the
Ordinance be met.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC also participate in defined
contribution retirement schemes covering its full-time PRC
employees. The schemes are administered by the relevant
government authorities in the PRC. The Group and the PRC
employees are required to make contributions based on certain
percentages of the applicable payroll costs as stipulated under
the requirements in the PRC and the relevant government
authorities undertake to assume the retirement benefit obligations
of all existing and future retired employees of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC. Contributions to the scheme vest
immediately, there is no forfeited contribution that may be used
by the Group to reduce the existing level of contribution.

Equity-settled share-based transactions

(@) Share option scheme adopted on 24 February 2016

On 24 February 2016, the Company has adopted a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). The purpose
of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant options to eligible participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to the
Company and/or any of its subsidiaries. Eligible participants
of the Share Option Scheme include full-time or part-time
employees, executives or officers (including executive,
non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors) of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries and
any consultants, agents or advisers who, in the sole opinion
of the Board, have contributed to the Company and/or
such subsidiaries.

26

27

SERFKERAKRE @

RZEZ=FRZFE_ZF=H=+—
H  A"&EEETEEETHNZIEFAETZ
HMERBFY TAERNEERILERE
RESRIARBE - ANEBEBETKRIER
BRIGHIIEE 2B T BELNARK - m
BEFRBZEEL TR LillaE S8R
ZE - RZE_=FRZT_F=F=+
—H - AEERBESFTEEL 2 H#RK
HEBFAMEBARIFTEZKINET 2B
M2 BEEE -

AEBERFEZMERATATAEREZRE
BE2HEREHRFRKEE - ZFTEA
TEEBERAKEERE AKERPEE
BEARTEREMIEZERFEXARZ
AT B AELHR - A8 R BT # R &
REAEASETBENBARZ2BAE R
RRERKER 2 RIKEFEE - 5T EIHER
B RE - A EAKE R gE M L RRER
B EFUKFE 2 B2 WK

EnEERONRKRZ

() M-E—R"E-AZ+HBHEHZE
AT 2

KRR -_E—RNFE_A-+WAK
m—IERERR AR B ([RERRAERT 2] -
BRETEHEEEARAMAEERR
HERTHBRE FARZEHARQR
K/ S EAT B A 7)Aok B B aE
TEB BB RE - BRETE 2
AERZBERIEART N REME
B ARz 2B ERES  1TTH
ABREHEE (BEHNT - EHRT
BEERBUFRTES)  URESE
CEEREBHEARARSZEH B
AREER BB Z AR~ REBAR
REZEREZAL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AN BRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

27 Equity-settled share-based transactions
(Continued)

(a)

Share option scheme adopted on 24 February 2016
(Continued)

Share options are granted to the eligible participants at a
consideration of HK$1. Each option gives the holder the
right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.
The period during which an option may be exercised will
be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save
that no option may be exercised more than five years after
it has been granted. No option may be granted more than
10 years after the date of approval of the Share Option
Scheme.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option plans of the Company at any time shall not
exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
plans of the Company (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) to each eligible participant in any
12-month period up to the date of grant in excess of 1% of
the number of shares in issue as at the date of grant, are
subject to the Company issuing a circular and the approval
from the Company’s shareholders in a general meeting.

The exercise price for a share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme (which
shall be payable upon exercise of the option) shall be such
price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine,
save that such price will not be less than the highest of (j)
the official closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant, which must be a business day; (i) the average closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (i) the nominal value of a
share.
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27 BEEERHANRRZ

(a)

/|

iy

(42)
=/

R-EBE-—RE-_A-+HHEHEMAZE
IRAETEI(E)

BRERREBIBELIRTAERSH
% B ERERTRE AENAR
BBARRERE - BhiEZ1TE
HKAREFTE2HRTE - EBRRER
BRHBBAFRIEITR - BBARE
FHEIfE R RSB B T FRTER
B RHE -

RIE IR AT 8 AR AT A AR
MRt BIRE R IR BB RITEZ A K
BT TR A RE R IT 2R
NEEHE @  TEBATERBEEITR
3 230% °

BRI A RRIR B AR 8 AR
RAEFMEMBEREFBRSEER
2EABRHBREREZTE B
AE i MOR TR 2 B ) 1T (E iy
AIREBRTTZBM AR MREERH
BEIEER+ A A B EeRE A
HEBTRMEBE 1%  RIARE
AL B HUR K RIS AN R B R R
RERAE EHAE -

RIBWE R 81K h 2 E %5 E B
Pt - HRBBBO 2ITEE(RET
EERESSMNERESTS2ER
T EZERIFERORORE L
BE(WARE R A)EM M A ®RRK
PRz EXWTE : ()R RERR
B AT (A S R B R AT SRR
Pk FHUWTE R (i) iy EE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B BHNERSN - HABTTES)

27 Equity-settled share-based transactions 27 BRGEROARREZ @
(Continued)
(b) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows: (b) REERRMHEHEDT :
Number of Contractual life
options Vesting conditions of options Tranche
BREZ
BREHE HSEEG EREH #x
Options to directors:
RTFESZERE:
— granted on 10 February 2021 1,500,988 Immediate from the date of 5.0 years 1
grant
-RZEZ—FZA+AEEY ZREER I B e 5.0
— granted on 10 February 2021 750,494  Immediate from the date of 5.0 years 2
grant
-RZE-—F-At+BEREY ZEER L B A 5.0
Options to employees:
BFEIZEBRE:
— granted on 10 February 2021 750,494  Immediate from the date of 5.0 years 1
grant
-RIEZ—FZATHEEY ZEER T B A 5.0F
— granted on 10 February 2021 1,500,988 Immediate from the date of 5.0 years 2
grant
-RIZEZ—FZA+BEEY FEER I B A 5.0
Options to a consultant:
BTEBZBRE:
— granted on 10 February 2021 750,494  Immediate from the date of 5.0 years 2
grant
-RIZEZ—FZA+EEY FREER I B A 5.0
Total share options granted 5,253,458
PR B R i 4R 21
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

27 Equity-settled share-based transactions 27

(Continued)

(c) The number and weighted average exercise prices of

share options are as follows:

Outstanding at the beginning
of the year and the end of

the year

Exercisable at the end of
the year

EEERGARES

(c) BREHERMNEFITEEDT :

2023
—E-=F
Weighted
average
exercise Number of
price options
IniEFEY B AE
TEE #H
HK$
Er
REY R FLL
AT
0.8700 5,253,458
RELRATITE
0.8700 5,253,458
KT

The options outstanding as at 31 March 2023 had an
exercise price of HK$0.8700 (2022: HK$0.8700) and a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.87 years

(2022: 3.87 years).

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &8 Z#REFR A 7
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3.87%F) o

2022
Weighted
average
exercise  Number of
price options
NS RE A
TEE # A
HK$
BT
0.8700 5,253,458
0.8700 5,253,458

—FZAZt+—RHEEKTE
AR 2 1T E £0.87008 L (= F
T 1 0.87008 L) M F I F
BRANERR287TE(ZT =



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B4 EBsh -

BB T2S)

27 Equity-settled share-based transactions
(Continued)

(d)

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted was measured by reference to the fair value of
share options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the
share options granted on 10 February 2021 was measured
by reference to valuations performed by CHFT Advisory
And Appraisal Limited, independent professional valuer
not connected to the Group, based on the binomial lattice
model. The contractual life of the share option was used as
an input into this model.

27 Ra@Z&ERBNRREZ @

(d)

Significant assumptions EpNE

Tranche #x

Fair value at measurement date REtEA 8z AFEAE
Share price f& (&

Exercise price 1IfE(E

Expected volatility (expressed as TEERRE IR (R ZTHA EifE T

historical volatility used in the
modelling under binominal lattice
model)

Option life (expressed as historical
volatility used in the modelling of
binominal lattice model)

Expected dividends

B )
BHIRLE

BRA T O EEE LR IR)

BREEHR B g
EBERETINEESL

Risk free interest rate (based on Generic &g 2K (BB — R E 5

T A%
&%)

Hong Kong Government Yield — 5Y)

Share options were granted under a service condition. This
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date
fair value measurement of the services received. There were
no market conditions associated with these share options
granted.

The fair value of the share options granted to the consultant
was measured at fair value of option granted as the
participant was providing services that are similar to those
rendered by employees.

BZ5%%

i

BREZAFERREBR
ARLBREMESESREZATE

T2 ERBELBRE L A FEE -
AR BE-—F_A+TEREZE
P 2 B R 2 2 BN 5% (8] 3 %
BB EEGEMETEATEE
[RARPEL Z EER A RAETE
ERUFE - BREZANWFHEH
(GERESPAIIN ¢

Share options granted
on 10 February 2021

TE--FZA+ERHZERE
1 2
0.440 0.411
HK$0.87 HK$0.87
0.87/8 7T 0.874 7T
HK$0.87 HK$0.87
0.87/ 7T 0.87#7T
67.56% 67.56%
5.0 years 5.0 years
5.0%F 5.0
Nil Nil
i i
0.42% 0.42%
REAHE TR IR — ARG IR K L - P
BEXRE XY BHATEFELR

RGN - M BEZECRBER
R R E

BYRERZERE 2 ATFERFAETR
BIREZ AFENZE  HEZREER
M2 R R 8 e & M -
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e R M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

28 Capital, reserves and dividends

28 BX - HERRE

(a) Share capital (a) MR
(i)  Authorised and issued share capital () ZEREBTRE
Number of
shares
& B
‘000 HK$’000
FhE FET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares: TR
At 1 April 2021, 31 March 2022, R-ZE-_—FMYA—A -
1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023 —E-_—_F#=ZA=+—H"
of HK$0.01 each —E-FMWA—HK
—E-=#=ZA=+—H
BFIRREE.OTE T 40,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHBE
Ordinary shares: TR
At 1 April 2021, 31 March 2022, R-_ZE-_—FMYA—A -
1 April 2022 of HK$0.01 each B -F=ZA=+—8Kk
—EFMA—AER
E{E0.018 7T 75,049 750
Issue of shares (note (i) BT (B 71 (i) 3,793 38
At 31 March 2023 of HK$0.01 each HRZZE=Z=%=A=+—H
FRREEC.01E T 78,842 788

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard
to the Company’s residual assets.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &8 Z#REFR A 7
Annual Report 2022/23 FERE

EBERFEABRERAEE
ERZBE - BN
REARBRELEERE—F - A
EBEBRRARBZRBEES

BRIZEMAL



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

28 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Share capital (Continueq)

(ii)

On 11 August 2022, the Company issued 3,792,677
ordinary shares of HK$1.1 per share as the
consideration shares in acquisition of Brilliant Step
Global Limited (see note 36).

Dividend

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: HK$NIl).

Nature and purpose of reserves

0]

Share premium

Under the Companies Laws of the Cayman Islands
where a company issues shares at a premium,
whether for cash or otherwise, a sum equal to the
aggregate amount of the value of the premiums on
their shares shall be transferred to share premium
account. The application of the share premium
account is governed by the Companies Laws of the
Cayman Islands.

No distribution or dividend may be paid to
shareholders of the Company out of the share
premium account unless immediately following
the date on which the distribution or the dividend
is proposed to be paid, the Company will be in a
position to pay its debts as when they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

28 BEX - @ERKRE @

WA ()

(a)

(b)

()

(ii)

RZTEZZFNA+—H &
AEIB 173,792,677k SR E
BE1ABT 2T RARERWE
Brilliant Step Global Limited 2 £
B, (RFIEES6) °

BRE

EFUV IR RNEE2E T _=F=
A=Z+—BHLIFEZERB(ZE==
& THIT) o

HEMEREDN

() REGEE

REFAERERRE - LA
Pom BTG - A AHRE
RekAMERR HAK—F
HEREBRN 2 G EBEEAR
ZHRBBEARMEER - B
RiaBRXFASFERFTE
HRE -

PR OE R BE IR 0 IR UK (AR
BHIRR - ARASARESE
BEEBBRETIHRERS
% BAAGERMDEERRA
ARARBRRDIKSBE RS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

28 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference between
the nominal value of the ordinary shares issued by the
Company and the aggregate of the share capital and
share premium of the subsidiaries acquired by the
Company through exchange of shares under a group
reorganisation scheme on 4 November 20083. Further
details are set out in the Company’s prospectus
dated 10 November 2008.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with accounting policy set out in
note 2(w).

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents the
fair value of the actual or estimated number of
unexercised share options granted to the eligible
participants of the Share Option Scheme recognised
in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
share-based payments in note 2(s)(ii).
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RELEREHNGE

(c)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

B EE

EHREBEARFTBEITEARR
ZEEREARRRENR-FZF
—Ft+—-ANBZSEEHEG
ElE Y gvileil - VNI - NG
BARRBO R ERERMEZE
B E—HFRHERALQAA
HA—TT=F+—-A+RHZ
BIRERE -

EXEE

R B mREEIINE L
BB RMELEZMBER
E8 o BEREME2WAEZ
SRR EIE -

B G5h
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B BHNERSN - HABTTES)

28 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

v)

(vi)

PRC statutory surplus reserve

Pursuant to the laws and regulations governing the
PRC enterprises, a PRC subsidiary of the Group,
which is a sino-foreign joint-venture enterprise, is
required to allocate at least 10% of its after-tax
profit but before dividend distribution to the general
reserve until the reserve has reached 50% of their
registered capital. The general reserve can only be
used, upon approval by the relevant authority, to
offset accumulated losses or increase capital. The
appropriation for the year ended 31 March 2023
amounted to HK$NIil (2022: HKS$NIl).

The enterprise expansion fund can only be used
to increase capital upon approval by the relevant
authority. Appropriation to enterprise expansion fund
is at the discretion of the board of directors of the
PRC subsidiaries. There was no appropriation during
the year (2022: HKS$NI).

The staff welfare and bonus fund can only be used
for the welfare of the PRC subsidiaries’ employees.
Appropriation to the staff welfare and bonus fund is
at the discretion of the board of directors of the PRC
subsidiaries. For Hong Kong reporting purposes,
this appropriation is charged to profit or loss and
included in other payables and accrued charges in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for land and buildings held for own use in
note 2(g). The revaluation reserve of the Group is
distributable to the extent of HK$3,574,000 (2022:
HK$3,574,000).

28 HA - HERRKE

(c)

hu

RELEREHNE)

v)

(vi)

B % E R H

BIEBEEEPREDEZEZERE
B AEE—BETREHEEB AR
(BFRIINEERE)VANEREESR
L10% R 1E - B2 IR SR
BHZE—REE BEEZHEE
ERHEHAMER 250% 5 1E o
—REBEATREEERILE
B AERERFTEEIIEME
K- BE_E-_=F=R=+
—BUEFEZREETHET(Z
ToFTET) o

TCEERESETREBEER
HEBRBEZBNER - HEE
TEBRESETEWE AR
EETCHBEREED - FR
WESIR(ZEZZF : TF
T) ©

BTRMNEERESEME
TEBARRE 2R - o
EEBETEIRERBESET
BffBAREEE 2 HIEHEE
BB BRERME @ HOE
BERmMK - st AKZETH
AR 3R 2 H A & A 3008 K FE AT
ER-

EfA#E

ERVEMREE - WREMNT
2(g)FTii BhIF1E B A L ih R 4E
FEMZ ST BRETEE
B AEEEHRRFEHEIDIRZ
#[E 53,574,000 T(— T - —
£ : 3,574,000/ 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AN BRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

28 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(vii) Other reserve

Other reserve represents (i) the difference between
the fair value of the consideration received and the
carrying amount of the net assets of Beauty University
Management Limited (“BUML”) attributable to the
non-controlling interest amounted to HK$16,492,000
(2022: HK$16,492,000); and (i) the excess of the
fair value of consideration received for the disposal
of 25% (2022: 25%) equity interest in a non-wholly
owned subsidiary over the increase in the carrying
amount of the non-controlling interest amounted to
HK$11,563,000 (2022: HK$11,563,000).

Distributability of reserves

As at 31 March 2023, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to owners of the Company amounted to
HK$482,017,000 (2022: HK$477,448,000).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded
by a sound capital position, and makes judgements to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

28 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(e)

Capital management (Continued)

The capital structure of the Group consists of trade
payables, other payables and accrued charges, lease
liabilities and interest-bearing borrowings net of cash and
cash equivalents (i.e. net debt) and capital, which comprises
all components of equity.

The directors review the capital structure on an annual
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost
of debt and cost of capital. Based on the recommendation
of the directors, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues as well as the issue of new debt.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject
to externally imposed capital requirements.

29 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The
Group is also exposed to equity price risk arising from its equity
investments in other entities.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade receivables, deposits and other receivables, loans
and interest receivables, amount due from a related party
and cash and cash equivalents.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Management has a credit
policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

29 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer. At the end
of the reporting period, the Group had a concentration of
credit risk as 4% (2022: 5%) and 9% (2022: 19%) of total
trade receivables due from the largest customer and five
largest customers respectively.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These take into
account the customer’s past repayment history, financial
position and other factors. Trade receivables are usually due
within 30 days to 90 days from the date of billing. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly different
loss patterns for different customer segments, the
loss allowance based on past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group’s different customer
bases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

29 Financial risk management and fair values

of financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

20 ¢MIAZERAREERAYT

(4E)

M=/

The following tables provide information about the Group’s

exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables:

Current (not past due) BIEA (AR #1 HA)
Less than 1 month past due  #HI A1 1E A
1 to 2 months past due wHA = 2(@ A
More than 2 but less than 4 @ Ef#R:E21E A8
months past due DA 4E A
More than 4 but less than 12 #1 888418 A 12
months past due D218 A
More than 12 months past
due 60 HRER R 1 21 A

Expected
loss rate
FAHEER
%

4.71%
5.31%
5.79%
6.45%
7.89%

100.00%

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &8 R ER A 7
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FERR(E)

EWE S %A (&)

TREIBRAEELEYE ZF0R

ZEERRHMORBHEEHECE
2023
—Eq=-=
Gross Net
carrying Loss carrying
amount allowance amount
IREAE EiERE REFE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
55,724 (2,627) 53,097
13,626 (723) 12,903
812 (47) 765
31 2 29
355 (28) 327
5,978 (5,978) -
76,526 (9,405) 67,121
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 SRITEZESREREER AT
of financial instruments (Continued) E@®

(a) Credit risk (Continued) (@) =EERKGE)
Trade receivables (Continued) FEWE 558 (&)

2022
N

Gross Net

Expected carrying Loss carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
TEHRE 1R FREAE E R AREHE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FAET FAET FET

Current (not past due) BUVER (k460 E) 1.39% 95,085 (1,317) 93,768
Less than 1 month past due %1 E8- K 11@ A 1.55% 5,952 (92) 5,860
1 to 2 months past due BH1 =28 A 1.35% 666 9) 657
More than 2 but less than 4 B HAR@21E A8

months past due DRr4AfE A 2.38% 42 1) 41
More than 4 but less than 12 #1E8RiE41E A (8

months past due LM21E A 2.94% 34 (1) 33
More than 12 months past

due 60 AR R A 1 2 A 100.00% 6,461 (6,461) =

108,240 (7,881) 100,359

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience in FEHBEERENAFTE 2 EREER
current year. These rates are adjusted to reflect differences BRET - RELERCIERARE - URBE
between economic conditions during the period over which HELBIRBERB 2 EBERR - &
the historic data has been collected, current conditions and AT AR5 A Be 2N 52 B ¥ R U SR TR TR HR )
the Group’s view of economic conditions over the expected FRATFHALEBERIBEEZEZBHNE
lives of the receivables. Al o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

29 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade
receivables during the year is as follows:

At the beginning of the year REAN

20 SRMTECSREREERAF
=RE))
(a) EERRE)
FEWRE S 58 (&)

Impairment loss/(reversal of impairment = B E R, CREE 2

loss) recognised #m)
Write-off i 58
Exchange adjustments ME B
At the end of the year RER

Other financial assets

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the end of
the reporting period with the risk of default as at the date
of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

- internal credit rating;

- external credit rating (as far as available); and

- actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions that

are expected to cause a significant change to the
counterparties’ ability to meet its obligations

FHEFRNERESFE BEBHY
EJR N

2023 2022
:E —_= —_=__

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

7,881 12,715
2,103 (5,261)

(2 -

(577) 427

9,405 7,881

Hh @& E

AEBERIGEREERERBENZ
ARt YRERBEZBHANEE
RREEREREEN - RFFEEE
R EEEEN  AEEKEER
2 EMRBLERO 2 AR ER Y65
REWBLERONRARETLE - F
BREEAIESZAERAKEZA
AR - BRIRESATIER

- SRR

- HMEMEEFARMER) K

- B MBREERRHER
HIEHIE AT B iR E
W5 EAIRANENLRE
K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

29 Financial risk management and fair values 20 SRITACERAREER AT

of financial instruments (Continued)
(@) Credit risk (Continued)
Other financial assets (Continued)

A summary of the assumptions underpinning the Group’s
ECL model is as follows:

Category Definition of category
bl BRIzESR
Stage 1 Exposures where there has not been a

significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition and that are not
credit-impaired upon origination.
FRER BRERAREERBRAKEEM - BE
ERAEBREERERNRR

Stage 2 Exposures where there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition but are not
credit-impaired.

E KRR BRERARGSERRE REEN - BR
HIREERENRR -

Stage 3 Exposures are assessed as credit-impaired
when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that asset have

occurred.

FE=[EER ER4A-ARZEEN - HEEMNMGE
ARREREABEETER - BIER
SEAEERIE -

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &8 Z#REFR A 7
Annual Report 2022/23 FERE

=RE))
@ EERRE)
B2 @EE(F)

AEEEHEERBERAEN ZHRK
Bt

Basis for recognition of ECL provision

BRRAFMEEBRBREZEE

Portion of the lifetime ECL associated with
the probability of default events occurring
within the next 12 months is recognised.

MR ER 1218 A R A Z X AV AT BE
MR KA TRBERERD -

Lifetime expected losses (i.e. reflecting the
remaining lifetime of the financial asset)
is recognised.

ERAXKARHEBEREIRREBEERT
F8) -

Lifetime expected losses is recognised and
interest revenue is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost (net of provision) rather than the
gross carrying amount.

7R E S AR (FIRR B 8) (M IERRE 4818)
JE R B B R 22 i #E SR ok A TR B 1R
STEM S -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RS HMEAASN - UGB TTZS)

29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 SRITEZESREAREER AT
of financial instruments (Continued) (&)

(a) Credit risk (Continued) (@) EERKE)

Other financial assets (Continued)

Loans and interest receivables

Loans to the top borrower and top five borrowers
constituted 13% and 43% (2022: 15% and 50%) of the
Group’s loans and interest receivables balance respectively
as at 31 March 2023.

The directors consider that the credit risk arising from the
loans receivable is significantly mitigated by the collaterals
held, if required. The Group does not provide any
guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk.

The Group rebutted the presumption of default under ECL
model for loans and interest receivables over 90 days past
due based on good repayment records for those loan
borrowers having continuous business with the Group.
They are assessed individually based on their probability of
default and exposure of default with reference to historical

Hitt £ MEE (&)

FEWE T LR 8

R-BE-=F=A=+—0 " 5K
HRARERERAZERD BIEAE
SEEWES &%\Jﬁﬁ%%ms%&m%
(ZZE=—F : 15%%50%) °

EEAR WEAFZE  BERMAKE
BERBERMELEZEERR - K
SEYEEEHEMA A LS AEEHER
EERRZER -

EREAEBBERTER CERE
RABRESERL  AEEDHERS
HARBIBO0H 2 MR B 3R & 7 B R 18 A
FEEEBEATEBENZER MR
BEENREERENRR  £2%
BAEEEBEBER  WHIREE RATE

M =B REL BRI -

credit loss experience, adjusted by current and forward-
looking factors.
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e R M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

29 Financial risk management and fair values

of financial instruments (Continued)

(@) Credit risk (Continued)

Other financial assets (Continued)

Loans and interest receivables (Continued)

Movements in the gross amount of loans and interest

receivables are as follows:

At 1 April 2021

New loans originated
Transfer

Repaid during the year

At 31 March 2022 and
1 April 2022
New loans originated
Transfer
Repaid during the year
Transfer as consideration of
assets acquisition (note 36)
Write-off

At 31 March 2023

By class at 31 March 2023

- Loans receivable
= Interest receivables

By class at 31 March 2022

- Loans receivable
~ Interest receivables

(a)

45 )

FERR#E)

Hitt £ BEE (&)

EWE R FE (&)

U ERENE 2 BT

20 $MIAZSHMAREERAY
EX¢

A5 )

BT

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E-RER BB FZRE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FEr
R-Z-_—%MA—H 50,870 23,549 16,042 90,461
HELEX 108,078 2,540 = 110,618
E 64 (11,412) (10,281) 21,693 =
FREEM (54,577) (1,908) (10,935) (67,418)
R-B-—4#=A=+—-8K
—E-—#MA—A 92,959 13,902 26,800 133,661
HELER 71,234 3,136 539 74,909
B (12,252) 9,811 2,441 =
FREEN (103,382) (10,820) (3,328) (117,530)
BRAEENENE
(B1:#36) = (1,028) = (1,028)
sy = = (15,774) (15,774)
RZE-_=F=A=+—H 48,559 15,001 10,678 74,238
R-Z-=%=f=+-H
RERNES
- BWER 48,536 14,939 9,997 73,472
- YRS 23 62 681 766
48,559 15,001 10,678 74,238
R-B--f=R=+-H
BERE S
- EWER 92,370 12,412 25,463 130,245
- RIS 589 1,490 1,337 3,416
92,959 13,902 26,800 133,661
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

29 Financial risk management and fair values

of financial instruments (Continued)

k

20 $WIAZSHAREER AT

(a) Credit risk (Continued) EEREE)
Other financial assets (Continued) Bt @EE &)
Loans and interest receivables (Continued) JEWEF R FIE (&)
An analysis of changes in the corresponding ECL EHEAERREEBEREES o H
allowances is as follows: T -
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
KR ERR EZER wct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 April 2021 RZE-—FMA—H 6,087 7,958 16,042 30,087
New originated HEE 666 = = 666
Impairment loss recognised ERRRESR 1 7,428 = 7429
Repaid during the year FREEHN (2,127) (5,056) - (7,183)
Transfer B (4,335) (6,423) 10,758 =
Impact on year ended ECLs of FASRBE HER ER
exposures transferred between BHEEBBRB I FE
stages during the year (48) 1,289 - 1,241
At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 RZZEZZF=A=+—HK
—“E-—#MmA—H 244 5,196 26,800 32,240
New originated HEE 82 = = 82
Impairment loss recognised BRARESSE 90 1,580 121 1,791
Repaid during the year FREEF (140) (3,742) (2,910) (6,792)
Transfer Ez 84 797 (2,990) 2,193 =
Impact on year ended ECLs of FARRBE AEBR I ER
exposures transferred between BHEEFBRR FE
stages during the year (809) 96 248 (465)
Write-off ki - = (15,774) (15,774)
At 31 March 2023 RZE-_=F=A=+—H 264 140 10,678 11,082
By class at 31 March 2023 R-ZE-=£=8=+-H
RERES
- Loans receivable - ERER 264 139 9,997 10,400
- Interest receivables - EUFIE = 1 681 682
264 140 10,678 11,082
By class at 31 March 2022 R-BZZf=ZA=1+-8
RERE S
- Loans receivable - BRER 243 4,084 25,463 29,740
- Interest receivables - R 1 1,162 1,337 2,500
244 5,196 26,800 32,240
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

29 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)
Other financial assets (Continued)
Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include deposits
and other receivables, amount due from a related party and
cash and cash equivalents. The Group’s other receivables
as at 31 March 2023 comprise mainly amounts due from
business partners and consultants, advances to staff
and trade deposits amounting to HK$53,937,000 (2022:
HK$51,941,000) in total.

The Group accounts for its credit risk by appropriately
providing for ECLs on a timely basis. In calculating the ECL
rates, the Group considers historical loss rates for each
category of receivables and adjusts for forward looking
macroeconomic data.

An analysis of changes in the corresponding ECL
allowances under stage 1 is as follows:

20 MIAZEMAREERAYT

(a)

E@®

EEmE ()

Bt MEE

BRI A BT RS HEE

REBHERAEZHMWEREERERS
MEAMEUGRIE - B —BEEALTHIEA
URBEEREEEY RZTZZ=F=
B=+—8 AEEZEMERFREFTE
PIEEREREAREMRZZE mET
22 HIERE 5HIRE #85153,937,00078
TT(ZZT = —4 : 51,941,000/ 7T) °

AR ERBRE R ENE RS EE
REBFHPEERAR o N HERBHE
SEREE  ARESEESERRTE
7 B 52 1R S 3 9L AT A 7 R R
eI B -

EEE-RBETAEENEEERLR
BB HITWT -

HK$'000

FHET

At 1 April 2021 R-ZE-_—FMA—H 6,004

Impairment loss recognised BEERBEEE 4,406

Write-off s (146)
At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 RZB__F=A=+—RHARZZT_

—#MmMA—HA 10,264

Impairment loss recognised EERFEBE 1,945

Write-off gz (4,101)

Exchange adjustments bE H SRR (380)

At 31 March 2023 RZE-=F=A=+—H 7,728

Except for the abovementioned receivables, the Group
has assessed that the expected credit losses rate for
other financial assets at amortised costs is immaterial
under 12-month ECL method. Thus, no loss allowance for
other financial assets at amortised costs at the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B BHNERSN - HABTTES)

29 Financial risk management and fair values 20 SRITACEREAREER AT
of financial instruments (Continued) =XE))
(b) Liquidity risk (b) REBEESER
Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible AEBETREICEECEREERAFZH
for their own cash management, including the short term SERE  PIERCEKRCHPRERTIEE
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to FAENEARSF R - EEEEBRBE
cover expected cash demands, subject to approval by THREEBEKER  AEARRESSH
the Company’s board when borrowings exceed certain o AEECBRATHERERBES
predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to R UBREAFAEER S RERAR
regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that it Mg LR BLFHERREETZ R
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable B2 RAEFRERE - NEMNERSEH]
marketable securities and adequate committed lines of MBESHE o
funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.
The following tables show the remaining contractual TRETASESREBEREBARZH
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s TEHIHE  REORMBERERE(R
financial liabilities which are based on the contractual ERAGOMES (WZE)IZRN 2R
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments ZBRITH R E 2 F BT RO R A S [ 7] 88
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on AXH e &FABER
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Group can be required to pay:
2023
—BC=F
Total Within More than
contractual 1 year 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted oron less than
amount cash flow demand 5 years
ERRER 1FAD BE1E
REAE ReRelE EEXR B R5F
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FEL
Trade payables ERE SR 898 898 898 =
Other payables and accrued
charges HtbENFIEREEBR 106,625 106,625 106,625 -
Lease liabilities HEARE 4,085 4,192 3,956 236
Interest-bearing borrowings HEEE 1,356 1,369 1,369 -
112,964 113,084 112,848 236
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 SRITEZESREREER AT

of financial instruments (Continued) EXE-,
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBEELEKEGE)
2022
Total Within More than
contractual 1 year 1 year but
Carrying  undiscounted oron less than
amount cash flow demand 5 years
BHRUR 1ER BB1F
FEE Hen2ps FEZ K BARSE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FET FAET
Trade payables S 1,502 1,502 1,502 =
Other payables and accrued Hit B R
charges et ER 126,974 126,974 126,974 =
Lease liabilities HEAR 6,593 6,848 5,675 1,178
135,069 135,324 134,151 1,178
(c) Interest rate risk (c) RZEEB
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank AEEBZFERBREZRABRITE
deposits, loans receivable, lease liabilities and interest- HoBUER HEAGBEWAEE
bearing borrowings. Deposits placed issued at variable B -REBBEZEFERZTFTIAR
rates and loans receivable, bank deposits, lease liabilities BERSEHBWEN - RITEFERK
and interest-bearing borrowings at fixed rates expose the HEABERKEEESD < AE B
Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest ZHEERENERR R A FEF KR
rate risk respectively. The Group’s interest rate profile as b o REEETEEER 2 FERAS
monitored by management is shown below. RTXIR e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

29 Financial risk management and fair values

of financial instruments (Continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the
Group’s net deposits (being bank deposits less interest-

20 $RMIAZSHAREERAT

(b) RBEEEMEGE)
FEHE

TRAMAEER2HRAR 2 FF0F
BERTEFRMEESRAE &

bearing financial liabilities or vice versa) at the end of the Z IR 2 MIEBE -

reporting period.

Variable rate deposits:
Bank deposits and cash at
bank

Net fixed rate deposits/
(borrowings):
Loans receivable

Bank deposits

Lease liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowings

Total net deposits

PRI
RTERRBITRE

EEFR(EE)

HEE
JE U B 3R
RITTEK

HERE
M EfEE

TR FHR R

2023 2022
—E-=F —EF-=

Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
BRAI= BERRA=

% HK$’000 % HK$'000

FET FEIT

0.9% 97,021 1.4% 127,310
7.0% — 5.0% —

48.0% 63,072 48.0% 100,505
3.3% 50,000 N/A

TEA -

5.0% (4,085) 5.0% (6,593)
11.9% (1,356) N/A

T EA -

107,631 93,912

204,652 221,222
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

29 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

As at 31 March 2023, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would have decreased/
increased the Group’s loss after tax by HK$728,000 (2022:
would have increased/decreased the Group’s profit after
tax by HK$955,000) and would have decreased/increased
the Group’s accumulated losses by HK$728,000 (2022:
HK$955,000). Other components of equity would not be
affected (2022: HK$NIl) by the changes in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s loss after tax and accumulated
losses assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to re-measure those financial instruments held by
the Group which expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk for at the end of the reporting period. The 100
basis point increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the period until the next annual reporting period.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2022.

Foreign currency risk

The Group is not exposed to significant currency risk
as most of sales, income, purchases and expenses are
denominated in the functional currency of the operations to
which they relate.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &8 Z#REFR A 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

29 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(e)

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity investments held for trading and classified as
financial assets at FVPL (see note 17).

The Group’s listed investments are listed on both the Main
Board and GEM of the Stock Exchange. Decisions to buy
or sell trading securities are based on daily monitoring of
the performance of individual securities and other industry
indicators, as well as the Group’s liquidity needs. The
portfolio is diversified in terms of industry distribution, in
accordance with the limits set by the Group.

As at 31 March 2023, it is estimated that an increase/
decrease of 5% in equity price, with all other variables
held constant, would have decreased/increased the
Group’s loss after tax by HK$4,071,000 (2022: would
have increased/decreased the Group’s profit after tax by
HK$3,645,000) and would have decreased/increased the
Group’s accumulated losses by HK$4,071,000 (2022:
HK$3,645,000). Other components of consolidated equity
would not be affected (2022: HK$NIl).

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s results loss after tax (and accumulated
losses) and other components of consolidated equity that
would arise assuming that the changes in the stock market
index had occurred at the end of the reporting period and
had been applied to re-measure those financial instruments
held by the Group which expose the Group to equity price
risk at the end of the reporting period. It is also assumed
that the fair values of the Group’s equity investments would
change in accordance with the historical correlation with
the relevant stock market index and that all other variables
remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2022.

20 SRMTECSREREERAF
=RE))
(e) BAEKR

AEEEBREFIER S RN BRI
RNHEFABRRZEMEE 2 BAR
B2 EREEH(RMET)

AEE 2 EHRERE A ERRK
GEM LT - EEEFIRE A ERRER
EFREMITERER CRBARKE
Bz RBESFRMELEERTE
REMARBAREMRRED BN
TRTTE -

R-ZB-_=F=A=+—80 " &
P A(BIE EF, T BR5%M A E
BHIE AEBZBREEES
WA AN4,071,0008 T (S -
F o AREBZBRBEERFEEN R
423,645,000/ 70) + MAEEZ R5T
BB 1 Hn4,071,000/8 7T (=
T~ —4F : 3,645,000/87T) © H 4R
AEEAD BT EeSFE (T =

BB -

BREDMBERAEB ZBRBEEE
(RRFER) REMGEERETD
eHRZABEE  ERBEBRTE
HEHONERPRBERBDEAR
BN EAEERERPERAHS

EEAXBRAEBERARZZESHT
A ARBRAERERAKREZAF
BERSREEERMESZBEIEE
MimEs) mMATAEEMBEREST
oo T _FRERELEETY
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 SRITEZESREREER AT
of financial instruments (Continued) E@®

(f)  Fair value measurement

0 ATEHE

(i)  Financial assets measured at fair value () BAFEAEZELHEE
Fair value hierarchy NFEER
The following table presents the fair value of the TREJNAEERZHBARINA
Group’s financial assets at the end of the reporting KEMEERBEY RS E
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the BIZE135% [ A FEFEIFMAT
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS Z=BAFEEBLETHE
13 “Fair Value Measurement”. The level into which a TREEAFEE HEATE
fair value measurement is classified is determined with HECESRS2ENTHERE
reference to the observability and significance of the FItAgASIE 2 ATEBRIEE
inputs used in the valuation technique as follows: MEEZEUMERE

Level 1 valuations:

F—RfHE -

Level 2 valuations:

E_RHE -

Level 3 valuations:

FE=RHE -

Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.
EFEAE-—RBABBEEINFEAEERM S LHEREERE B ZREH
BRE)FELATE -

Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to
meet Level 1, and not using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable
inputs are inputs for which market data are not available.
ERAFE-—RBMABBECIREE - R TEEWABE B ERAEKRRA
BRBABBAEZATE  TABRREARBERRTSHE 2B AR
-

Fair value measured using significant unobservable inputs.
EREANBEBABBAEZ A TE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 SRITEZESREAREER AT

of financial instruments (Continued) EXE-,
()  Fair value measurement (Continued) n 2DFEFEGE)
(i)  Financial assets measured at fair value () BAFEAEZLHBEEGE)
(Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) ANFEERGE)
The following table illustrates the fair value TREMAEFEREEZD
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial FEAEER
assets:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F— FR F=ZR @t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FEr FET FET FET
Fair value measurementat R-B==f
31 March 2023 =A=+-H2
AFEHE
Financial assets at FVPL: BATEHABRZ
SREE
- Listed equity securities in Hong - REHE 2 E TR A %
Kong 97,504 - - 97,504
~ Unlisted convertible bonds in ~ ~ R&# 2 3 L Al %
Hong Kong 5 = = 5,679 5,679
- Unlisted equity fundin Hong ~ — &S 7 3F E Ik A
Kong e = 3,915 - 3,915
97,504 3,915 5,679 107,098
Fair value measurementat R=-Z==
31 March 2022 =ZA=t-82
ATPEE
Financial assets at FVPL; BATEHAERZ
SREE
- Listed equity securities in Hong - R&# 2 E A 5
Kong 82,953 - 4,346 87,299
- Unlisted convertible bonds in -~ — R&E 27 JE E A%
Hong Kong E% - - 4,924 4,924
- Unlisted equity undinHong ~ ~ &S 2 3F ERRA
Kong 2 - 4,995 = 4,995
82,953 4,995 9,270 97,218
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

20 SMIAZSMAREERAT

29 Financial risk management and fair values

of financial instruments (Continued) EH®
()  Fair value measurement (Continued) nH AFEFERE
(i)  Financial assets measured at fair value (i) BLAFEFEZLHEEGE)

(Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level
2, or transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year
ended 31 March 2023.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group
transferred a listed equity security in Hong Kong with
a gross carrying amount of HK$7,982,000 from level
1 to level 3 as the Group could not obtain quoted
prices in active markets due to the suspension of
share trading of an equity security. Other than that,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level
2, or transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year
ended 31 March 2022.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

Information about Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair values of the unlisted equity fund as at 31
March 2023 and 2022 are determined with reference
to the net asset value of the fund which are provided
by the broker.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED {6 & E#RERA T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

29 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(f) Fair value measurement (Continued)

0]

Financial assets measured at fair value
(Continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of the bonds as if they do not include
a conversion option is determined using discounted
cash flows method. A discount rate of 13.2% (2022:
14.5%) is applied. The fair value measurement is
negatively correlated to the discount rate.

The fair value of the conversion option embedded in
the convertible bonds is determined using Binomial
Lattice model and the significant unobservable input
used in the fair value measurement is the expected
volatility. An expected volatility of 46.5% (2022:
43.1%) is applied. The fair value measurement is
positively correlated to the expected volatility.

The fair value of listed equity instruments was
determined using price/earning ratios of comparable
listed companies adjusted for lack of marketability
discount of 15.80%. The fair value measurement
was negatively correlated to the discount for lack of
marketability. As at 31 March 2022, it was estimated
that with all other variable held constant, a decrease/
increase in discount for lack of marketability by 10%
would have no significant impact on the Group’s
profit or loss. During the year ended 31 March 2023,
the Group disposed of its listed equity instruments
categorised under Level 3 fair value measurement.

29 £@T

=RC)

AveREREER QY

(H 2FEFEGE

(i

BAFPHENBZEHMEE (E)

BEE=RLFEFSENEN

BEHEATFEDEESTEEHE
BBEEENBRTUAITERS
RAEFUAETE - KA
ERAI3 2% (T
14.5%) - A EFFEHRITEE
B AEEE -

AMBRESFBESHEREER
MAFEDEBR -EBEAHESE
BEAEBT  AFEFEFE
ARERTABRE ABIEA
TEHRTE - IRAMTEEIKE A
46.5%(ZF = "F : 431%) °
ANFEFEEEEFIEE LM
BIR -

EPARATRZ AFEERA]
bk Em AR ZHE XYL
RERT 5 M B IEHTE15.80%
ETHERERE - A VEFE
BR RIS BT EE R A
MR- RZT__F=R=+
— B AETEABEME IR
FAB2BERT  RBRMIHR
BIEYTER D HEIN10% % A
SEHERYEEATE - HE
ZEZ=FZRA=+—HLHF
B AEBECDHENE=AR
FEFENLEHRATA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

29 Financial risk management and fair values 20 SRITACERAREER AT

of financial instruments (Continued) EH®
()  Fair value measurement (Continued) n 2DFEFEE)
(i)  Financial assets measured at fair value (i) BLAFEFEZLHEEGE)
(Continued)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements BHE=ZRANFEFEHER
(Continued) (&
The movement of the unlisted convertible bonds and HE_ZT_=Z#=ZA=+—H
listed equity securities in fair value measurements EFEE  BZFARETAH
within Level 3 during the year ended 31 March 2023 REHER ETRAZLHE AT
were as follows: Bt EEEHNT :
Unlisted Listed
convertible equity
bonds securities Total
KEmm £
AR ES IR A 35 st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 April 2021 R-ZZE-_—FMA—H - - -
Transfer from Level 1 to RE—REZF=MH
Level 3 - 7,982 7,982
Payment for purchases BEMK 4,700 - 4,700
Fair value gain/(loss) REZFPRERZAFE
recognised in profit or loss Wz, (G18) 224 (3,636) (3,412)
At 31 March 2022 and R-F——
1 April 2022 =A=+—8K
—E-_4FMA—H 4,924 4,346 9,270
Disposals s - —* -
Realised loss recognised in -~ RIBZH#ER 2 EIHEE
profit or loss (4,346) (4,346)
Fair value gain recognised in ~ Ri8mF#ER 2 AFE
profit or loss e 755 - 755
At 31 March 2023 i
=A=+—8H 5,679 - 5,679
* Below HK$1,000. * 1,000 7T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RS HMEAASN - UGB TTZS)

29 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(f) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets measured at fair value
(Continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(Continued)

The fair value changes and realised loss were included
in “fair value gain on financial assets at FVPL, net”
and “realised (loss)/gain on financial assets at FVPL,
net” under “revenue” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss respectively.

(i)  Fair value of financial instruments carried at
other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
March 2023 and 2022.

20 ¢MIAZSRHAREERAYT

/485
("8 /

DR EFEGE)

(i

(i)

BAFPHENBZEHMEE (E)

EHE=RAFEBHER
()

NP EEHREREES FIF
AR BEm R Wa] B NEA
FEAANBGEZEREEZR
FENSFE] RRAFER
ABHRZEREEZZR(B
18), W o

PFBEAFEAEZSHTA
AFH

AN 5 B 9% AK 7N Bk 5H AR AN 51 BR
ZeMTEREmEREN-Z
—=ZFRZE-__F=ZR=+
—BZAFEITESAEZR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

30 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows from financing

30 EREBELCEBYHK

TRHFMAEBcHEDELZE

B BRASKIRSES  2REPE

=
B =

EZBENEEREREGEANARAKRE
MEMRARE ZEERERERTNA

REMEHELEZAE -

activities.
Interest-
Lease bearing
liabilities borrowings Total
HEAE HEFE st
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FHEIT FHEITL FHEITL
(note 23) (note 24)
(Ht5t23) (Kt at24)
At 1 April 2021 R-ZE-_—FWA—H 11,5627 = 11,527
Changes from financing cash BEREFRELH :
flows:
Capital element of lease rentals ~ ERIHEER S 2 AL LD
paid (11,058) - (11,058)
Interest element of lease rentals BN ERE 25835
paid (441) - (441)
Total changes from financing cash BI&IR& R EE BB
flows (11,499) - (11,499)
Exchange adjustments BN 135 = 135
Other changes: Higs g :
Interest on lease liabilities HEBBEZFE HE5E)
(note 5(a)) 441 - 441
New lease entered SEIEE 5,989 - 5,989
Total changes HE)mss 6,430 - 6,430
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

30 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from 30 EREBELEZEBHE®
financing activities (Continuead)

Interest-
Lease bearing
liabilities borrowings Total
HEAE MEEE st
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FHET FHET FHET
(note 23) (note 24)
(K17#23) (Hiit24)
At 31 March 2022 and 1 April R=-ZE-—#=H=+—H

2022 E—ZE-__FmMA—AH 6,593 - 6,593
Changes from financing cash BEBEESHRELE :

flows:

Capital element of lease rentals ~ EfNHEEMR S 2 A& o

paid (6,688) - (6,688)
Interest element of lease rentals BN EERE 25 S35

paid (899) - (399)
Proceeds from interest-bearing M EEE Z FrEIE

borrowings - 1,329 1,329
Total changes from financing cash Bi& IR &R 8 & 848

flows (7,087) 1,329 (5,758)
Exchange adjustments EHAE (157) - (157)
Other changes: Hihgs .

Interest on lease liabilities HMEBEZFE (I i7s@)

(note 5(a)) 399 - 399
Interest on borrowings (note 5(a)) & & 2 F B (K:5() - 27 27
Lease modification HEB®W 4,923 - 4,923
COVID-19-related rent 20198 M Im FHAERAE S

concession (note 4) e (Hit4) (586) = (586)
Total changes g FEEE 4,736 27 4,763
At 31 March 2023 R-B-=f=HF=+—H 4,085 1,356 5,441
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB INEEASN

31

32

BHAAETTZ5)

Banking facilities

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had general banking facilities
amounting to HK$22,860,000 (2022: HK$24,666,000) which are
secured by personal guarantee given by a director of a subsidiary.

At the end of the reporting period, these facilities have not been

utilised (2022: HK$NIl).

Commitments

Commitments outstanding at the end of the reporting period not
provided for in the financial statements are as follows:

Contracted for acquisition of property, plant
and equipment

BRI WEBME

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED {6 & E#RERA T
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RITRE

MR-ZZE-_=%F=A=+—08 KEBEZ—
MIRTTREE /&22,860,0008 L (— &2 = =
F 1 24,666,00057T) © L—MWEBAFZ
—HREFRMHZEAAERERR
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BB o

I
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2023 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

33 Material related party transactions and

balances

(a)

(b)

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as
disclosed in note 7 and chief executive officer, is as follows:

Directors

Directors’ fee

Discretionary bonuses

Salaries, allowances and other benefits

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan

Chief executive officer

Salaries, allowances and other benefits

Discretionary bonuses

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan

=

B0

By IEAT

¥ra o RMREMEN

(a)

FEHBRKET 2 K

ITHHAR
¥ R REMEN
By BIEAT

FUE S URRET 81 Z 3K

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note

5(b)).

Other related party transactions

Balances with related parties are disclosed in the statement

of financial position and in note 20.

(b)

TEEEAEME

33 EXBEALRZ K&

AEBETREEABZME (BN
ATHARBEC N TARREE ZFA
RENFITRER ZFKB)MT !

2023 2022
—E_=HF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
600 600

720 720

36 36

1,356 1,356
3,600 3,600

18 18

3,618 3,618
4,974 4,974

HINEm ATE TR (R M

5(0)) °

HREALRS

BRRE A £ 2 SRR R A AR R R Y

FE20¥ 5= -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

34 Financial information of the Company 34 ARTRHBEER

(@) Statement of financial position

Non-current asset
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Tax recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Other payables and accrued charges
Current tax payable

Net current assets

NET ASSETS

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

(a) BBMRRE

2023 2022
—E-=F B F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
REBEE
RHB AR ZIRE 4 4
REBEE
g DY =N R 492,097 487,680
FEMFRIE - e REM
FE W SR TE 1,298 1,338
AT UL B 7 I8 68 =
HekReEE 139 279
493,602 489,297
REBEaE
FEAHBY B A B3R IE 6,096 6,102
Ef BN ERE A 2,481 2,743
FE BNEARR IR = 34
8,577 8,879
REBEETFE 485,025 480,418
EEFHE 485,029 480,422
BARRHE
f& A 788 750
i 484,241 479,672
EREEH 485,029 480,422
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(Br BHNERASN - BB T 25)

34 Financial information of the Company 34
(Continued)
(b) Movements in components of equity

Details of the changes in the Company’s individual
components of equity during the year are as follows:

AP BEER @

(b) HEZHT2BE

RAEFEAAT 2 ARESSH 2B

ZEEOT :

Share-based

Share Share payment Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve losses equity
Ba  ROOEE ROAREE  RHEER  EREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL T FEL FAL TAT
At 1 April 2021 R-B--%WmA-H 750 787,794 2,224 (311,827) 478,941
Changes in equity for 2022: TEICERERED .
Profit and total comprehensive FRENRZENREE
income for the year - - - 1,481 1,481
At 31 March 2022 and RZBZZE=f=1+-HEK
1 April 2022 —E-"EMA-H 750 787,794 2,224 (310,346) 480,422
Changes in equity for 2023: SBRICEZEREE !
Profit and total comprehensive FRENRZENRLHE
income for the year - - - 435 435
Issue of shares (note 28/a)/i) Bl (Wat28()0) 38 4,134 = = 4172
At 31 March 2023 W-B-=%=h=+-H 783 791,928 2,224 (309,911) 485,029

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &8 R ER A 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

35 Subsidiaries’ information

35

As at 31 March 2023, the Company had direct or indirect

interests in the following subsidiaries, which are

private limited

companies or, if established/incorporated outside Hong Kong,

have substantially the same characteristics as

a Hong Kong

private limited company. The class of shares held is ordinary
unless otherwise stated. The particulars of these subsidiaries as

at 31 March 2023 are set out below:

Name of company Place of operations

NEER EXBE

Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands:

REBELHEZMAL :

Sau San Tong Holdings Inc. Hong Kong
i

Sau San Tong China Holdings Limited Hong Kong
&R

Smartime International Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong
&R

Sau San Tong China Investment Ltd. Hong Kong
i

Wise Fortune Holdings Corp. Hong Kong
&R

Sau San Tong China Development Limited ~ Hong Kong
&R

Gold Lane International Holdings Ltd. Hong Kong
&R

Victory Assets Holdings Ltd. Hong Kong
&R

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &8 Z#REFR A 7
Annual Report 2022/23 FERE

Particulars of issued
and paid up capital
BRETRBERERE

1,000 shares of US$1 each
1,000 SREEIET RS

1 share of US$1 each
1REREEIZTZ RS

1 share of US$1 each
1REREEIET2 &R

100 shares of US$1 each
100 ERABIET RN

10 shares of US$1 each
10REREEIZTZRG

10 shares of US$1 each
10RERAEBIZT ]G

100 shares of US$1 each
100REREBIET KRR

100 shares of US$1 each
100REREBIET RN

i I~ W B

NRZTE_=F=A=+—8B  AQAFHE
SEENRTIMHB AR (BRAABRAR K
MR BB AINKL M - BB AHE
EBLABRRAAREBERZ EBHB)
Bz - RSB AN - FIERMDER A
LER - ZEMBARNR T -_=ZF=A
=t+—HZFHBWT :

Proportion of effective
ownership interest
BERBEARRRLA
Direct Indirect  Principal activity
B B TEEH
100% = Investment holding
REER
100% = Investment holding
RERR
100% = Investment holding
RERR
100% = Investment holding
RERR
100% = Investment holding
RERR
100% = Investment in securities and
investment holding
REBFRREER
100% - Inactive
gEeXx
100% ~ Investment holding
RERR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

35 Subsidiaries’ information (Continued) 35 MEBARER®
Proportion of effective
ownership interest
Particulars of issued ERREEELSLA
Name of company Place of operations  and paid up capital Direct Indirect  Principal activity
NAER EEHY BRTRBERAFE E# BE  FEEER

Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands:
(Continued)
REBELHEIMA T (B)

Concept de beauté Limited Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each 100% = Inactive
B RERAEIZTLRA gEEX
L'institut Sau San Tong de la recherche Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each 100% - Inactive
scientifique de beauté (en France) a
Limited
&B 100RBREEIET R 4
Bravo Media Limited Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each 100% = Investment holding
&R 1REREREIET2RA RERR
Gold Platform Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each 100% = Investment holding
&R 1REREEIZTRH RERR
Creative Time Investments Limited Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each 100% = Investment holding
3 100RERAEIET 2Bl RERR
Briliant Concept Co. Ltd. Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each - 100%  Investment holding
BB REREEIETRR REER
Bright Rainbow Investments Ltd. Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each - 100%  Inactive
3 1008 B RAEIET 2Bl gEex
Sau San Tong (Shanghai) Limited Hong Kong 1,000 shares of US$1 each - 50%  Investment holding
(‘SST(SHY') note (i) (Bifzty)
B 1,000 BREEIET 2 R REER
Sau San Tong Healthy Trim Institute Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each - 51%  Investment holding
(Hangzhou) Limited (‘SST(HZ)')
i 100RBRAEIET R RERR
Sau San Tong (Shanghai) Development Ltd.  Hong Kong 10 shares of US$1 each - 50%  Inactive

(‘SST(SHDY) (rote (i) Bz
&R 10RERAEIXT 2B TEEX

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &8 R ER A 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

35 Subsidiaries’ information (Continued)

Name of company

AL

Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands:
(Continued)
REBRELHESMA T (&

Sau San Tong (Beijiing) Investments Limited

Machiko Enterprises Inc.

Sau San Tong Healthy Trim Institute
(Shenzhen) Limited ("SST(SZ)")

Yield Soar Limited

Silver Ally International Limited

RBARERAH]

Silver Shore Holdings Limited

Win Ease (BVI) Limited

REARLH

Profit Hunting Development Limited

Sky Hero Capital Limited

Linkway Limited note (iv))(### )

Briliant Step Global Limited
(note 36)(H1#£36)

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED {6 & E#RERA T
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Place of operations

BRI

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong
i

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong

35 MELRER®

Particulars of issued
and paid up capital
BRTRBERAFE

100 shares of US$1 each
100 ERABIE T2 RH

100 shares of US$1 each
100k ERABIET KA

100 shares of US$1 each

100 ERABI T2 RH

1 share of US$1 each
RERBEBIETBRG

1 share of US$1 each
1EEEEE1ETZRG

1 share of US$1 each
1REREEIET R

1 share of US$1 each
1EEEEE1ET 2R

1 share of US$1 each
I EERE S )

10 shares of US$1 each
10RSREEIETZRA

10 shares of US$1 each
10RERABIZT KR

50,000 shares of US$1 each

50,000 BB EE1E TR H

Proportion of effective

ownership interest
BERBEERSLA

Direct Indirect

EE GE3

- 100%

- 100%

- 51%

- 100%

100% -

100% -

100% -

100% -

100% -

100% -

- 100%

Principal activity

TEXR

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Property holding
BENE

Investment holding

RERR

Investment in securities

REES

Investment holding

RERR

Inactive
TEex

Inactive
i

Property holding

CR/ES



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

35 Subsidiaries’ information (Continued) 35 MEBARER®
Proportion of effective
ownership interest
Particulars of issued BRERERSLA
Name of company Place of operations  and paid up capital Direct Indirect  Principal activity
NAER EEHY BRTRBERAFE Ef BE  FEEER
Incorporated in the United States of America
("USA’):
REFZETE %))
A
Sau San Tong Rodeo Drive Beauty Scientific - USA 1 share of US$1 each 100% = Inactive
Research Institute Limited
ESe 1REREE TR gEex
Incorporated in Hong Kong:
REBFMAL -
SCO Talent Search Company Limited Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 100% = Inactive
BRATERERAT Bl 1R T2 Bt gEEX
Sau San Tong Beauty Figure Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of HK$10,000 - 100%  Sale of health and beauty
products and investment
holding
BFERRAR &R 10,0008 10,0007 7t 2 & 12 HERRRERERIR
RERR
Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology Healthy Hong Kong 18,750 shares of HK$18,750 - 100%  Provision of beauty and
Trim Institute Limited slimming services
BHEREXRREARRE L Bk 18,7508 18,7507 7T f 2 REXARGRRE
BRAR
Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology Healthy Hong Kong 10,000 shares of HK$4,905,100 - 100%  Provision of beauty and
Trim Institute (TST) Limited slimming services
BHEREXRREARRETO(RYHE) FE 10,0004%4,905,100 7.2 k3 REEARARRE
BRAF
Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology Healthy Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$100 - 100%  Provision of beauty and
Trim Institute (Causeway Bay) Limited slimming services
BAEREXRREARRETO(REE) FA 10081007 7T.2 IR f3 REEXARARRE
BRAF
Sau San Tong Management Limited Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$100 - 100%  Provision of management
consultancy services
BaEERERAT &k 100100/ 7T 2 R 17 REERR AR

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &8 R ER A 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

35 Subsidiaries’ information (Continued) 35 MEARER @
Proportion of effective
ownership interest
Particulars of issued ERBEEERLA
Name of company Place of operations  and paid up capital Direct Indirect  Principal activity
NAEH EEY ERIRMEREFE Ef BE  FEER
Incorporated in Hong Kong: (Continuea)
REBAMAL - (8)
SST Advertising Agency Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of HK$10,000 - 100%  Provision of advertising
agency services
Bt EEREFRAF &R 10,0008 10,0007 7t 2 B& Rt EEHERY
Moon Profit Limited Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
mERERAR &E 1R T2 IRt RAER
Highlight International Trading Limited Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$100 - 100%  Sale of health and beauty
products
SHERBEHERRA &k 10011007 7T.2 IR 3 HERBRERER
Sau San Tong Investment Holdings Limited ~ Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$100 - 75%  Property holding
("SSTHL")
BREREBRERRA(EFERE B 1008% 1007 7.2 IR 13 BENE
2 d)
Wealthy Sound Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
-2 N &E 10,0008 10,0007 7t iR 17 RAER
Winic Management Limited Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
KNEBERAR 6 1R1ETZRH RERR
Jadepower International Limited Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 - 100%  Inactive
BNERERAT Eh 1R T2 Bt gEER
BUML Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$19,797,305 - 80%  Provision of a proprietary
internet platform to
promote and sell simming
beauty and health related
services and products
XEAZ &R 1008%19,797 305 7.2 R 17 RUEZRBETE  UEE
REEHBEARRE
BB RHRER
Trilion Well International Finance Company ~ Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
Limited
ERERHBAERAA i 1R T2 et REER

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED {6 & E#RERA T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

35 fEBARER®

35 Subsidiaries’ information (Continued)

Proportion of effective
ownership interest
Particulars of issued ERREEELSLA
Name of company Place of operations  and paid up capital Direct Indirect  Principal activity
NAER EEHY BRTRMRRAFE E# BE  FEEER
Incorporated in Hong Kong: (Continued)
REBRAMAL - (8)
Sun Fung Capital Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of HK$10,000 - 100%  Provision of money lending
services
MERE(TMBRAR &k 10,0008 10,0007 7t At 3 REMERS
| Pro Medical Skin Care Centre Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of HK$15,010,000 - 100%  Provision of beauty and
slimming services
EWEREEARATA Eh 10,0008%15,010,000% 7t.2 f& {7 REEARARRE
Kowloon West Properties Development Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 - 100%  Property holding
Limited
Bl 1R T2 Bt BENE
I Pro Medical Skin Care Centre (Asia) Limited Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$100 - 100%  Inactive
&A 1008100 7.2 R S $
Sau San Tong Healthy Care Product Limited  Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$100 - 60%  Sale of health and beauty
(“SSTHCPL") fnote (iv) (B2 (i) products
&B 10081003 T 2 R 17 HERBREDER
Incorporated in the PRC:
RPEIF AT -
LARGRHEBRAR (BHAL)  ThePRC Registered capital of = 51%  Distribution sale of cosmetic
(note (i) (H132 (i) US$5,000,000 and skin care products
t & 45,000,000 5 AHEENHREEER
—ERRERBRINERAH The PRC Registered capital of = 51%  Provision of beauty and
(—EZFI) hote i) (B ) HK$3,500,000 slimming services
i #E 1M #3,500,000% 7 REXARARRE
—EBEEEEMMERLA The PRC Registered capital of = 51%  Provision of beauty and
(‘=GN ote i) (H:#4) HK$3,500,000 slimming services
i & 73,500,000 70 REEARGIRRE
AR EERZ AR ERAT The PRC Registered capital of = 100%  Provision of beauty and
(note (i) (1722 i) HK$1,000,000 slimming services
i & 41,000,000/ 7T REXARAERE
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

35 Subsidiaries’ information (Continued)

Name of company Place of operations

ALk BRI

Incorporated in the PRC: (Continued)
REEFMAT - (8)

Eae LR tEEREAERAR The PRC
(note (i) (A &2i)
i
HEBGEEEERAT The PRC
(note (i) (A &i)
i
BERRFHLEBRAT The PRC
(note (i) (172 i)
i
BXERFHLEBERAR The PRC
(hote (i) and () (B2 R ()
i
BRMEE A EEBRAERAT The PRC
(note (i) (A &)
i
e UEAGR)ERAT] The PRC
(note (i) and (i) (et &)
i

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED {6 & E#RERA T
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35 MEARER @)

Proportion of effective
ownership interest
Particulars of issued ERBEEERLA
and paid up capital Direct Indirect
BRTRBMERAFE EE GE3
Registered capital of - 100%
RMB#6,000,000
A1 & 2 A K #6,000,0007T
Registered capital of RMB500,000 - 100%
A A AR #8500,0007T
Registered capital of US$500,000 - 100%
& A500,000% T
Registered capital of US$300,000 - 100%
& A300,000% T
Registered capital of - 100%
RMB20,000,000
#fH& AR A K 20,000,007
Registered capital of US$150,000 - 100%
& 4150,000% T

Principal activity

TEXR

Provision of management
consultancy services and
investment holding

REEBHEARY RRE

28
T

Provision of franchise

services

REMBLERY

Provision of beauty and
slimming services

REXBRERRE

Provision of beauty and
slimming services

REEFAREBRE
Inactive

TEEX
Provision of beauty and
slimming services

REXARGRRY
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RS HMEAASN - UGB TTZS)

35 Sub
Notes:

0

(i)

(i)

(iv)

sidiaries’ information (Continued)

Although the Group has only 50% ownership in SST(SHD) and
SST(SH), the directors concluded that the Group has dominant
power to direct relevant activities of SST(SHD) and SST(SH) on
the basis of the Group’s control over the boards of directors of
respective companies because of contractual arrangements with
the other shareholders of respective companies.

The subsidiaries are registered in the form of wholly foreign owned
enterprises.

The subsidiary is registered in the form of Chinese-foreign equity
joint ventures.

The subsidiary was incorporated during the year ended 31 March
2023.

The subsidiary was deregistered during the year ended 31 March
2023.

35 fEBARER®

Hrat

U

(i)

(i)

(iv)

BE AL E (25 A SST(SHD) & SST(SH) 2
50% % E#E « MmN EARE AR E MR
ZRMRY  HEERRAEEHETY
B URAEEHEBATEE GG
e 2 B AEIEIESST(SHD) & SST(SH) 2 HH
N

HEWBAANNBRECEIHAE
2

ZHBRRARIEGEREDEZAE
0 e

ZHBARERBE_T-_=F=A=+
— R FEEMKL -

ZHBRAREREE T -_=ZF=ZA=+
—BIEFEWE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AN BRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B S5 EERSN - S5 B TTE D)

35 Subsidiaries’ information (Continued) 35 MEBARER @

The following table lists out the information relating to the TEREAIEERNEEHRBEAFERERS
subsidiaries of the Group which have material non-controlling ([FEERRERD B AR ZER - TXE2
interest (“NCI”). The summarised financial information presented Pz IS E R s A RIS A <
below represents the amounts before any inter-company SFE o

elimination.

2023
—E-=fF

SST(SZ) SST(HZ)

and its and its

subsidiary, subsidiary,

BUML  SSTIHL R#B{t —EBFI —EEHM
SST(SZ) SST(HZ)

RHE RE

BHE WEAR  HMEAR

XBAZ REER RHBRL —EB/RI —EBHNM

NCI percentage FEREZEO L 20% 25% 49% 49% 49%

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FEx FEx FER FET FET

Non-current assets ERBEE = 38,424 3,070 = =
Current assets REBEE 11,082 5,355 181,089 61,962 3,666
Current liabilities k=N (7,226) (58,4000  (88,916)  (154,571)  (283,331)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE - - - - -
Net assets/(liabilties) BE/(af)3E 3,856 (14,621) 95,243 (92,609)  (19,665)
Carrying amount of NCI kR RRE 14 (3,655) 43,899 (45,379) (9,635)
Revenue Wz = 1,140 1,172,999 = =
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF/(BR) 325 (379) 13,804 (15,640) 110
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hip2mEs/ (B8 = = (9,822) 4,157 330
Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI AEEIERIER 2 HF|

(&%) 65 (93) 6,764 (7,664) 54
Dividends paid to NCI B ER 2 RS - - (24,085) - -
Cash flows from operating activities, net RELLFE 2 RETE T8 = 1) 4,470 175 =
Cash flows from investing activities, net REFREEZHzHETE @ 8 = = 354 = =
Cash flows from financing activities, net KEREZEIZRETE @ F8 = = (26,167) = =
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(RS HMEAASN - UGB TTZS)

35 fEBARER®

35 Subsidiaries’ information (Continued)

2022
SST(S7) SST(HZ)
andits and its
subsidiary, subsidiary,
BUML SSTHL BHAL —E/RI —EsmM
SST(SZ) SST(HZ)
RE kE
tgg =N WEBAR
ETIN RERR BHAL TR —esmM
NCI percentage FRRERE AL 20% 25% 49% 49% 49%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEr FiEr FEr FiEr Fir
Non-current assets ERBEE = 39,930 6,832 = =
Current assets MEEE 10,990 4219 244,274 81,922 3,778
Current liabilties EIER (7,459) (58,397) (110,684) (163,048) (23,889)
Non-current liabilties ERBER - - - - -
Net assets/(liabilties) EE/(BfE)FE 3,531 (14,248) 140,422 (81,126) (20,105)
Carrying amount of NCI JFiEiEL < RE(E 706 (3.562) 65,107 (39,752) (9,851)
Revenue Wz = 600 1,476,008 = =
(Loss)/profit for the year ER(EE)/&F (122) o11) 27,086 (25,502) 3,077
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Ei2ENE/ (B8 - - 5,382 (17) (255)
(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI AERIEERER  (B51B) /&5 (25) (228) 13,272 (12,496) 1,508
Dividends paid to NCI B FERER ZRE - - (9,240) = =
Cash flows from operating activities, net RELZEBNRETE 38 (1) (59) (4,332) 286 -
Cash flows from investing activities, net  REREEB BERE 58 = = (518) = =
Cash flows from financing activities, net  REBEEBBERE @ 58 - - (1,487) (643) =
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

36 Acquisition of assets through acquisition of

a subsidiary

On 11 August 2022, the Group acquired the entire equity
interest in Brilliant Step Global Limited (“Brilliant Step”), which is
principally engaged in property investment and its major asset is
an industrial property in Hong Kong, which is held for own use
and classified as property, plant and equipment.

In the opinion of management, the acquisition is in substance
an acquisition of the property, plant and equipment from Birilliant
Step, rather than business acquisitions and therefore is excluded
from the scope of HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations”. As such,
the acquisition is not disclosed as business combinations in
accordance with the requirements of HKFRS 3.

The assets acquired and liabilities assumed through this
transaction are as follows:

36 ZRWE-—RBNBARKWEEE

RZZBEZZFNA+—HB x5EKE
Brilliant Step Global Limited([Brilliant Step)
2 EPARHE - Brilliant StepE Z{ EMEK
E WEBEEFZEERTEBENIEY
¥ BIFER UDEAME - HBEREH
1 o

ERERR  WHBEE JyMBriliant Stepi
BWE  HBELRE - MIFREEE
I NERBW B REENEIRIZHE
HHBER - Bit - WBLEREFEWH
BERUFIRNWERTURBER/ERS
BF ©

KRAZGHMEzEERFEEZBEN
T

HK$'000

FET

Property, plant and equipment WE - R REE 5,200
Shareholder’s loan = EN (4,251)
949

Assignment of a shareholder’s loan EERRE 4,251
Total consideration BRE 5,200

Consideration satisfied by: REZUTEZMAAN

Consideration shares of the Company (note 28(a)(ii)) KRR BB (B 7F28(a)(i) 4,172
Loans receivable (note 29(a)) FEWE R (K 7£29(a) 1,028
5,200

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED {6 & E#RERA T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B Z=SMaEEsN - HELBTT2S)

37 Accounting estimates and judgements

The methods, estimates and judgements the directors used in
applying the Group’s accounting policies have a significant impact
on the Group’s financial position and operating results. Some of
the accounting policies require the Group to apply estimates and
judgements, on matters that are inherently uncertain. The critical
accounting judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies are described below.

(@

(b)

Depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charge for the property, plant and equipment
after taking into account the estimated residual value. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of the property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. It could change significantly as a
result of technical innovations and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycles. Management will revise
the depreciation charge where useful lives are different to
previously estimated, or it will write-off technically obsolete
or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Impairment loss on goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the directors to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of these cash flows.

37 EEHhE R

BEEEAAEESHBRERERBZAZE
HETRHEHAEE 2 BB RS
BENEATE BHSHBRERAEAE
EHAE FTEE 2 EBEEL G R
B BRAAEE SR ZBE ST HE
BT e

(a)

(b)

e

AEEKERMEFNSREEREEY
¥ BEMRBZEFAERFHR
HRTEER o WFIREE &Y
EERBEUZYE #ENRREBERAE
RERBELREL - AT EKIMA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

37 Accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Loss allowances for trade and other receivables and
loans and interest receivables

The Group estimates the loss allowances for trade and
other receivables and loans and interest receivables by
assessing the ECLs. This requires the use of estimates
and judgements. ECLs are based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions as well as forward-
looking information as at the end of the reporting period.
Where the estimation is different from the previous estimate,
such difference will affect the carrying amounts of trade
and other receivables and loans and interest receivables
and thus the impairment loss in the period in which such
estimate is changed.

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions and
interpretation of tax rules. The Group carefully evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions are set up
accordingly. The tax treatment of transactions is assessed
periodically to the effect of all changes in tax legislation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RS HMEAASN - UGB TTZS)

38 Possible impact of amendments, new 38 BE—_F-_=F=HA=1T—HL

standards and interpretations issued but not

yet effective for the year ended 31 March

2023

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of new or amended standards,
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2023
and which have not been adopted in these consolidated financial
statements. These amendments include the following which may

FECEMEE REMZIEFT

E-14

=]

K -HEARZEBUREEZR

BEZSEAVBHRRTIZHAY  FES
SRS EEMZRAEBE T _=F=
A=+ —BLEFERRERARZFLES
M MERL AR 2 ETHER KIS &
Al - ZFBITABEATAIERKESR

be relevant to the Group: &
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and ~ Sale or Contribution of Assets BB GRS 2R B A EERE
HKAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and its F10R REEGET NRIKEGEBE
Associate or Joint Venture? RIS 283E BT AN ZEMEENE
(ZZT——%) T A
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and BRI R 4R ERHERzAE
Leaseback? F16RIERT A B &2
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as ERGERE1N ABEEARENK
Current or Non-current (the [EHEN FEMED
“2020 Amendments”)? 4 (=St
1BETZ])24
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with EBGITEREIR  MEREZ
Covenants (the “2022 1BET A EmEBGE
Amendments”)? (===
1BETA])?
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting BEESENFEIR R SETBOREE
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Policies’ BB RS AR
BEHERE2HE
AR
HKFRS 17 and amendments to  Insurance contracts and the BB GRS %R RE2E A REH
HKFRS 17 related amendment’ FATHR R EBBHE CHEN
EHERIETHR
BETA
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of accounting ERSFERIESH R ZEE
estimates’ 1EETA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HNEAASN - HEANETTZ D)

38 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the year ended 31 March
2023 (continuead)

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

& No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption.

& As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date of

the 2020 Amendments was deferred to annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2024. In addition, as a consequence of
the 2020 Amendments and 2022 Amendments, Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause was revised to align the corresponding wording
with no change in conclusion.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these developments is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption
of them will not have a significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT PROPERTY

REVNERE

Particulars of investment property held as at 31 March 2023 is as

follows:

Location

1. House 49,
1 Lo Ping Road,
Casa Marina |l
Tai Po, New Territories,
Hong Kong

i3k

BB

A K
2 A e 5P
TR
4953 E

Usage
k=S

Residential
F=

RIE-_=F=RA=+—HFAZIREVEFE

m
Percentage held Term
by the Group HEMN
AEEREZEAL
100% Middle-term
lease
R HAME A9
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
QNEEH

Board of Directors EExg
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. MUl Wai Sum WEREE

Mr. CHAN Ka Kin PR 2S£
Non-Executive Directors EHITES

Mr. Takashi TOGO HAEL A
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIYFHTES
Mr. LAU Wai Leung, Alfred REREE

Mr. AU Siu Lun @ e fm A

Ms. TSANG Tsz Nok Aleen BirFE

Company Secretary

NAME

Mr. CHAN Hin Hang BROTITSEHE
Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee BREZZEEeRFMNEES
Mr. LAU Wai Leung, Alfred 2EREE

Mr. AU Siu Lun & Jkfm S
Ms. TSANG Tsz Nok Aleen ol e
Nomination Committee REZEE
Mr. LAU Wai Leung, Alfred 2ERLEE

Mr. CHAN Ka Kin PR A

Mr. MUI Wai Sum BERESE

Mr. AU Siu Lun @ Jkfm A
Ms. TSANG Tsz Nok Aleen BIEHLZ T
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
~EEF

Authorised Representatives

Mr. CHAN Ka Kin
Mr. MUI Wai Sum

Auditor

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Level 8

K11 ATELIER King’s Road
728 King’s Road

Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

Registered Office

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Head Office and Principal Place of Business in
Hong Kong

Room 2303, 23rd Floor

China Insurance Group Building
141 Des Voeux Road Central
Central

Hong Kong

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Office in
the Cayman Islands

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

RERRX

RER L
BEHRLE

B BB

AEEB S ELMBRAR
BB

1 £

2B T7285%

K11 ATELIER King’s Road

8ig

AR ERE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

RMEERBTEIEERBIH

B

IR

mEER 1415
FREBKXE
231$2303%

FEHEIERNBFERE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
A EEF

Branch Share Registrar and Transfer Office in
Hong Kong

Tricor Standard Limited

17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

Principal Banker

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Kwun Tong Plaza Branch

G1 Kwun Tong Plaza

68 Hoi Yuen Road

Kwun Tong, Kowloon

The Bank of East Asia
iISQUARE Supreme Gold Centre
Shop UGO01, iISQUARE

63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui
Kowloon

Website

www.sst-holding.com

Stock Code

8200
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